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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
EEEH @
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INVESTOR RELATION
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #r& ¥ #&

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

For the year ended
31 December

HZ12A31MBL2EE
2019 Change
RMB’000 1
ARET T
Revenue A 1,281,903 1,415,665 -9.4%
Profit for the year attributable to KRATBHEB AFE 145,665 177,125 -17.8%
owners of the Company FE A
Gross profit margin F A = 29.9% 28.2% +1.7PPS
ERaEi]
Net profit margin A =& 11.3% 12.5% -1.2PPS
ERalai
REVENUE ANALYSIS W A 9 #f
For the year ended
31 December
HZ12A3MBLZ2EE
2019 Change
RMB’000 it
ARETTT
Embedded software and secure BRAREGNLZ 747,781 980,012 -23.7%
payment products XAV EE fh
Platform and service e kiR 534,122 435,653 4+22.6%
Total = 1,281,903 1,415,665 -9.4%
FINANCIAL POSITIONS Bt # Ak 5%
At 31 December
M12H831H
2019 Change
RMB’000 Bt
ARET T
Total assets BwEE 2,577,263 2,635,228 -2.2%
Total liabilities weE (579,727) (630,824) -8.1%
Net assets FEE 1,997,536 2,004,404 -0.3%
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2020 MAJOR EVENTS
2020F KE

INNOVATION DRIVEN BY TECHNOLOGIES
MR AR

% H # B F 18 #1S0/IEC20000
EERMRGEEREXRE

Goldpac Passed the ISO/
IEC20000 IT Service
Management System
Certification

CHERIRNBEBREELERF
HEREET PHHIZEEBRA
R¥EREAXZELT

Goldpac and American Express
Joint Venture Clearing House
in China Joint Hands to Help
American Express RMB Card
Issuance

EHEBEBESRBFIL
HRBBE] BDHERMITER
FleEa

Goldpac Jointly Launches the
“Financial Digital Development
Alliance” to Boost the Digital
Transformation of the Financial

Industry

06

A BREEKRMNE BEPSAME KL 2%
FIESR) RIEF BB BERHTERHR
B £FBERBBEASE BB ERNFR
R R

The Goldpac PSAM (Terminal Security
Control Module) Card, Meeting the
Requirements of the National Cryptography,
Successfully Passed the Latest Inspection in
the Transportation Industry, and Goldpac
became the First Card Supplier in China to
Pass this Requirement
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Innovation, Allows Culture to Transcend
Design | Goldpac was Honored with the “Best
Investor Relations Short Video” Award for
Its Original Corporate Culture Video Titled
“Innovation, Allows Culture to Transcend
Design”
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Chairman & Executive Director: LUN Run Ting

EFRTERNTEEF REE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Directors” and “Board” respectively) of
Goldpac Group Limited (the “Company”), |
am delighted to present the Annual Report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

THE PAST HAS SERVED AS A PRELUDE TO
A FUTURE OF POSSIBILITIES

2020 was an extraordinary year for the Group. The sudden outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic brought about many uncertainties.
Relying on an effective emergency response mechanism, efficient
management system and prolific industry experience, the Group still
achieved greater results than the overall level of the industry.

However, 2020 was of greater significance to the Group than ever.
Committed to the vision of “Becoming a Trustworthy Provider
for Fintech Products and Services”, the Group made the overall
development strategy of “Promoting Digitalization and Platform-
based Strategy, and Deepening Fintech Innovation” through rigorous
analysis and research. The Group is now building a customer-oriented
digital UMV platform, which has already been successfully connected
to banks and has achieved initial success. This is an important
initiative of the Group to embrace the global trend of digital
transformation with the aim of leveraging on the valuable assets of
customer relationship, technology, experience, brand, supply chain,
channel and so on, accumulated by the Group for nearly 30 years,
allowing the Group to access more abundant and newer business
drivers.

2021 is a new starting point for the Group. The Group will invest
more resources to building its UMV platform, gradually promote the
upgrading and transformation of the original supply chain system
of the industry, and create an innovative ecosystem for the entire
financial payment products industrial value chain.

Looking from the perspective of finance, payment and credit have
been the basic need of human societies across the millennium and
an everlasting theme of the financial industry. It is also a guarantee
for the sustainable and steady development of the Group’s business.
Banks, credit card organizations and individual consumers are the
main players of the credit card industry and have launched a series
of economic activities around payment and credit. At the same time,
they are constantly eager for innovation. This enables the industry to
seek breakthroughs, such as technology and business models, and
provides a sustained impetus for the development of the industry.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FERE @

Facing the potential innovative breakthrough for the global financial
payment industry, the UMV platform will focus on innovating the
inherent nature of the industry. The UMV platform will provide
a series of solutions empowered with Artificial Intelligence
(“A.L."), image processing, Internet of Things and other innovative
technologies. These will gradually introduce and link key constituents
in the industry, bringing together the combined strength of even
more industry participants. In turn, these will promote multifaceted
interactions between participants along traditional business models
and cultivate the innovation industry’s ecosystem and industrial value
chain.

The pandemic has accelerated the global financial industry’s demand
for innovative ecosystems and industrial value chains, which in
turn brought a great opportunity for the rapid development of the
Group's UMV platform.

The UMV platform will accelerate the Group’s overseas market
expansion. By integrating internal and external resources through
UMV platforms, the Group will better meet the resource and capacity
needs of global customers in digital transformation, and strengthen
the stickiness and irreplaceability between the Group and its
customers. At the same time, the Group will change the traditional
worldwide site supply chain model through UMV platforms to
provide more advanced fintech products and services to customers
around the world.

The UMV platform will enhance the digital transformation and
on-line linkage with the Group’s core business, making customer
interaction and product deliveries more efficient, provide greater
support to customer business development, and effectively enhance
the Group’s future business value creation ability. The UMV platform
will accelerate the development of digital equipment, focusing on the
self-service needs of key application industries such as government,
finance, social security, transportation and healthcare. The Group
will promote digital equipment to a wider range of “non-contact”
use cases, and will look specially to capitalize on the development
opportunities happening under intelligent transformation in financial
services branches.

10 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Security is another everlasting key word in the financial industry
and the cornerstone of our customers’ trust in us all these years.
In the new year, the Group will also continue to adhere to the
overall strategy of “Independent Research and Development,
Innovation and Controllability”, which will execute good top-level
design, optimize different aspects from underlying technological
architectures to embedded software, and continue to promote the
independent security and controllability of the application of financial
payment industry technology, to meet and constantly exceed global
customers’ security compliance expectations.

Over the course of nearly three decades, the Group, through
continuous improvement and unwavering faith, and with a tenacious
spirit and visionary perspective, has faced a multitude of challenges
to become the Goldpac of today. Standing at the start of a new
beginning, the Group firmly believes that the past has served as a
prelude to the future.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend

my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members of the Board,
management teams, the staffs and business partners of the Group.

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Executive Director & CEO: HOU Ping

#iT E%ﬁfﬁ/ﬁiz TE &¥

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

MEEJEH—J-HH& *ﬁ'
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

2020 was an extraordinary year for the Group. The sudden outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic brought about many uncertainties.
Relying on an effective emergency response mechanism, efficient
management system and prolific industry experience, the Group still
achieved greater results than the overall level of the industry.

However, 2020 was of greater significance to the Group than ever.
Committed to the vision of “Becoming a Trustworthy Provider
for Fintech Products and Services”, the Group made the overall
development strategy of “Promoting Digitalization and Platform-
based Strategy, and Deepening Fintech Innovation” through rigorous
analysis and research. The Group is now building a customer-oriented
digital UMV platform, which has already been successfully connected
to banks and has achieved initial success.

2021 is a new starting point for the Group. The Group will invest
more resources to building its UMV platform, gradually promote
the upgrading and transformation of the original supply chain
system of the industry, and create an innovative ecosystem for the
entire financial payment products industrial value chain. This is an
important initiative of the Group to embrace the global trend of
digital transformation with the aim of leveraging on the valuable
assets of customer relationship, technology, experience, brand,
supply chain, channel and so on, accumulated by the Group for
nearly 30 years, allowing the Group to access more abundant and
newer business drivers.

The pandemic has accelerated the global financial industry’s demand
for innovative ecosystems and industrial value chains, which in
turn brought a great opportunity for the rapid development of the
Group's UMV platform.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEREWE D E

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS — STRENGTHENING
OF DELICACY MANAGEMENT & IMPROVING
PROFITABILITY

Impacted by both the pandemic and competition in the industry, for
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB1.28 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 9.4%, which has been narrowed by approximately
6 percentage points compared with the decrease of the revenue for
the six months ended 30 June 2020, representing a steady recovery
in revenue. The Group maintained its focus to constantly develop its
abilities, and dedicated itself to innovating and actively promoting
its platform and service strategy, resulting in alleviating the adverse
effects of the pandemic on part of traditional businesses.

During the year, the Group recorded gross profit of approximately
RMB383.8 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 3.7%. Through effective measures and delicacy
management, the gross margin increased by approximately 1.7
percentage points to approximately 29.9%. Despite the challenges
faced, the Group strengthened its cost control, improved operational
efficiency and further increased profitability.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded net
profit of approximately RMB145.3 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 17.7%. Should the book loss
caused by exchange loss be eliminated, net profit shall increase
approximately 5.6% year-on-year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total current assets amounted
to approximately RMB2.02 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 5.1%, cash flow was abundant, liquidity and other
financial indicators continue to be robust, all of which provided
abundant financial support for the Group to expand into new
business and product lines, promote its digitalization and platform-
based strategy, and achieve breakthroughs and upgrades.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB8.4 cents) per ordinary share
(HK10.0 cents in 2019) and a special dividend of HK4.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB3.4 cents) per ordinary share (HK6.0
cents in 2019) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

BUSINESS REVIEW — PLATFORM AND
SERVICE MAINTAINED ITS HIGH-SPEED
DEVELOPMENT

The pandemic has accelerated the global trend for development
in intelligent and digital technologies, and an increasing number
of financial and governmental services are being provided through
unmanned and platform-based means. The Group firmly capitalized
on the development opportunities under the pandemic, deepening
fintech innovation to promote its digitalization and platform-based
strategy.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the platform and
service segment continued its rapid growth, recording revenue
of approximately RMB534.1 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 22.6%. This segment accounted for
approximately 41.7% of the Group's total revenue (approximately
30.8% in 2019). Digital equipment recorded a rapid growth. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, 8 new patents and 16 software
copyrights related to platform and services were authorized. On
4 December 2020, the Group co-launched the “Financial Digital
Development Alliance” together with other major domestic financial
institutions, aiming to boost the digital transformation of the
financial services industry, which is expected to continue to boost
the growth of the Group’s platform and service business.

Affected by the weak market demand caused by the pandemic,
revenue from the embedded software and secure payment
products segment decreased approximately 23.7% year-on-year
to approximately RMB747.8 million, which still outperformed the
industry average. The Group pursued customized and fashionable
social trends, constantly diversified the products lines and
incorporate fashion elements to secure payment products, and
consolidated the leading advantage of the Group in the embedded
software and secure payment products segment. China is the world’s
largest market for financial secure payment products, the Group is
confident to be involved in the sustained economic growth in China.
The development of financial secure payment products, on the basis
of its intrinsic security and convenience, will continue to cater to the
personalized, fashionable social development trend, and will expand
the fields of their application, and as a result, this market will also
constantly grow.

Affected by the pandemic in Southeast Asia and other regions,
revenue from overseas business was approximately RMB90.4 million,
representing a decrease of 9.3% year-on-year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEREWE D E

OUTLOOK — DIGITAL UMV PLATFORM

Promoting the Digitalization and Platform-
based Strategy, Deepening Fintech Innovation

Looking from the perspective of finance, payment and credit have
been the basic need of human societies across the millennium and
an everlasting theme of the financial industry. It is also a guarantee
for the sustainable and steady development of the Group’s business.
Banks, credit card organizations and individual consumers are the
main players of the credit card industry and have launched a series
of economic activities around payment and credit. At the same time,
they are constantly eager for innovation. This enables the industry to
seek breakthroughs, such as technology and business models, and
provides a sustained impetus for the development of the industry.

Facing the potential innovative breakthrough for the global financial
payment industry, the UMV platform will focus on innovating the
inherent nature of the industry. The UMV platform will provide a
series of solutions empowered with A.l., image processing, Internet
of Things and other innovative technologies. These will gradually
introduce and link key constituents in the industry, bringing together
the combined strength of even more industry participants. In turn,
these will promote multifaceted interactions between participants
along traditional business models and cultivate the innovation
industry’s ecosystem and industrial value chain.

The UMV platform will contribute to the Group’s business
development from four perspectives:

Firstly, Promoting Digital Fintech Services

In the process of promoting digital transformation, the Group
will optimize its traditional service mode, strive to create a digital
business platform for customers, optimize the interactive experience
of customers through Internet and mobile connectivity, improve
service efficiency and enhance customer stickiness.

The Group will also pay more attention to the needs of financial
industry customers with regards to resources and capacity in
retail finance, especially the bank card business, during the
digital transformation process. These needs may include customer
acquisition, precision marketing, precise operation and other aspects
of digital transformation needs. The Group will launch more products
and services on the basis of internal and external resources and
capabilities integration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Secondly, Re-inventing Core Business

The UMV platform will enhance the digital transformation and
on-line linkage with the Group’s core business, making customer
interaction and product deliveries more efficient, provide greater
support to customer business development, and effectively enhance
the Group's future business value creation ability.

At the same time, the Group will increase the proportion of high
value-added products, such as personalized, cultural and creative,
and fashionable products, through digitalization and platform-based
means, so as to enhance the core business value and assist customers
to enhance their competitiveness in the consumer market.

The Group will also build its customer-oriented one-stop solution
service based on its core business to enhance its value creation
ability for its customer-facing business operation needs. On the
basis of the targeted provision of secure payment products, a one-
stop solution formed by the Group through integrating peripheral
products, materials, logistic services and other resources and
capabilities, and in combination with customer business processes,
can not only efficiently support customer business development, but
also effectively enhance the business value of the Group.

Thirdly, Overseas Market Diversified Expansion

The UMV platform will accelerate the Group’s overseas market
expansion. The global outbreak of the pandemic has brought
challenges to the development of the Group’s overseas market,
but it also brings opportunities. By integrating internal and external
resources through UMV platforms, the Group will meet the resource
and capacity needs of global customers in digital transformation,
and strengthen the stickiness and irreplaceability between the
Group and its customers. At the same time, the Group will change
the traditional worldwide site supply chain model through UMV
platforms to provide more advanced fintech products and services
to customers around the world.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEREWRE D

Fourthly, Acceleration of Digital Equipment

The UMV platform will accelerate the development of digital
equipment, focusing on the self-service needs of key application
industries such as government, finance, social security, transportation
and healthcare. The Group will promote digital equipment to a
wider range of “non-contact” use cases, and will look specially
to capitalize on the development opportunities happening under
intelligent transformation in financial services branches.

The digital equipment business is an important part of the
Group's digitalization and platform-based strategy. The Group will
further increase the product development and application scenario
adaptation of the digital equipment business, enhance market
expansion, and achieve an accelerating growth of the digital
equipment business.

As an important vehicle to promote digitalization and the platform-
based strategy, the construction of the “Zhuhai Fintech Center”
invested in by the Group is about to be completed and is expected
to be put into use in 2021.

Capitalizing on Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area development advantages, the “Zhuhai Fintech Center” will
become the strategic platform of the Group’s future development.
Adhering to the vision of “Becoming a Trustworthy Provider for
Fintech Products and Services”, the Group will provide customers
with a comprehensive suite of services consisting of “Science and
Technology + Industry + Ecosystem” for the digital transformation,
to provide scientific and technological power for the recovery and
development of China’s economy in the post-pandemic era, and to
realize the Group’s accelerated progress under the guidance of digital
strategic reform.

As pandemic prevention and control becomes normalised, the
Group will further improve the level of refinement and precision in
its pandemic prevention and control. While continuing to carry out
pandemic prevention and control training, according to pandemic
prevention and control needs, the Group will constantly review the
management process, research and development process, supply
chain, business and marketing and pay attention to the possible
adverse impact of the pandemic on the operation and development
of the Group from all levels, so as to respond to the impact of the
pandemic sensibly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Over the course of nearly three decades, the Group, through
continuous improvement and unwavering faith, and with a tenacious
spirit and visionary perspective, has faced a multitude of challenges
to become the Goldpac of today. Standing at the start of a new
beginning, the Group firmly believes that the past has served as a
prelude to the future.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 8 February 2021, UMV
Technology Limited (Zhuhai) & @& AREH (3 8) AR A A ("UMV
Zhuhai”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into
a series of Variable Interest Entity (“VIE") agreements (Note) with
Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (& & & AR
B (%) B R A F]) (“Zhirong”).

Zhirong is a limited liability company established and subsisting
under the laws of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). It was
wholly owned by the PRC equity owner and is principally engaged
in the business of computer software and hardware, research and
development in network technology and the restricted business (the
"Subject Business”). As advised by the PRC legal advisers and set
out below, information service platform for online data processing
and transactions processing services as well as information service
businesses (the “Restricted Business”) of the Subject Business
fall within the scope of “Value-added Telecommunication (“VAT")
Services” and Zhirong has obtained the VAT Licence under the
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC to operate the above
services.

Pursuant to VIE agreements, Zhirong shall engage UMV Zhuhai
on an exclusive basis to provide technological consultation and
services. Unless prior written consent has been obtained from UMV
Zhuhai or its designated nominee(s), Zhirong shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially adversely affect
the assets, business, personnel, obligations, rights or operation.
UMV Zhuhai shall provide a non-interest bearing loan in the sum of
RMB10,000,000 to the PRC equity owner of Zhirong, and the PRC
equity owner shall accept such loan in accordance with the loan
agreement.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEREWE D E

According to the contractual arrangement, UMV Zhuhai can elect
or appoint persons to serve as directors (or executive directors) and
supervisors of Zhirong in accordance with the procedures prescribed
by laws, regulations and Zhirong’s articles of association, and shall
procure the election and appointment of such persons designated
by UMV Zhuhai as the chairman (if there is a board of directors),
general manager, chief financial officer and other members of the
senior management of Zhirong. UMV Zhuhai already has obtained
effective control over the finance and operation of Zhirong with no
other purchase consideration is required to be paid by UMV Zhuhai.

Through the VIE agreements, UMV Zhuhai can control the finance
and operation of Zhirong effectively and will enjoy the entire
economic interests and benefits generated by Zhirong. Upon
entering into the VIE agreements, the financial results of Zhirong
will be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of
UMV Zhuhai and Zhirong will become an indirect subsidiary of the
Company.

Moreover, although the COVID-19 pandemic has been effectively
controlled in China by the prevention and control strategy of
“Both Imported Cases and Spreading within the City should be
Prevented”, the pandemic has brought about an impact on economic
development of China and the other parts of the world, and is
expected to last for a period of time, which may continue to have
a certain impact on the Group’s business development, but should
not constitute a significant impact.

Save as disclosed above, no material events occurred subsequent to
31 December 2020 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

Note: The VIE agreements include The Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement, The Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement, The
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, The Equity Pledge Agreement, The Spousal

Consent Letter and The Loan Agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 13 May 2021, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 7 May 2021. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 10 May 2021 to Thursday,
13 May 2021, both days inclusive, during which period, no transfer
of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 June 2021. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 7 June 2021 to Wednesday,
9 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the
proposed dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 13 May 2021, the dividends will be paid on
Wednesday, 30 June 2021 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Wednesday, 9 June 2021.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from the
global offering of approximately RMB975.0 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). As at 31 December
2020, the Company utilized approximately RMB827.6 million for
the purposes of production capacity expansion, innovative product
and service research and development, investment in associates
and acquisition, market expansion outside of China, working capital
supplementation and other general corporate purposes. The balances
of the net proceeds were deposited in banking account. The
Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant to
the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 22 November 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEREWRE D

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the initial  ®2020%F12A31H @ X A EE SR
public offering and the unused amount as at 31 December 2020 is  IE{F f &Fﬁﬁ?ﬁ(ﬁﬁﬁﬁz ST AT
set out below:
Utilized Unutilized
amount amount
as at as at
% of net Net 31 December 31 December
proceeds proceeds 2020 2020
A20205 A20205
ER 128318 12A31H
g pl BEfEs CHEASE KERALHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR
R&D of new products and services fiff & 1 & & M iR 7% 35% 341,113 341,113 —
Expansion to production BREESE ALK
facilities, upgrades and other BERFEER
improvements to existing card BREIERE
production and data processing
facilities 35% 341,113 259,465 81,648
Financing future strategic alliances {5 & 2R 82 B # 2 &) # 17
with complementary companies — REEEBEMEE ¢ 10% 97,461 32,120 65,341
Further strengthening presence E—FAMBEEPREAR
in existing markets outside the HAE ([ E )35 5
People’s Republic of China RAEMSMEAELH
(the “PRC") 10% 97,461 97,461 —
Working capital and other general %ﬁ}EM ﬁ/i\&
corporate purposes — DA 10% 97,461 97,461 —
Total A&t 100% 974,609 827,620 146,989

The balances of the net proceeds were deposited in banking account.
The Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant
to the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the prospectus

of the Company dated 22 November 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the daily operations and
working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.
By taking a conservative financial management attitude, the Group
continued to maintain the healthy financial position.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,344.7 million (2019: approximately
RMB1,437.1 million), of which approximately RMB804.0 million
(2019: approximately RMB770.1 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 59.8%, and approximately RMB540.7
million (2019: approximately RMB667.0 million) was denominated in
USD and HKD, etc., representing approximately 40.2%.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") amounted to approximately
RMB256.7 million, which was the structured deposits represented
by principal-guaranteed financial products issued by banks,
among which approximately RMB50.4 million was in Agricultural
Bank of China, approximately RMB46.0 million was in Ping An
Bank Company Limited, approximately RMB45.0 million was in
Bank of China, approximately RMB45.0 million was in China
Citic Bank, approximately RMB40.0 million was in Industrial Bank
Company Limited and approximately RMB30.3 million was in China
Construction Bank.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no bank loans (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's trade receivables was
approximately RMB271.0 million (2019: approximately RMB328.3
million). It is the industry practice that settlement of trade receivables
peaks around the end of year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB2,020.7 million (2019: approximately
RMB1,922.8 million), representing an increase of approximately 5.1%
compared to that of the previous year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 3.7 (2019: approximately 3.2), representing a high
liquidity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEREWE D E

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio (the gearing
ratio is equivalent to total liabilities divided by total assets as at the
end of the year) was approximately 22.5% (2019: approximately
23.9%).

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

In terms of currency exposure, the Group's sales were mainly
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD while the operating expenses
and purchases were mainly denominated in RMB with certain
portions in USD and HKD. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of foreign currency rates.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s capital
expenditure was approximately RMB80.3 million. (2019:
approximately RMB94.3 million). This capital expenditure is the
expense in fixed assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB68.1 million (2019: approximately
RMB24.8 million). Such increase was mainly due to the construction
of “Zhuhai Fintech Center”, which is currently in progress.

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of approximately RMB244.0
million (2019: approximately RMB156.0 million) were pledged to
secure the bills payables and bank guarantee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not purchase
from Gemalto N.V. (“Gemalto”) (2019: approximately RMB2.3 million),
as a result of the Group’s high commitment to self-driven research
and development by launching proprietary embedded chip operating
system to diversify its chip supplies. Therefore, no non-exempt
continuing connected transaction or connected transaction, which
is subject to reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval pursuant to the Listing Rules, has been entered into by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investments for the year ended 31
December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group plans to utilize its own funds and bank loan of
approximately RMB149.0 million for the purpose of construction of
“Zhuhai Fintech Center” during 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2020.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEREWRE D

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
shares of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of environmental
and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) management
team had managed, monitored, recommended and reported on
environmental and social aspects. An ESG report is prepared with
reference to Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules (Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide) and will be published on the
Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment in all material aspects.
The Group encourages its employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers and provides
high quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
continued and sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,643 employees (as at
31 December 2019: 1,711), with an decrease of 68 employees as
compared to that as at 31 December 2019. Total employee benefits
expenses including Directors’ emoluments, for the year ended 31
December 2020, amounted to approximately RMB198.0 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately RMB233.8
million).

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important
assets. In addition to offering competitive remuneration and welfare
packages, the Group is also committed to providing specialized and
challenging career development and training programs. Generally, a
salary review is conducted annually. The Group also adopted the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme to motivate prospective employees. Apart from basic
remuneration, for employees in Mainland China, the Group makes
contributions towards employee mandatory social security, pensions,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and medical and
unemployment insurance in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations of Mainland China. The Group also provides full
coverage of housing provident fund contributions as required by
local regulations in Mainland China. For overseas employees, the
Group also make contributions towards relevant insurance scheme
as required by the local regulations.

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENSREEE@E)

DIRECTORS =2

S Ea
The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including six executve BTEE€HNEZERMHEK BEABHTE SEE
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The F ' ZBBUIFRITEZT - UTEKRAS
following table sets forth certain information relating to the EHE W :
Directors:
Name Age Position in the Group Y
o FHe SEB K ggm:
Executive Directors =
HITES 2y
LU Run Ting 66 Chairman & Executive Director géﬁf
EREE TRERMATES SEH
HOU Ping 60 Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
& F HIOTEEREFEATE % e
LU Runyi 63 Executive Director & Senior Vice President §§é
B BITE RS HRE B Szs
LU Xiaozhong (Note 1) 52 Executive Director & Senior Vice President ETm
BN (AT HITEEREREEE 7
WU Sigiang 48 Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer =
2B % WTEERERELT 5 m
LING Wai Lim 34 Executive Director §§j‘~{*;”ﬂ
=S MITES 28
LI Yijin (Note 2) 50 Executive Director & Chief Audit Executive & Company égu.g

Secretary )

FHHE K i2) WITES B RRQAFAWE

40
Independent Non-executive Directors Y
BLFHTES gaf
MAK Wing Sum Alvin 68 Independent Non-executive Director
KR BYEMITES 2
YE Lu 58 Independent Non-executive Director ;Hi}
¥ % BN TES Sgs
YANG Geng 45 Independent Non-executive Director %mzﬁ
B & BN TES 5
Note 1: Mr. LU Xiaozhong retired as an executive Director on 18 May 2020. Batr:  E/NBEER2020E518ARENITES -

Note 2: Ms. LI Yijin was appointed as an executive Director on 18 May 2020, so she A2 ZF 5 L+ M2020F5H18A XX ARITE
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEE @

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (ERBEZ) (“Chairman Lu”), aged 66, is the
chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and the founder
of the Group. He was first appointed as Director on 10 December
2004 and was designated as an executive Director with effect from
15 November 2013. Chairman LU is primarily responsible for the
overall strategic planning and overseeing the general management
of the Group. He has over 25 years of experience in financial card
industry and was honored as the finalist award of CNBC Asia
Business Leaders Award in October 2015. Chairman LU has been the
Chairman of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries, Goldpac
Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited (formerly
named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited”) since 2011 and
also has been the director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited
(formerly named as “Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private Limited), the
Company'’s subsidiary, from 2016 to July 2018, and has been the
director of Goldpac Investment Limited, the Company’s subsidiary,
since 2016, and has been the director of Goldpac Innovation Limited,
the Company’s subsidiary, since 2018, and has been the director of
Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company and UMV International
Holding Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries, from 2020.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman LU
had interest in Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"),
the Company’s controlling shareholder and director since 1993.
Chairman LU also served as various management positions at the
subsidiaries of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior
to the establishment of GIHL in 1993. He currently also serves as
the chairman of GIHL. Chairman LU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 2004. Chairman LU had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% interest of GIHL. Chairman
LU is the elder brother of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director
and senior vice president of the Company, and is the father of Mr.
LING Wai Lim, who is an executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. HOU Ping ({% %), aged 60, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group in
2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August 2011,
and was designated as an executive Director with effect from
15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 vyears of
experience in the banking industry, including approximately 20
years of experience in the card industry. He has been a Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has
also served as a director of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited and Goldpac Limited respectively, since 2011. He has also
served as directors of six subsidiaries of the Company, a director
of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited since 2016, and a director of
Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin), SecureTech Holdings
Limited and Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited, the Company’s
subsidiaries, since 2018, and a director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai)
Limited Company and UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre from
2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of China
group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International) Limited
since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC Credit
Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to 2004. Mr.
HOU served as an independent non-executive director of the Huijin
Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 300561) from November 2016 to January
2019. Mr. HOU received a Master of Business Administration degree
from the Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003. Saved
as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEE @

Mr. LU Runyi (E818), aged 63, is an executive Director and
a senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has approximately 25 years
of experience in the security payment industry. He has been a senior
vice president of the Group since 2004 and has also been a Director
of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac
Limited respectively since 2011. He currently also serves as a Director
of GIHL and has also served as a director of Goldpac Technology
Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018, and has also served as a
director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company since 2020.
Mr. LU Runyi had not been a director of any other listed companies
in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Mr. LU Run Ting, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and is the uncle
of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WU Sigiang (R B &), aged 48, is an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2001. Mr. WU is primarily responsible for the overall operation of
the Group, he was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 18 May 2017, and has approximately 20 years of experience
in the security payment industry. Mr. Wu was a manager of the
production division, vice general manager of the operation division,
general manager of the production management division of Goldpac
Limited from 2001 to 2011 successively, and has been the chief
operating officer of Goldpac Limited since 2011. Mr. WU was served
as a manager of the procurement division of Goldpac Limited from
2004 to January 2021, and has been the general manager and
legal representative since February 2021. Mr. WU has also served as
a Director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since
2018. Mr. WU had not been a Director of any other listed companies
in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics University (/&

B EPT) (now part of Guangdong University of Technology (&
B T % K2) with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree in July 1993.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LING Wai Lim (E & B) (formerly known as Mr. Wai Lim (&
B&) and Mr. LING Wai Lim (% & B)), aged 34, joined the Company
as non-executive Director on 18 May 2017. He was designated
as an executive Director with effect from 15 March 2019 and
was appointed as senior vice president of the Group upon the
effective date of 22 January 2021. Mr. LING has also served as
directors of two subsidiaries of the Company, a director of Goldpac
Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018, and a director
of UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020. Mr. LING has
over 10 years of experience in biomedical research and research
project management. Mr. LING served as a project analyst, a project
manager and the senior scientific advisor, respectively, of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock Code: 8158),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from June 2015 to December 2018.
Mr. LING served as a research assistant of The University of Hong
Kong, Department of Paediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, from
December 2010 to May 2012. Mr. LING had not been a Director of
any other listed Companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past
three years.

Mr. LING received the Bachelor of Science (Biotechnology) from
The University of Hong Kong in 2008, the Master of Philosophy in
Microbiology from The University of Hong Kong in 2010, and also
the Doctor of Philosophy in Immunology from The University of Hong
Kong in 2015.

Mr. LING is the son of LU Run Ting, who is the chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company. He is also the
nephew of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director and senior
vice president of the Company.

Ms. LI Yijin (Z53), aged 50, is an executive Director, the chief
audit executive of the Company and company secretary, and joined
the Group in 2001 and was appointed as an executive Director
with effective from 18 May 2020. She has approximately 25 years
of experience in the accounting, auditing and financial reporting
matters. Ms. LI was the financial controller of the Company from
2004 to 2012, and has been appointed as a director of Sichuan
Zhongruan Technology Ltd. (“SCZR") since 2011, and was the chief
financial officer of the Company from 2012 to April 2019, and has
been designated as the chief audit executive of the Company since
May 2019. Ms. Li has also been the supervisor of Goldpac Fintech
(Zhuhai) Limited Company and UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai)
since 2020, the Company subsidiary.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEE @

Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in
November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified Public
Accountants) Australia since October 2004, a Fellow of CPA Australia
(FCPA) since May 2020, and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had not been a director
of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past
three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Z Xk %) (also known as Mr. MAK
Wing Sum), aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director. He
joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. MAK is currently
an independent non-executive Director of Hong Kong Television
Network Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 1137), Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 590), Lai Fung Holdings
Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1125)
and Crystal International Group Limited (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 2232). He was also an independent
non-executive Director of I.T. Limited (@ company Listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 999) from 31 March, 2012 to December
2, 2019. At the same time, as a member of Hong Kong Housing
Society, Mr. Mak has been selected as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, and also the member of the Supervisory Board,
Remuneration Committee and Special Committee on Investment.
Mr. MAK, after working in Citibank for over 26 years, went into
his retirement in April 2012. Whilst at Citibank, he has held various
senior positions, managing the regional global asset management
business and financial control for North Asia, he last served as the
Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants since
November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed herein,
Mr. MAK had not been a Director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. YE Lu (E %), aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director. She joined the Group on 18 May 2017 when she was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Ms. YE Lu has more than 30 years of experience in cross border
commercial dispute resolution. Ms. YE joined King & Wood Mallesons
in 2004, and is currently a partner of King & Wood Mallesons.
Ms. YE is a member of the Council of the Singapore Court of
International Arbitration, and an arbitrator of American Arbitration
Association, China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission and Hong Kong International Arbitration Center and
Singapore International Arbitration Center, and she was a member
of the Council of the London Court of International Arbitration. Prior
to 2004, Ms. YE was a consultant and worked for an international
law firm for 9 years, and was a lawyer and a partner in two other
Beijing law firms for 6 years.

Ms. YE received the Bachelor of Laws from the Law School of Peking
University in June 1983, and received the Master of Laws from the
Law School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in June 1986, and
also received the Master of Laws from the Harvard Law School in
June 1994. Ms. YE was admitted as lawyer in the People’s Republic
of China and New York State in 1988 and 1999 respectively. Ms. YE
had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong
or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. YANG Geng ($3 &), aged 45, is an independent non-executive
Director. He joined the Group on 22 May 2019, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. YANG has over 10 years of experience in securities investment.
Mr. YANG has been working in Valuable Capital Group as Portfolio
Manager since May 2019. From January 2018 to April 2019, Mr.
YANG has been worked as the First Vice President (Investment) in
Mason Administrative Services Limited, responsible for constructing
the investment portfolios in stock market of Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Mr. YANG acted as an investment director in Orchid Public
Investment Management Company Limited from April 2014 to June
2017. Mr. YANG worked respectively at Huaxi Securities Co., Ltd
(@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
002926 Shenzhen) and BOCI Research Limited from May 2008 to
January 2014.

Mr. YANG received Bachelor of Trade and Economics from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics in 1997 and received Master of
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2007. Mr YANG had not been a director of any other listed companies
in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENSREEE @

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE
Name Gender Age Position

% & £ Bl FiR B %

LI Jun Male 59 Chief Technology Officer
F = eS| BERME

LI Yingjie Male 38 Chief Financial Officer
) e £ e BEEMBE

Mr. LI Jun (ZE), aged 59, is the chief technology officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2013. He is primarily responsible
for the management of the technical solutions department and
R&D department of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 20 years
of experience in the technology related industry. He has been the
chief technology officer of the Company since January 2013. He has
also been the chief technology officer of both Goldpac Limited and
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited since January 2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI joined Giesecke & Devrient GmbH
as engineer in 1997 and from 1999 to 2012 served as the Director
for security equipment in Giesecke & Devrient (China) Information
Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. LI graduated from the Beijing University of
Posts and Telecommunications with a degree in radio communication
and received a master degree in engineering from Universitat-
Gesamthochschule Paderborn in Germany and a master certificate
in project management from the George Washington University
through its program in Beijing in July 1983, June 1997 and May
2005 respectively. Mr. LI had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LI Yingjie (FIFE£R), aged 38, is the chief financial officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2014. He is primarily responsible
for the management of the accounting and finance departments
of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 15 years of experience in
accounting and auditing. He was the director of internal audit of
the Company from September 2014 to April 2019, and has served
as the chief financial officer of the Company since May 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI worked as the manager of internal
audit in Galaxy Entertainment Group (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 0027.HK) from 2010 to 2014, and acted as
senior auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2005 to 2010. He
graduated from Sun Yat-sen University and received a bachelor of
arts in 2005. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. LI had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z25#), aged 50, is the company secretary of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Executive Directors” above for the biography of Ms.
LI

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on Directors are as follows:

1. Mr. HOU Ping (#£ ) was appointed as a director of UMV
Technology Limited (Zhuhai), the Company’s subsidiary, with
effect from 27 November 2020.

2. Ms. LI Yijin (Z5#) became a supervisor of UMV Technology
Limited (Zhuhai), the Company’s subsidiary, with effect from
27 November 2020.

3. Mr. LING Wai Lim (& B&) was appointed as a director of
UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai), the Company’s subsidiary,
with effect from 27 November 2020, and became a senior vice
president of the Group upon the effective date of 22 January
2021.

4. Mr. LU Run Ting (EEE£E) was appointed as a director of UMV
International Holding Limited, the Company’s subsidiary, with
effect from 31 August 2020.

5. Mr. WU Sigiang (%R E58) was resigned as a manager of the
procurement division of Goldpac Limited, the Company’s
subsidiary, with effect from 22 January 2021, and was
appointed as the general manager and legal representative of
Goldpac Limited since 20 February 2021.

Save as disclosed in the interim report 2020 of the Company and
the disclosure above, during the period under review and up to
the date of this report, there is no other change in information of
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company
was publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 4 December 2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group is specialised in
delivering embedded software, secure payment products and A.l.
financial self-service kiosks for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide date processing, system platforms
and other total solutions for customers in a wide business range
including finance, government, healthcare, transportation and retails.
The Group is the exclusive secure payment products supplier in
the PRC, which is certified by all six of the world-leading credit
card organisations of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard, American
Express, JCB and Diners Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier, the Group
is actively involved in drafting and formulating of industrial standards
and criterion. To drive the innovation by customers’ diversified
demands and evolving front-line technologies, the Group watches
the cutting-edge technologies trends with the closest interests,
covering internet banking, mobile payment, IoT, to reinforce the
Group's leading industrial position and boost the whole industry’s
evolution. Motivated by the strong R&D aptitudes and affluent
practical experiences, the Group was actively involved in numerous
significant industrial events and projects, including China’s secure
and reliable financial IC card chip promotion project, the first
EMV (Europay, MasterCard and VISA) projects in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the first provincial social security card project, the
first financial social security card project, the first citizen card project
and the first healthcare card project in Mainland China. Adhering
to the spirit of “Virtue, Innovative, Efficiency and Cooperation”
and leveraging its leading technologies, preeminent qualities and
premium service, the Group is fully engaged in promoting a wider
and in-depth Fintech application. At the same time, inspired by
the Chinese government’s “Belt and Road” initiative, the Group is
now continuously expanding its international market and extending
its superior solutions and services to a wider geographical area
and delivering convenient, secure and easy payment experiences to
people around the globe.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2020 are set out

in the Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 200 to
page 205 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income on pages 129 and 130 of this Annual
Report.

A final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2019: HK10.0 cents) and a special
dividend of HK4.0 cents (2019: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 has been proposed
by the Board of Directors.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2020, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 12 to page 27 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 13 May 2021, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 7 May 2021. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 10 May 2021 to Thursday,
13 May 2021, both days inclusive, during which period, no transfer
of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 June 2021. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 7 June 2021 to Wednesday,
9 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the
proposed dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 13 May 2021, the dividends will be paid on
Wednesday, 30 June 2021 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Wednesday, 9 June 2021.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEESRE @

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions

business and some are from external sources.

Major risks are

summarized below.

(i)

40

The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government
agencies (such as social security, public health and
transportation agencies) and other organisations that issue
financial cards as its customers or potential customers,
the financial performance of the Group depends on the
future growth of the consumer financial services industry
and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing of
certain functions such as the production of financial payment
products and data processing. The consumer financial services
industry is characterised by rapid launches of new products
and services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
translate to shorter life cycles for new products and services.
Organisations that issue financial cards or other relevant
products, such as the Group’s customers, may face difficulty
in anticipating changes in consumer tastes, preferences and
requirements and designing financial products to meet such
changes, which could lead to a lower demand for financial
payment products and in turn decrease these organisations’
demand for the products and services, which may adversely
affect the financial results of the Group.
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(ii)

(iii)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

As a supplier to financial institutions and
government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards and criteria relating to the facilities and products
of payment solutions providers, which the Group must satisfy
in order to be eligible to supply products and services to
these customers. For example, as required by the Group’s
financial institution customers, the Group has obtained
certifications from all six of the leading worldwide payment
card organisations (VISA, MasterCard, American Express,
China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club) with respect to the
Group's card manufacturing and personalisation services. To
maintain such certifications, the Group is subject to rigorous
periodic audits by these payment card organisations to review
the Group’s compliance with their standards and criteria.
The Group makes significant investments in order to meet
these standards and criteria, which vary depending on the
organisation or body, including investments required to satisfy
changes adopted from time to time by these organisations
and bodies in their respective standards and criteria. Further
investments to meet these standards and criteria may be
costly, and if the Group is unable to continue to meet these
standards and criteria, the Group may become ineligible to
provide products and services that have constituted in the past
an important part of the Group’s revenue and profitability.

The Group faces significant competition in
each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will not
produce the same or similar products or products of a better
quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services at the
same or lower prices than the prices at which the Group’s
products and services are provided.

(ii)

(iii)

EHEEZZRAERAA

EEEWRE @

ERERMEB AR FHEN
HER  AEEABTESE
MITERER RBFER

AEBEFPMBHOFZITRAEMK
EEAKSEEFPNRAEE#EM
Hib B mm BB @AR7
RIBHEREMNE @R ENR
£ - DFE LT P R EMMRS
AEBVABTHBREEMBRR -
flan - AEECEREREBEEFPNE
Ko ARENRARERBIER
ERBERSEHARELINRE
BeE B2 XEHER PH
R~ JCBRAHOMRE - BRERFH
RE  AEEAEHERIZEXN
THEBNERESRZ FEHAKER
DETHREFNREREFR - FLFE
MMBAEEIEBIRAMERE - B
MBS REEAFEHEAKRE -
BEAEAHBEBZNIKESAR
HENRENTIREHAFNRE -
NEBUBRENRENE-—FRE
AREIEBEEAR  WAKBEREREEZ
TELBENRE  ARERETA
EREHRABEBRAEHEKRENE
FE R AR ED D B E fn MARTS

AEBEMEENSTETS
HEHABE e E
REBENRRIGE

7N B B T35 A2 BUR RAR & B T8
R 0 T8 4 FE AR OB AT IS R E
MATEBENITRESNESN R
MBURRATEE  hIREHAEBEE
EmMREHESTERM BmEHF
ROEBINEERBAREFPRE
MEHFHRESE - REBTRERER
ERBENBFEF ASERMAEU
FEERENER R LIRS - M(E
1% B B4R 10 B ah S IR TS 4R R
FEEZER-

—2=255R 41

COHJUVHT(‘

Information

2020
Major Events

Chairman'’s

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

.
o
-
=
o
o
O

o

Corporate Governance

Environmental,
Social and Governance

Statement

and Analysis

Management

TERE]

K

20204

B&

:i:,‘%

2 /8 51 3 2 5 I

&

=
2

iz

mE




REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEESHRE@E

(iv)
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The Group’s competitors may also react more quickly to new or
emerging technologies or changes in customer preferences. In
addition, the Group may face greater than expected downward
pricing pressure as a result of possible price competition
by competitors seeking to stimulate demand in order to
maintain or increase market share. Such competition could
adversely affect the Group’s results of operations and business
prospects. Any adverse changes in the Group’s competitive
environment could cause a reduction in the sales quantity,
its market share, or the sales price of its products, which
would lower the Group's profitability. As a supplier to the
major financial institutions in China, the Group’s performance
and profitability may be adversely affected if its customers,
when faced with operational difficulties and decreasing profit
margins, seek to demand more favourable trading terms from
the Group in relation to price and credit period. The Group's
performance and profitability will also be adversely affected if
any of its customers faces cost control or cash flow problems
due to such operational difficulties.

Fluctuations in consumer spending

and financial services in the PRC may
significantly affect the Group’s business and
financial performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the
Group's revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group's
sales and growth are dependent on consumer spending
and consumer banking, which in turn depend on continued
improvement of macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally
but in the PRC in particular. There are many factors affecting
the level of consumer spending and consumer banking,
including but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty,
taxation, stock market performance, unemployment levels
and general consumer confidence. In addition, the Group
believes that the Group’s historical growth rates were largely
dependent on the general growth of the PRC economy. The
Group can provide no assurance that the PRC economy will
continue to grow at historical rates, or that it will not grow
at all, and any slowdowns or declines in the PRC economy or
consumer spending or consumer banking may adversely affect
the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Adverse changes in China’s economic,
political and social conditions as well

as laws and government policies, may
adversely affect the Group’s business,
financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects

The economic, political and social conditions in China
differ from those in more developed countries in many
respects, including structure, government involvement, level
of development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange,
capital reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of inflation
and trade balance position. Before the adoption of its reform
and opening up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a
planned economy. In recent years, the PRC government has
been reforming the PRC economic system and government
structure. For example, the PRC government has implemented
economic reform and measures emphasising the utilisation of
market forces in the development of the PRC economy in the
past three decades. These reforms have resulted in significant
progress in economic growth and social prospects. Economic
reform measures, however, may be adjusted, modified or
applied inconsistently from industry to industry or across
different regions of the country. The Group cannot predict
whether the resulting changes will have any adverse effect
on the Group’s current or future business, financial condition
or results of operations. Despite these economic reforms and
measures, the PRC government continues to play a significant
role in regulating industrial development, allocation of natural
and other resources, production, pricing and management
of currency, and there can be no assurance that the PRC
government will continue to pursue a policy of economic
reform or that the direction of reform will continue to be
market friendly.
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The Group's ability to successfully expand its business
operations in the PRC depends on a number of factors,
including macro-economic and other market conditions, and
credit availability from lending institutions. Stricter credit or
lending policies in the PRC may affect the Group’s customers’
consumer credit or consumer banking business, and may also
affect the Group’s ability to obtain external financing, which
may reduce its ability to implement its expansion strategies.
The Group cannot assure that the PRC government will not
implement any additional measures to tighten credit or lending
standards, or that, if any such measure is implemented, it will
not adversely affect the Group’s future results of operations
or profitability. Demand for the Group’s goods and services
and its business, financial condition and results of operations
may be adversely affected by the following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions of the
PRC;
° changes in laws, regulations, and administrative

directives or the interpretation thereof;

o measures which may be introduced to control inflation
or deflation; and

o changes in the rate or method of taxation.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which are
beyond the Group’s control.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(vi) The Group’s business may be adversely

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

The Group face competition from new payment technologies,
which could reduce the demand for financial cards as a
payment method. If there are any new payment technologies
which will reduce the demand for financial card products or
other new products the Group may introduce from time to
time, including new products arising from the Group's research
and development activities, the Group may experience material
and adverse effects on its business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Although China’s COVID-19 epidemic has been effectively
controlled by the prevention and control strategy of “Both
Imported Cases and Spreading within the City should be
Prevented”, the epidemic has brought about an impact on
China’s economic development, and is afraid to last for a
period of time, which may continue to have a certain impact
on the Group’s business development, but will not constitute
a significant impact.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills. The Group provides pre-employment and
on-the-job training and development opportunities to its
staff members. The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, R&D capacity, innovative technologies, sales
and production, customer services, quality control, workplace
ethics and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.
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(ii)

(iii)

46

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from
basic remuneration, for all employees in Mainland China, the
Group provides employee mandatory social security funds,
pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance,
medical and employment insurance, and full coverage of
housing provident fund contributions in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations of Mainland China. For
overseas employees, the Group also makes contributions
towards relevant insurance schemes required by the local
regulations. Meanwhile the Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Scheme to recognize and motivate the contribution of the
employees and attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, no shares have been granted
or agreed to be granted to any selected participants (2018:
Nil) of the Share Award Scheme.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. The
Group carefully selects its suppliers and requires them to satisfy
certain assessment criteria including track record, experience,
financial strength, reputation, products qualities and quality
control effectiveness. The Group also requires its suppliers to
comply with the Group’s anti-bribery policy.

Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its diversified
clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental organizations,
world-leading financial institutions, transportations projects
and multinational companies. The Group maximizes client value
by offering professional and effective operation model and
innovative and differentiated products and services, to intensify
the interaction and viscosity between clients and the Group
and enhances the client experience.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong while the Company
itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year 2020, the Group
have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland
China and Hong Kong.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year 2020 are set out on pages 133 and 134
of this Annual Report and in Note 43 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 259 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In February 2017, the Group acquired the 50-year land use right of
a land parcel with new industry related use with RMB26,669,442
in Zhuhai. The total area is approximately 20,999.56 square meters
situated in the west of Goldpac Tech Park, where the operation of
the Group is located, for the future development of the Group.

In October 2018, with the support of Zhuhai municipal government,
the Group started the construction of “Zhuhai Fintech Center” on
this land parcel, with a total construction area of approximately
56,000 square meters, which was capped in December 2019 and
is expected to be put into use by middle of 2021 as the Group's
R&D center office and as an office building for absorbing upstream
and downstream Fintech enterprises, and no more than 15% of the
area of the center will be used as commercial rental. Through its
own funds and bank loans, the Group expects the total investment
for the center will be approximately RMB320.0 million among which
RMB80.2 million has already be invested in 2020. The Group will
leveraging its own industry resources accumulated over the years in
the field of Fintech to bring together global professionals in the IoT,
intelligent security payment, data encryption, integrated circuits and
other industries, and will jointly make forward-looking technological
exploration and technological innovation in areas such as block
chain, A.l., big data, biometrics and other areas.
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In 2016, the Group acquired the property located in 13th Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre No.56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for HKD178 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB159.0 million) with a total area of 7857 feet. More than half of
this property is used as the headquarters office of the Group, and
the remainder is currently leased for office use by an independent
third-party enterprise for 3 years.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2020 are set out in Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 219 and 220 of this
Annual Report.

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no bank loans (2019: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2020 are set out in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 242 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB234.2 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB154.0
million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST FIVE
YEARS

The results, assets and liabilities of the past five years of the Group
are set out in the Financial Summary on page 260 of this Annual
Report.
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INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(@) Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a written
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 15
November 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the primary
purpose of recognising and acknowledging the contributions of
any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers, any
Directors, any advisors, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Group, or such other persons who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the
Group, and the principle terms are as follows:

(i) The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the date of listing of the shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;

(i) The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of offer to grant; and

(i)  Options granted should be taken up on payment of
HKD1.0 by the grantee. The exercise price is determined
by the Directors of the Company at their discretion and
will not be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at the offer
date, which must be a trading day; (b) the average closing
price of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (c) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no options were
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme. As at the date of this Annual Report, there was no
outstanding option under the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have
been granted, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000,
representing approximately 9.6% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this Annual Report.

Subject to early termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the adoption date.
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(b) Share Award Scheme

50

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award Scheme
are to (i) align the interests of any employee, aduviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of any member
of the Group whom the Directors in their sole discretion
consider may contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the contribution
of the Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of the
Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(the "Trustee”) to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants. The
Trustee purchases the Company’s shares being awarded from
the open market with funds provided by the Company by way
of contributions.

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares under the
Share Award Scheme to the Participants. The shares awarded
shall be vested in three years on each anniversary of the first
vesting date, which is 26 November 2017, in equal portions.
The estimated fair value of the shares award granted at the
grant date were approximately HKD27,564,000 (equivalent to
RMB24,239,000) based on the market price of the relevant
shares at the grant date.

As at 31 December 2020, all these shares were either vested
or forfeited; for which a total of 8,146,000 shares of the
Company were held by the Trustee at the year end date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Trustee
acquired 3,766,000 ordinary shares (2019 :2,224,000
ordinary shares) of the Company for a total consideration
of approximately RMB5,501,000 (2019 : approximately
RMB3,526,000), no shares have been granted or agreed to be
granted to any selected participants during the period (2019:
Nil), and The Group did not recognise any expense for the year
ended 31 December 2020 in relation to the share awards (for
year ended 31 December 2019: RMB1,935,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2020 and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. WU Sigiang

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Ms. LI Yijin (appointed as Director with effect
from 18 May 2020)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (retired on 18 May 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Ms. YE Lu
Mr. YANG Geng

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 28 to 37 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year 2020 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are as follows:

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited
Mr. LIU Xuhui
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Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqin)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Sigiang

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Innovation Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

SecureTech Holdings Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Fintech Private Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. FU Kwan Lun Peter

Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

UMV International Holding Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Yixiang
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years, which shall be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either the executive Director or the Company. Each of independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with
the Company for a term of three years. The appointment of each
Director is subject to the provisions of appointment and retirement
of directors under the Articles of Association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. LU
HOU Ping, Mr. LING Wai Lim and Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. HOU Ping,
Mr. LING Wai Lim and Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-elections at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE Lu and
Mr. YANG Geng, the confirmation of their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
duly reviewed the confirmation of independence of each of these
Directors. The Company considers that the independent non-
executive Directors had been independent from the date of their
appointment to 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO")),
which are required to be disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules are as follows:

Interests in Shares

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests

EEnA EEME

EENBESTHRAENER

M2020F12A31H  EEMHESTHAE
EAARSEMEEEE(EERLE AL
BIESTMEZEHRBEGRIN(EHRBERK
Bl1) EBXVER) 2G5 - RGN RES
ZHREERKE  BREETRANFEENT:

B 13 1 &=

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Company (%)

Number of securities held” Fi{EZA&D 7 #EH
FERSFHAEY BAED (%)

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman) Interest of Controlled Corporation??”

EREXRLE(ZE) XEHEE R

Beneficial owner?®
%"-\é/\(Z)(H)

Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner?
(LR @ AP
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner®
ERfREE @ AW
Mr. WU Sigiang Beneficial owner®
RBEELE 2@ AY
Mr. LING Wai Lim Beneficial owner®
& Bl BR Xm A©
Ms. LI Yijin Beneficial owner”
=5+ 2@ A
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299,759,422 shares (L) 35.96%
299,759,422 1% (L)
1,740,000 shares (L) 0.21%

1,740,0000% (L)

12,000,000 shares (L) 1.44%
12,000,000A% (L)

48,321,000 shares (L) 5.8%
48,321,000 8% (L)

725,004 shares (L) 0.09%
725,004 0% (L)

16,000 shares (L) 0.002%
16,000% (L)

2,044,000 shares (L) 0.25%
2,044,000R% (L)
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Notes:

(1

(2)

(3)

(6)
(7)

The letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company.

Mr. LU Run Ting's interests are consisted of: (i) 299,759,422 shares are held by
GIHL, which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed
to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO; and (ii)
740,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
(this scheme has expired on 3 December 2019) exercised on 29 July 2015; and
his interests in 1,000,000 shares as beneficial owner.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 300,000 shares issued by options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (this scheme has expired on
3 December 2019) exercised on 25 August 2015; and (i) 1,200,000 shares
awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme; (iii) 10,500,000 shares
transferred from GIHL (being a controlling shareholder of the Company and
wholly-owned by Chairman LU) on 10 June 2020.

Mr. LU Runyi's interests are consisted of: (i) 2,120,000 shares and 45,000,000
shares respectively transferred from GIHL (being a controlling shareholder of the
Company and wholly-owned by Chairman LU) on 20 March 2015 and 10 June
2020; (ii) 400,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (this scheme has expired on 3 December 2019) exercised on 25
August 2015; and (iii) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share
Award Scheme.

Mr. WU Sigiang’s interests are consisted of: (i) 130,000 shares as beneficial owner;
and (i) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme,
and because of the expenses caused by this scheme, 205,996 shares was deducted
on 26 November 2019 which was the final vesting date.

Mr. LING Wai Lim holds 16,000 shares as beneficial owner.

Mr. LI Yijin holds 2,044,000 shares as beneficial owner.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with any Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during
the year ended 31 December 2020 or as at 31 December 2020.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
of the Company or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended 31
December 2020, no Director had declared interests in any business
apart from the Company's business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1)
and (2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is confirmed
that the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above is/was
in force for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors when the
Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance; and has been
in force throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
respectively. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association,
subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, every Director
or other officer or auditor may be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred by
him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, which
relate to anything done or omitted to be done or alleged to have
been done or omitted to be done by him as an officer or auditor
of the Company and in which judgment is given in his favour or in
which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with any application
in which relief is granted to him by the court from liability in respect
of any such act or omission.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 34 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 243 to 248 of this
Annual Report.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares, was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year 2020.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2020 are set out in
Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 208 to
213 of this Annual Report.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to
the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by
the controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted one share option scheme and one share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the paragraph
headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 34 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements on the pages 243 to 248 of this Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year 2020.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARE CAPITAL

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to the SFO
recorded that, as at 31 December 2020, the following persons and
corporations had interests in the shares or underlying shares in the
Company:

AR RM— A B RE 8 kAR D
REEE  AHBERBEEENAGER
BE  -ARZEFENFBHN LXK
Bt 8] —BR R AFEHRPE243H £ 248E 47
BB wAM E34

R2020% 7 BIMEEREAAMS -
TERRES
RIEAD T R E H R E DI R 2B

sofft - 722020512 A31H » THIAEHMAF]
WA ANT MBI G 2 RS

Approximate
shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held™ percentage
®E EaMtE FFEEFEBAY BABRESL
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation@? 299,759,422 shares (L) 35.96%
EEELE XEHEE R 299,759,422f% (L)
Beneficial Owner(@ 1,740,000 shares (L) 0.21%
X AW 1,740,000% (L)
Ms. ZHANG lJian Spouse® 301,499,422 shares (L) 36.17%
R i (5@ 301,499,422/% (L)
Agende des participations de Interest of Controlled Corporation® 152,931,181 shares (L) 18.35%

I'Etat (“APE") SEHEEERY

Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes a person’s long position in the shares of the Company.

(2) Mr. LU Run Ting's interests are consisted of: (i) 299,759,422 shares are held by
GIHL, which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed
to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO; and (ii)
740,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
(this scheme has expired on 3 December 2019) exercised on 29 July 2015; and
his interests in 1,000,000 shares as beneficial owner.
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(3) Ms. ZHANG lJian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU’s interests in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(4) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by Gemplus
International S.A. (“GISA"”), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto. Based on the
disclosure of interests forms filled by Thales, Gemalto is owned by Thales as to
85.51% and Thales is owned by APE as to 35.68%. Therefore, APE is deemed to
be interested in GISA's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 9.7% (2019: 10.4%) and approximately
35.4% (2019: approximately 35.6%), respectively, of the Group’s
total revenue from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 14.3% (2019: approximately
15.6%) and approximately 46.5% (2019: approximately 48.0%),
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the shares of the Company in issue) had interests in any of
such suppliers and customers of the Group.
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(4) P 25 A Gemplus International S.A. ([GISA])
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEESHRE@E

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has been purchasing certain microprocessors composed
of an electronic component embedding a card operating system,
also known as IC chips (the “Gemalto IC Chips”), from Gemalto
(a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company). On 25 February 2016, the Company,
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited, Goldpac Limited
(the “Goldpac Entities”) entered into a mutual supply agreement
for a term from 1 January 2016 until 31 December 2018 (the
“Mutual Supply Agreement”) with Gemalto, pursuant to which
(i) the Goldpac Entities shall supply to Gemalto with, among
others, products such as banking card modules, cardbody and
personalisation machines, equipment, spare parts and relevant
consumables (the “Supply of Goldpac Products”); and (ii) Gemalto
shall supply to the Goldpac Entities with Gemalto IC Chips (the
“Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips”).

The Mutual Supply Agreement was not renewed upon its expiration
on 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2020, both
the actual transaction amount in respect of the Supply of Goldpac
Products and the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips amounted to RMBO.
As such transactions were and will continue to be conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms, and each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) for such transactions calculated in accordance with
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules was and is expected to continue to
be below 0.1% on an annual basis, such transactions fall within
the de minimis threshold as stipulated under Rule 14A.76(1) of
the Listing Rules and are fully exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

60 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020

FERERS

AEEBARESHER KRR EEZRE -
WIRAEARARBEALEEE T SER
ARNFRHRBRIERBET LIHFOMEESS -
NEEEREA(ERREERFSRD -
R2016F2A25H » ARF - & EHEA
RAR - @ EBRAR(AEISHESE
BDESHRIT L DEEMHEERZ (8
EHEWZE]) B8 8E2016F181HE
2018F12A31H - Bk - (Y& PIEEE S
MeHEREEZER  BEATRNIET
R R EAAL#E RE TR
HHEFMAEEEM (B EERERED MU
Rl HRGERESBETEHES R
BEEGR (S RAEREFRSHEERD -

48 H L FE 1% 3 M 20185E12 A31H B HA 14
RKFPUFEH - B E2020F 128318 1L 2 F
EreHEERBREMSHERTRELAK
ENSEHAAREOL - ENZERS
BT HEERARTEmEKR  REBA
BEEARET BYUZRXSHMERNE
— @B (BT B ERINIGIZR ETR
BIMEE14.07155TE  BA KR ERBEF
FOI%UAT MZBELXSHALEMBAE
14A76(MIEFT R EM R EREE - WHFE%
ERETR RERINE  FEEZ -
NEMBI R ENIEZNR -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that was publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float permitted under the
Listing Rules since listing of the shares of the Company on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange until the date of this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 8 February 2021, UMV
Zhuhai, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
series of VIE agreements (Note) with Zhirong.

Zhirong is a limited liability company established and subsisting under
the laws of the PRC. It was wholly owned by the PRC equity owner
and is principally engaged in the Subject Business. As advised by the
PRC legal advisers and set out below, information service platform
for the Restricted Business of the Subject Business fall within the
scope of VAT Services and Zhirong has obtained the VAT Licence
under the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC to operate the
above services.

Pursuant to VIE agreements, Zhirong shall engage UMV Zhuhai
on an exclusive basis to provide technological consultation and
services. Unless prior written consent has been obtained from UMV
Zhuhai or its designated nominee(s), Zhirong shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially adversely affect
the assets, business, personnel, obligations, rights or operation.
UMV Zhuhai shall provide a non-interest bearing loan in the sum of
RMB10,000,000 to the PRC equity owner of Zhirong, and the PRC
equity owner shall accept such loan in accordance with the loan
agreement.

According to the contractual arrangement, UMV Zhuhai can elect
or appoint persons to serve as directors (or executive directors) and
supervisors of Zhirong in accordance with the procedures prescribed
by laws, regulations and Zhirong’s articles of association, and shall
procure the election and appointment of such persons designated
by UMV Zhuhai as the chairman (if there is a board of directors),
general manager, chief financial officer and other members of the
senior management of Zhirong. UMV Zhuhai already has obtained
effective control over the finance and operation of Zhirong with no
other purchase consideration is required to be paid by UMV Zhuhai.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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Through the VIE agreements, UMV Zhuhai can control the finance
and operation of Zhirong effectively and will enjoy the entire
economic interests and benefits generated by Zhirong. Upon
entering into the VIE agreements, the financial results of Zhirong
will be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of
UMV Zhuhai and Zhirong will become an indirect subsidiary of the
Company.

Moreover, although the COVID-19 pandemic has been effectively
controlled in China by the prevention and control strategy of
“Both Imported Cases and Spreading within the City should be
Prevented”, the pandemic has brought about an impact on economic
development of China and the other parts of the world, and is
expected to last for a period of time, which may continue to have
a certain impact on the Group’s business development, but should
not constitute a significant impact.

Save as disclosed above, no material events occurred subsequent to
31 December 2020 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

Note: The VIE agreements include The Exclusive Technological Consultation and

Services Agreement, The Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement, The
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, The Equity Pledge Agreement, The Spousal
Consent Letter and The Loan Agreement.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 19 June 2020. The Board appointed
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditor of the Company with
effect from 19 June 2020 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer ‘I KESHMEKLRIGRE  BEXRR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out
in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent as
the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the "Employees Written Guidelines”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer and Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. WU Sigiang (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. LING Wai Lim (Senior Vice President)

Ms. LI Yijin (Chief Audit Executive and Company Secretary)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr. YANG Geng (Member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28
to 37 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 37 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on
the Company’s business development and daily management and
operations generally.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERFE @)

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of three
years and is subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if
their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that all Directors
appointed by the Directors, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director, shall retire at the next following general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

All Directors have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, environmental and social responsibilities, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to
the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his or her first appointment to the Board
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, each of Mr. LU Run Ting
(Chairman), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. LU Runyi, Mr. WU Sigiang, Mr. LING
Wai Lim, Ms. LI Yijin, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE Lu and Mr.
YANG Geng has read books/journals and attended relevant training
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of the
Chairman and members of each board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 02 to 04 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions, arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties, the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. YE Lu and Mr.
YANG Geng.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Remuneration of the Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration of the
senior management is listed as below by band:

TEERRE @

=% é%@ﬁ&#ﬂﬁi%TE%Eﬁl

T BESNEZEANET T MR o
= NEEE W N
REZE2020FN2A3MBIEZFE  ahE

BENFHMNIZERDOT:

Number of person

Band of remuneration ¥ 48 B AE
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 A R #500,0010 £ A R #1,000,0007C 1
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Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive
and Employees are set out in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on the pages 208 to 213 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration adjustment principle of all employees as a whole,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration.

For the vyear ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee met for one time to review and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration adjustment principle of all employees
as a whole, the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and other
related matters. Currently the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, namely, Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of Remuneration
Committee), Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin and Mr. LU Run Ting.
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Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take the Board Diversity Policy and Director Nomination Policy
into consideration, to ensure that the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high
standards of corporate governance.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
Nomination Committee should consider the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to character and integrity, qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy),
any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board, requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules, any potential contributions the
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity, and willingness and
ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of
the Board and/or Board committees of the Company.

The Nomination Committee evaluates such candidate (include any
person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company) based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee should rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable), and recommend to the Board (as
applicable).

70 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020

REZEE

REZEENIZRAEEERJESTSR
B BRALAEESRE N IS HEE
BF REFZAEREFFINEFTSR
HEZNAEBLIFATEETNB LG -

FHHESSEKE  REEZETEEE
FEERABEUALREELZ (LK - U
MREFEKELRE KBRURRAN
L A HEIEENTE  EHERE
ECHBEIENFETETREESZEN

EEERKFE -

EZERKERBEAETESRK  EERZ
BgEZERIEZZUILBE - BEAET
RN MASENE - R (BEZEER K
T« G038 R BER N R 3 I 5K S AR B A A
BUREZFENEZTCBRRMAREMRLN
ZibtAR) RENMESEKRE Z Ui
KWW ERAGTERE BB EWAHA
EFETFEEBIFNTESTNERTE - AU
R2EZLmHANATAREAZETHEER
BURIES  REANZEEERL KID
K- BUYMRENZTACAEAAES
E’EXEU{frJ/EEEEK EEBRENMER
AR EANEBITIRESS ﬁﬁ&
EEEE2ETZEENZENRE -
REMERARAR Tﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m
HihZEHAZE -

REBZEBSRE LMERFTHEZEEAE
KRR REAARARBIRERAE HIEES
EEMAL) UWATZBEARTAE
BRETEE -WBRESR—AXZEEE
MIEREA REZESREREAARN
TENEAEEANZTHES (EM) B
P ERERT THEEFSRIES
(ansE ) o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For the re-election of Director at General Meeting, the Nomination
Committee should review the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring director and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the criteria as set out above,
and make recommendation to shareholders. The Nomination
Committee will conduct regular review on the structure, size and
composition of the Board and this Policy and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

At the same time, in assessing the board composition, the
Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and
regional experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises five members
currently, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE Lu
and Mr. YANG Geng.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
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Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to
ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation
to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
race, language, cultural background, educational background, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and professional experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

72 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020

REEFEREZTILRER REZES
BELEBFRNEFTSNERE  ABLA
X - IR B AE ] R BC B AN R A A R B BLRS
LESSFLNEDRIES  UBRE
FeRF-EHENZ TR E - ERE
MAHEFGAKTE  RREZEQHS
ReFTUZTl  TEEZHETHERSE -
BRERETRRMER - Fi& Bk E5
XEBER HEES K WM& 7F
KBMEXEER -

ARAMBEREERFEANAREBHERMA
AN TtRBEEIEEN TS TEN
BERMARN(KEZSIATHR) R
EMBESREENRFET  UEER
SIEZTERNAEREARRFMELZE -

EFEeREEHIEAFENBER LT
EFENEZTLERR T THELEEL
BiE AR ELERSETEE H THER
EERGLARTENSER -

BRl  REZESER/REFSCARHN
Zrlt MEZFGMRAF LI AIFE
SEE

REZEEHEEHRIEFTENESZTT
LR UERFEFZER -

EERAEX

EEetBEBENEIGARRAESENE
EHNENETARRREREZES -

ARRRATERRERAREK > HIARTF
BRRAELRZTESFNIELA - BF -
UhEBFSEIAENEBEE  BNE
BREFEXEABIAARREHAE
M TT - EBMZITCE - TRERAR
FAEEENRBEUERERRLEEAE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board.
o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in

accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of directors and
succession planning.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. During the year ended 31 December
2020, Mr. LU Xiaozhong retired as an executive Director on 18 May
2020, and Ms. LI Yijin was appointed as an executive Director on
the same day.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
Annual Report. Ms. LI confirmed that she took no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in the year ended 31 December
2020 as required by the Listing Rules.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENZEERENEFERL#E
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

PEEE

Corporate
Information

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board ®fiEEZ2MEARENE E2020912H31
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held HIEZHFERBITHNESS  ZELCH
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the table KAXER K& HELEERN NERAR:
below:
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Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors during the year 2020.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 117 to 128 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB1,216,000 and
RMB391,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight and corporate governance role in the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group's risks, with assistant
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group's risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:
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Risk Management Framework

The Group has in place a risk management framework to effectively
identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business, financial,
operational and compliance risks. The framework enables the Group
to adopt a proactive and systematic approach to identifying and
managing risks across the organisation to evaluate risk severity and
likelihood of occurrence. The framework also sets out the procedures
of risk management and clarifies the roles and responsibilities of
various departments in relation to risk management.
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The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, the
respective operating units of the Company review and access the
status of potential risks which may impact on their ability to achieve
their business objectives and/or those of the Group, determine and
implement treatment plans where risk mitigations are actionable.
This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
internal controls continue to remain relevant, adequately address
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact the
Group's performance are appropriately identified and managed. The
system and internal controls can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they are
designed to be managed, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
40 to 45 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works to
improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace with
the changing business environment.

Internal Control

Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group's risk management and internal control system. Internal
Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure identified internal control weaknesses are communicated and
rectified effectively.

Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group's compliance, financial, procurement and operations. On
a regular basis, Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit
Committee the results of their activities during the preceding period
pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls,
and follows up the progress of rectification for control weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently in
an appropriate and transparent manner.

The Company formulated the insider information policy and regularly
reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance with
all policies regarding the insider information. The Company shall
prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the
compliance with regulatory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERFE @)

The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
Board and the Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems are effectively
implemented.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also accessed
the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put
forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made the requisition (as the
case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively of the
Companies Ordinance. The general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting must be stated in the request. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for convening a general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual General
Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor

Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Center

No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERRE @

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through Annual General Meetings and
other general meetings. At the Annual General Meeting, Directors
(or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2020, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’'s website
and the Stock Exchange's website.

82 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020

HERRNBERREEBRE

ARARRERRNBREBYEMABRE
BRI E B YRR B E KA M KRS
MR EL TR D - KARBH BB R
RBFRELEMBERAGEHBRRRTE
e ERRBFEAREGL  EF(HEKK)
SHERREMY FERRELARE -

ERXH

R2020F A KRBT EE E NG ER#E
TEMNE - ARRRFHAREZERAE
Bt PR uE AR T 4Bl EER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group (or we) prepared and released the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report 2020 (“Report”), which is in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and is based
on the Group’s actual conditions. The Report presents the Group’s
environmental and social performance in 2020. For more information
on corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance
Report” of the annual report. The Board of the Group acknowledges
its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the Report and to the
best of its knowledge that this Report addresses all material issues
and fairly presents the Group's ESG performance. The Board confirms
that it has reviewed and approved this Report.

Reporting Period and Scope

This Report supplements the remaining parts of the Group’s annual
report and discloses performance and progress on ESG issues from 1
January to 31 December 2020. The scope of this Report covers the
Company and its major subsidiaries. The information stated in this
Report was obtained from the Group’s various reports and records
of daily operations.

Feedback

The Group considers sustainable development as its imperative long-
term goal. We would highly appreciate any comments on improving
the content and information delivery of this Report. If you have any
gueries or suggestions, please feel free to contact us.

Contacts
Goldpac Group Limited

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor
Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre
No.56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2838 6202

Fax: (852) 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiIR - HERERBEE @

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Responsibility Management

As a global leader in offering smart secure payment total solutions,
the Group upholds the mission of “Make Transactions More Secure
and Convenient” and the vision of “Becoming a Trustworthy Provider
for Fintech Products and Services” to deliver embedded software,
secure payment products and Artificial Intelligence financial self-
service kiosks for customers across the world. By leveraging
innovative financial technologies, the Group provides data processing
services, system platform services and other total solutions for a
broad range of customers including finance, government, healthcare,
transportation and retail sectors.

We are the only financial technology enterprise in China, which has
passed the qualification certifications issued by six global credit card
organisations. Ensuring product quality and customer data security
are defined as our top priorities. We strive to explore and investigate
suitable corporate operational processes to cohere with the Group’s
sustainability development pattern.

The Group is committed to integrating its businesses with the
development of environment and society, pursuing a sustainable
development. We have established an effective ESG management
framework: The Board is responsible for making decisions on ESG
management policies and strategies, overseeing the implementation
of related matters and the approval of ESG reports; Management
and management representative are responsible for identifying ESG-
related risks, formulating ESG-related policies and measures, and
reporting implementation progress and feedback; employees of all
departments are the practitioners of ESG works, who implement
ESG measures into their daily practice. During the year, led by
the corporate business management department, we continued to
promote the collection and reporting of environmental and social
performance information through collaboration among various
departments, e.g. human resource department, administration
department, engineering department and etc.. Staffs at all levels fully
cooperated with sustainability management work to implement the
concept of sustainable development into practice.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Decision-making layer

RERE

Execution layer

TR

Implementation layer

Bt

To achieve environmental sustainability, the Group complies with all
related environmental laws, regulations (Appendix 1) and standards.
Starting from the energy saving, emission reduction and waste
management as key aspects, we established a series of internal
procedures and systems to help our employees properly handle the
wastes generated in the operation process. As a result, we are able
to enhance operation efficiency, reduce the negative impact on the
environment, and fully shoulder the responsibility of environmental
protection.

The Group not only abides by relevant laws and regulations relating
to employment and safety (Appendix 1), but also pays considerable
attention to employee welfare and safety, and at the same time it
devotes itself to a well-established management and training system,
offering employees a broader development space in an inclusive,
fair, safe, healthy and harmonious work environment, to realise the
talents sustainable development.

Appendix 1 presents the list including but not limited to laws and
regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant impacts on
the Group.

Stakeholder Communication and Engagement

We are grateful to every stakeholder for their support on our
growth and improvement. In order to lay a solid foundation for
the success of our sustainable development, we have made great
efforts to understand opinions suggested by stakeholders, e.g.
investors, customers, suppliers, employees, community, government
and etc.. We have established multiple communication channels for
stakeholders to deliver their comments on our ESG performance and
future policies to us.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
I& iﬁl %j: ﬁ.&kk =) $ﬁ II'E

Stakeholders

Areas of concern

Communication and engagement channels

MEAEES BEEs BERSHEHRE
Investors e Financial performance e Annual general meeting
e Business strategies e Regular disclosure on financial and
e Operation in conformance of laws and operational information
regulations and corporate governance e Investor relations management
e Sustainable development and risk control e The Group’s website
REE o MBERR e BREARE
o XIEEHEE s THEREMBELEKLRELEM
s ARKEMPEER e REEZMRER
s WNHEZRAERRER o AEEMBUL
Customers e Product and service quality e Customer service specialist
e (Client information security e Customer satisfaction survey
e Business ethics e The Group's website
e Social media, e.g. WeChat official account
zF b EDD&HEWEE s BEFRBEE
° E)E{I:l u\ i E)E/%mﬂguﬂi\
o WEREES o RNEBEHE
o MRERE  WMMEBIARIMR
Suppliers e Fair competition and dealing e Supplier site visit
e Mutual benefit and long-term cooperation e Regular assessments
e Business ethics e Continuous direct communications
HER e RFHFHERS o HERMBAZED
e BRfARERHAE o EHFE
s BME®RS s WEHEKER
Employees e Training and development e Management mailbox
e Remuneration and welfare policies e Performance assessments
e Occupational health and safety e Employee training
e Equal opportunities and culture inclusion e Internal exchange forum
BT o IFFIEIER s BRERFM
o Hr B AR A R o BEMETE
e BERELLE o BT
s FEHEHELER o NERMEKRE
Community e Fair employment and opportunities e Regular communications to pay attention to
e Environmental protection society issues and neighbourhood
e Epidemic prevention and control e Social Media, e.g. WeChat Official Account
e Community activities
#HE s RN¥MEHKE e THIEB HMIMHSR4LE
o REFERE e HREB WMBMEBEIARR
o EIFHE e HERIEF
Government e QOperation in conformance of laws and e Forums, thematic meetings, trainings
regulations e Communication with government
e Business strategies and sustainability J Regular compliance reports
Blﬁ i /El\*ﬁff‘\g% ° i@ ‘WLEE]H%: D%‘J”
e BWERBNKAIFAEN . ﬁWﬁL
s THAHRME
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We believe that proactive two-way communications with
stakeholders will help formulate business strategies better
conforming to their expectations and requirements, improve
the ability of risk forecast, strengthen crucial relationships, and
finally realise sustainable development in economies, society and
environment together.

Materiality Assessment

We identified 26 ESG issues with reference to ESG Reporting Guide,
industry-related laws and regulations, the important topics identified
by domestic and foreign industry peers, as well as the business
scope of the Group. Questionnaires and interviews were conducted
to understand the views of management and stakeholders on these
issues, and to assess the importance of these issues. The results
serve as an important basis for the preparation of this Report
and the promotion of future sustainable development efforts. The
assessment result has been reviewed and approved by the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HEREARARE @

88

Environment Protection B35 3 &

1. Usage and recycling of materials 7. Wasted water discharge and reduction measures
WRHE 8 B K B U B A A B R B 7K HE B K R BE 1B B

2. Energy consumption and saving measures 8. R&D on clean technologies and green products
BEIRBFE R BT R 1 i BB B R A% FE m B A 5T HE R

3. Usage of water resources and saving 9. Compliance with environmental laws and
measures regulations
KEIRE B R Bk BTREEREREBNR

4. Greenhouse gas emissions and reduction 10.  Protection of biodiversity
measures \ REEMEZENM
BERBHEREORBEE I

5. Wastes and their disposal 1. Concerns and responds for climate change
BEVNEENRE BE R EH RIEE (L

6. Air pollutant emissions and reduction measures
B SR, B R BB B 1 B

Employee Policy & T B %

12. Talent management policies and status 15, Internal communications
AT BB EER RB IR NEEBEBER

13.  Protection of employees occupational health and 16.  Anti-Child and Anti-Forced labour
safety REIRR®EH ST
REEEBERRELZS

14.  Employee development and training 17. Compliance with laws and regulations of
EEZREE protection of labour rights and interests

BTFHTIRREEEERER

Operation Management B& & &

18.  Guarantee the quality of products and services 22.  Compliance with industry-specific laws and
REEGERBREES regulations, and business ethics

BTIREREZALRARZBE

19. Protection of customer data and privacy 23.  Supplier status
REZFERRMEARTL HEFRMN

20.  Customer complaints dealing with and customer 24.  Supplier policies and management
satisfaction improvement HEFRERER
BEEFRAREAZEFPHERE

21.  Protection of intellectual properties and research  25.  Anti-Corruption policies and performance

outcomes

REMBEERFRAAR

REFRERRKR

Community Contribution #E&

26.

Community investment
tma
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Looking ahead, we will interact with stakeholders and review
our performance as always. We persist in taking the social and
environmental responsibilities, optimising our sustainability initiatives
and integrating our business with environmental management and
social impact to stimulate business growth.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Our commitment to upholding the highest level of business ethics
and integrity connects to what we do and we believe that it is our
competitive advantage.

Product and Service Quality

Following the quality policy “All for better meeting customer
requirements, exceeding customer expectations and improving
customer satisfaction!”, the Group pursues to achieve operational
excellence in line with the value of “Customer-oriented”. Guided
by such policy, the Group has established a quality management
system supported by a set of policy documents, e.g. Quality Manual
for Payment Products, Quality Manual for Data Processing Services
and subordinate documents. The Group has successfully renewed
the 1SO9001 Quality Management System Certificate. With the joint
efforts of all departments, our products and services are subject to
strict safety standards and comply with the requirements of relevant
laws and regulations. The Group has been granted certifications by
the six global credit card organisations.

Regarding product quality, we have established quality management
department, which is in charge of carrying out quality check during
the operating process for raw materials, goods in progress and
finished goods, in accordance with quality management system and
industry requirements. Unqualified products will be analysed and
reviewed, adjusted, improved, re-manufactured or even disposed
according to the Unqualified Products Control Procedure. In 2020,
there was no occurrence of any recall of the Group’s products sold
or delivered due to safety and health concerns.

In terms of customer service, we dedicate in offering high quality
services to our customers. For each customer, the sales staff will
design a tailored sales strategy and a customer service person will be
designated to follow up after-sale issues. Our Customer Complaint
Management Process defines the measures and procedures in
dealing with customer complaints, by which we effectively enhance
our internal management, assist customers to solve problems and
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE H2REBRE @

continuously improve customer satisfaction according to customer
suggestions. We also built a special team to record, internally
coordinate and summarise customer complaints for future reference.
Both our product quality and services have received a high appraisal
from customers. During the year, we do not find any cases about
privacy leak or significant accidents that have material effects on
the Group in terms of product quality and services.

Information Security and Privacy

The Group firmly believes that operational excellence is inseparable
from safe and reliable information management. /nformation Security
Management System Manual and its subordinate documents are
published to comprehensively define the security management
framework and information security objectives, planning, etc., and
clarify the specific security requirements of information processing.
The Group has successfully renewed ISO27001 Information Security
Management System Certificate.

The Group penetrates information security management into every
aspect of daily operations. When signing employment agreement,
employees have to sign the Confidentiality Agreement and
Competition Restriction Agreement. During daily work, no employees
are permitted to disseminate information to unauthorised persons
or outsiders without authorisation. Copying of any confidential
information is also strictly prohibited. Information security training
is carried out annually to continuously enhance employees’
security awareness. Random and regular security inspections by
industry supervision authorities, card organisations, customers and
professional institutions reassure the reliability of our service and
ensure a high standard of security management. According to the
results of annual quality and safety inspections announced by China
UnionPay, the Group was once again listed as a top performer with
exemplary performance in the assessments for our products and
services. China UnionPay security management inspections assess the
quality standards around safety management, industry compliance
and product quality for China UnionPay certified enterprises. The
inspections are carried out without prior notice of inspection time,
inspection content nor inspection team members. In this inspection,
the Group topped the list with an awarded score of over 90 (out
of 100 points). This result is a testament to the fact that we have
always been committed to providing customers with products and
services of the highest standards in safety and quality. The Group
ranked first in the 2018 inspections, so we were exempted from the
2019 inspections.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For independent intellectual property, the Group has developed
Intellectual Property Management Manual and other relevant
procedures to clarify intellectual property management principles and
objectives, and standardise the management of existing information
assets and intellectual property rights. The Group successfully
obtained the /Intellectual Property Management System Certification
in 2019, indicating that we have established a scientific, systematic
and institutionalised intellectual property management system which
will help us further promote independent innovation and enhance
our core competitiveness.

In May 2020, the Group successfully passed the certification of 1SO/
IEC20000 IT Service Management System, which marks that our
information technology service management system has reached
international standards, and the standardisation level of information
technology service management has entered the advanced level of
the industry. This not only lays a solid foundation for our further
improvement in IT management and risk prevention in the field of
smart kiosks, but also provides a strong guarantee for our continuous
operation and steady development.

Product Innovation

Upholding the core values of “Virtue, Innovation, Efficiency,
Cooperation”, the Group closely follows the pace of market
developments and customer needs to continuously strengthen its
technological innovation to build excellent quality. We continue
to promote the diversified innovative development of payment
methods, actively expanding in the fields of mobile payment, Internet
of Things, smart wearable devices, smart life, smart city and etc.. Our
innovative payment products, such as Bluetooth card and QR code
payment solutions, have won high praise from the market. We also
actively engage in technology exchange and cooperation with the
world’s top universities, world-leading security technology companies
and chip manufacturers. Since the launch of Goldpac and Tsinghua
Unigroup’s EMV product based on the China chip in 2018, the two
sides have recently developed a smart card operating system with
fully independent and proprietary technology. The operating system
not only has the advantages of high reliability and high performance
of Native platforms, but also has the flexibility for multi-application
expansion. Independent development is a core competitiveness
advantage. The Group will continue to steadily promote the research,
development and application of independent controllable technology
to help the financial sector build an independent controllable
technology system.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE H2REBRE @

As a trusted financial technology service provider, with the view
of the development trend of “contact-free” social and economic
form, the Group has integrated artificial intelligence, biometric
authentication, cloud computing and other emerging technologies
to empower the card issuing scenario with technical innovation.
We have launched a series of smart self-service kiosk solutions,
through the optimisation and reengineering of customer business
process, to effectively improve the efficiency of bank branch business
processing, greatly improve the experience of end customers, and
help banks seize retail customers. The Group's smart self-service
kiosks are increasingly popular in the market, which not only
reflects the Group has among the domestic mainstream of smart
self-service kiosks manufacturers with its self-developed products,
but also once again shows that the Group's leading technology
research and development capacities and high quality services are
fully recognised by our customers such as government agencies
and commercial banks. The Group's first-mover advantage in brand
influence, key technologies, solutions, and industry coverage is
increasingly apparent. Adhering to the development and innovation
of technology and product, the Group gradually increases its R&D
investment in the field of independent controlling and data security
to strive for more domestic substitutes for the hardware and
software of secure payment products and smart self-service kiosks,
promoting the application of artificial intelligence, independent
controllable technologies in the financial sector. In addition, the
Group also provides comprehensive creative solutions for core
enterprises, including content enablement, creative development,
resource integration, IP incubation, market promotion, business
innovation and other one-stop solutions to meet the needs of
enterprises for personalised products, and to help customers achieve
profit growth.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In October 2020, the Group and China Post Group Corporation
signed a framework agreement on cooperation. The two sides
will establish a long-term partnership through complementary
advantages, resource sharing, and cooperate deeply in scientific
and technological innovation, products and services, delivery
logistics, financial business, postal business and so on, so as to
jointly provide favourable conditions and environment for scientific
and technological innovation and achieve further development.
During the year, the “Financial Digital Development Alliance”,
comprising 202 financial institutions in the field of banking and
adjacent industry bodies, was formally established. As one of the
leading representative enterprises in the area of financial science
and technology innovation in China, the Group participated in
the launch of the alliance together with China UnionPay Data and
major domestic financial institutions. “Financial Digital Development
Alliance” aims at links building, cross-border integration, co-
construction and sharing, industry enablement, and inclusive services
providing. The alliance will consolidate the strength of industry,
education and research, as well as apply scientific and technological
innovation to promote the digital transformation of the financial
industry, promoting the formation of an open, cooperative and win-
win digital financial industry ecosystem.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of business
ethics in terms of information disclosure, integrity and accountability.
The code of conduct to prevent corruption has been set out in Staff
Manual to enhance self-discipline among employees. Our Anti-fFraud
Reporting Management System strictly manages our businesses with
all business partners, including our customers, suppliers, creditors
and debtors. We encourage employee reporting on any suspected
behaviours against policies and protect the whistleblowers against
any punishment due to his/her accurate report. The whistleblowers’
identities are strictly kept confidential unless it is necessary for
investigation, malicious reporting or required by relevant laws and
regulations. We treat with and fight against fraud and bribery in
any forms such as cash or gifts seriously.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiIR - HERERBEE @

Whistleblowers can report to the Chairman of the Group’s audit
committee or to the Chairman of the Board. Materials will be
forwarded to the other audit committee members for internal
investigation or to other department for investigations if it is in line
with the best interests of the Group. Regular evaluations on our
management system ensure the compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations and their effectiveness. During the year, the Group
did not notice any issues relating to bribery, blackmail, fraud, money
laundering or any misconduct which may have a material impact on
the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that effective management on suppliers and
good cooperation with suppliers will help us reduce costs and
cooperation risks, improve the quality of products and services, and
build up an excellent brand. As such, we have developed Supplier
Evaluation and Control Procedures to ensure that all the Group's
suppliers possess adequate capacity and are able to maintain
suitable and reliable quality. Initial assessment on new suppliers and
annual assessments on existing suppliers are conducted to assess
their performance from multiple perspectives, including quality,
delivery, cost, environment, safety management and etc.. After each
assessment, we issue the corresponding evaluation reports and
update the list of qualified suppliers, so as to provide reference for
screening suppliers. According to Risk Management Procedures, the
Group regularly conducts supply chain risks assessment, evaluating
the possibility and severity of related environmental and social risk
events, and formulates and implements management measures
to proactively control related risks. For example, we will assess
suppliers’ environment-related certifications and their practices in
environmental and safety management. In addition to consideration
of reasonable price, environmental and health considerations will
also be taken into account in the procurement review. We will keep
building healthy relationships with supplies, achieving a win-win
result and mutual growth.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Our main principles in environmental sustainability are to diminish
consumption of materials and energy and optimise waste
management, achieving the “energy saving and emission reduction”
goal; and to reduce negative influence on eco-environment, creating
an eco-friendly enterprise.

In addition to seeking business growth by providing high quality
and high class techniques, products and services to customers, the
Group, as a trusted financial technology service provider, always
concerns environmental management to mitigate negative influence
on eco-environment through operational excellence. The Group’s
major impacts to the environment were mainly resulted from
the energy consumption and emissions caused by the operation
processes of smart secure payment products. Through risk control
and measures on minimising resource usage, we will continue to
monitor the impacts on the human being and the environment. The
Group has strictly abided by all relevant environmental laws and
regulations in Mainland China and Hong Kong. During 2020, we
were not aware of any practices or issues caused by environmental
problems may significantly influence the environment or the Group.

Guided by standards under the [1SO14001 Environmental
Management System and referring to environmental factors, the
Group has established an environmental management system
in which Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual provides the general guidelines and other
subordinate documents describe the implementation details, in order
to make best utilisation of raw materials and resources and to reduce
pollution, eventually realising the sustainable development goal.
In addition, management designates environmental management
representative to communicate with stakeholders and understand
their opinions, to confirm environmental management plans
and internal approval, and to report to the CEO to ensure the
environmental management system functions well.

RE HEREBRBRE @

REEHE

B YERBEFIEFEFEEEEYEFE -
BRI B PF A1 L E L REREE
ERTREE  BIERERMELE £
HEPREAIFEZERNEZRA -

AEBEEREREENS BB RS EH#
BERIHIEBARERR  /EP
REHEEERM - —REREREHRE -
BRHAEIREEE BEFUMNELR
BEHERRENEMTE - AEEHIRR
PEANFERERERNBERERERDH
ELf ITEXREEELTEXNERNES
BAZ o 3B E b R F 12 I A0 B R R &)
bl BPSEERELBREHRITNR
ANBNFE  AEERTHEABMEL
FME R IR BOREIA MR - 20205 - A H
WEBBRBEMYRE > AERRERE
MUAKREEXNEAZTENTS -

REEISO400IRIREREBRIZEARSE
M 2RBRBREEAEEEEYTNCGREME
ERFELTL2EEFMALEE L B
AEMEZRNHEAEHRMBEMNIREEIEE
R BAOARTHERRERMBFER - B
ERUNERUBEZREMNBEZE - 4
EEEZREREEEANER  BNZHEBS
RIFER BRBREETEFTE RETRI
B WHERRTEERMEEIE - U
BRERREERAFASUEREE -

SHEUARLRRERAA —T=-TFFH 5

Corporate
Information
gy

Financial

Highlights

2020
Major Events
20204F K E &

=

Chairman'’s
Statement
EE R

R

% i i

Management Discussion
and Analysis
EEEN

mEERE

Directors and Senior
Management
=

EER

Report of
Directors
EEgRE

EEARE

Corporate Governance
Report

CHERER

)
o
=

_‘m

RS
c g
2]
EQ
=
6o
£c
S ®
S
o
‘O
S)
A

B

B 75 4R 4

Financial
Statements



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE H2REBRE @

Stakeholder Programs Internal
communication confirmation approval
k= isl bl TR MEREL

-

To maximise the value of stakeholders, the Group integrates
environmental protection concepts with its business to realise the
vision of environmental friendly and a harmonious development
mode between economy and environment.

Resources Consumption

It is one of the national strategies to build a resource-economic
society when implementing the scientific outlook on development.
The Group actively responds to the call of the government by
complying with environmental laws and regulations and continuously
monitoring the resources consumption.

The Group’s energy consumptions are mainly due to electricity
usage in operation facilities and office activities, fuels used by
automobiles, and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) consumed by
cooking stoves. We have strengthened the management of resource
usage by a series of management procedures, such as Energy and
Resource Consumption Control Procedures, Regulations on Electricity
Consumption, and Regulations on Automobile Safety. We make
timely adjustments to the supply and usage of electricity including
lighting system, air conditioning system, ventilating and operation
facilities. We analyse the energy efficiency based on the collected
data and computed statistics. If any exceptions are noted, necessary
improvements will be carried out. In order to achieve “energy saving
and emission reduction” goal, we have enforced a series of control
measures to improve the energy efficiency:

J Electrical engineers should be qualified to guarantee an
effective allocation and management of electricity to avoid
waste;

o Electrical facilities shall be switched on and off timely by the
person in charge designated by each department. Electrical
facilities shall be at closed state when no one is present;

o Carrying out energy saving projects, such as air pressure
system improvement, installation of central dust collection
system, using energy-saving lamps in the workshop, and using
energy efficient stoves in the canteen;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

e Carrying out regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to o  EHFHBRENLRE  REBLAHK .
maintain engine efficiency and reduce fuel waste; M HAOERE géq
8 E g
Sg«
. Public transportation is recommended; . HEEEIHTEEEEQAHARAT _
. Using teleconferencing instead of business travel whenever e RAUEEAEEEAERREAHIK -7
possible. 17

Our operation activities do not involve massive water usage. Our
water consumption is mainly from daily office and life activities.
Our water source is municipal water supply and we do not face any
problem or risk in accessing sufficient water source. Administration
department and engineering department are responsible for daily
management and control of water consumption, collecting and
analysing monthly consumption figures, advocating water-saving
information to employees to improve their water-saving awareness.
Timely renewal and transformation of water pipes are carried out
to avoid water leakage caused by pipe rupture. We also replace
traditional faucets with time-lapse faucets to reduce waste of water.

In addition, the Group also established OA system to promote
paperless office, achieving paperless operation of office processes
such as document release and process approval. Double-sided or
multi-page printing is encouraged to reduce paper waste.
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Emissions Reduction

In order to effectively reduce the emission of various pollutants,
the Group on one hand strictly complies with applicable laws
and regulations; on the other hand, specific pollution preventing
procedures have been formulated to standardise pollutant emission
processes from business operations and office activities, and to
control the discharge and release of exhaust air, greenhouse gas,
sewage and noise.

Each department is responsible for the control and prevention
of the possible water, air and noise pollutions generated during
their operation and office activities. Engineering department takes
the responsibility of regular maintenance and management of the
equipments. Quality management department works together with
qualified testing organisations to monitor pollutions. They will
compare the testing results with standards set by relevant laws
and regulations and report to the environmental management
representative. Once any inconformity is noted, departments involved
have to investigate and solve the problem in accordance with
Corrective and Preventive Measures Control Procedures, and then
propose improvement measures.

In 2020, independent testing organisation has tested the quality of
noise, sewage and exhaust air in the Group’s main operation and
office place, Goldpac Tech Park located in Zhuhai. It indicates a
qualified result when comparing with relevant national standards or
local standards in Guangdong Province.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The main sources of the Group’s exhaust air emission come from
fuel combustion, vehicle exhaust and volatile organic compounds
("VOCs") during operating processes. Based on the Group’s records
on fuel and vehicles usage, we calculate and convert the amount
of air pollutant emissions as presented below:

RE HEREARBRE @)

AEBERBRRFEBRRIESNHME A
ERERAMELBRTFELNEEEAHEY
(TvOCs)) » |RIFEA KB R EFH Y E
BhR - RAMELREHRAEELENER
SRR E - SR

Air pollutants Unit Total
BREEY B B
Sulfur oxides (SOx) KG 0.1
1 A1k ¥ (SOx) N
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) KG 18
A A1t (NOx) N
Particulate matter (PM) KG 1
&KLY (PM) N
Note: The above figures' calculation methods and relevant emission factors refer — /77 : A EHEMENE R AREBEREEH S

to How to Prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Group’s operation and office activities, such as fuel combustion,
electricity consumption and vehicle fuel usage, lead to both direct
and indirect carbon emissions. We encourage low-carbon office
activities, e.g. using clean energy and energy-saving equipments,
saving electricity, reducing paper consumption, taking public
transportations, having teleconferencing as an alternative to business
travel and etc.. The emissions of greenhouse gases during the
reporting period are presented as below:

Scope of greenhouse gas

ERBBMERZMBETHCNEERBRE - 1L
BRERRE MG REBREBIERE
WIEs) -

AEBOEEEBNRE - RBIRE
B AEMRMERS  §EERAH
BELERER - RSB ERB 20T
& PlanE RBREEIRMEDEE R - £1A

TRAOBEERE  HEERAERE
1T FBARERERREASZAEEHK
BKiT%E - RBEHANEERBERBR
WRRIR

(CO,e) emissions Unit Total Intensity Unit Intensity
BERB(CHEILRER)

B & E BN wme BREEN RE
Scope |: direct emission Tonne 89 Tonne/RMB Million revenue 0.1
HE—BEEHEW A W ARBEBEERA
Scope II: indirect emission Tonne 10,312 Tonne/RMB Million revenue 8
#E: HEER A WEAREBERA
Note: The above figures' calculation methods and relevant emission factors refer — A77#: DA EHEMERTER A RBBEBEREE T2

to How to Prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the latest
emission factors of China’s regional power grid for 2019 released by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

ERBM ARG ETHCNAEEFRSE 4
EREARE PSR RE R EREIZE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiIR - HERERBEE @

In terms of exhaust gas emission, our goal is to ensure the quality
of exhaust gas satisfies relevant emission standards and achieve
“energy saving and emission reduction”, thus we have developed a
series of control measures:

o Upgrading VOCs exhaust gas processing system, the processing
efficiency increase by 40%. Specifically, the device has the
capacity to filter tiny PMs and VOCs are absorbed by activated
carbon. After desorption and catalytic combustion, VOCs are
finally decomposed into non-hazardous gases and water, and
then discharged into the atmosphere. The desorbed adsorption
material can be reused for adsorption after cooling. There is
online monitoring over the operation of this control system.
If any abnormality, the automatic system will give an early
warning alarm.

o Gradually replacing the high-VOCs printing ink by eco-friendly
UV ink.

o After entering the Tech Park, vehicles must stop and turn off
the engine to reduce exhaust emissions.

o Adopting advanced technologies and processes, which reduce
errors and wastes, and improve efficiencies.

The Group has been treating sewage and effluent according to
wastewater treatment plan made in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to mitigate the impacts on the environment. The
Zhuhai Fintech Center currently under construction is designed with
wastewater treatment facilities, which can handle wasted water from
kitchens and toilets and industry organic wasted water.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

Waste management is another key focus for the Group’s
environmental management. Under the requirements set out in
relevant laws and regulations, we publish Waste Disposal Control
Procedures which manages the generation, storage, marking and
disposal of wastes, to pursue wastes deduction in operation activities
and to prevent and lower the negative impacts on environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We compile a detailed list of wastes annually to conduct a
comprehensive review on the waste production and treatment and
submit it to environmental management representative for approval.
Wastes are classified into non-hazardous wastes and hazardous
wastes, while the non-hazardous wastes are further classified into
non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes and recyclable non-hazardous
wastes. Through collaboration among departments, specific waste
management is designed to each type of waste according to
their classifications. Departments where the wastes are generated
accounts for collection and storage. Administration department is
responsible to contact qualified waste management contractors for
treatment and final disposal of recyclable non-hazardous wastes
and hazardous wastes. For non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes,
they are disposed with the assistance of the municipal sanitation
department contacted by administration department.

RE HERERFF @
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiIR - HERERBEE @

During reporting period, the Group’s wastes are mainly recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, e.g. leftover materials, wasted packaging
materials, wasted paper and etc.. Hazardous wastes, mainly from
printing process, account for only a small part of total wastes.
Our waste management system allows most of the materials to be
recycled so that environmental impacts were significantly reduced.
Wastes-related figures during the reporting period are presented as
below:

RAREHAN  ASEBEEDETE AL
W—REEY TELFEDHEARN  E
ENBREDH  BERARES  TREE
MRIEEEMEEN— /D  FEXRE
EmiR - BMHNEEYEIERTEKE
DR ABIRA A - EEHREHIERE
MEETEE RREPBRNEEDEBEE
IR

Waste type Unit Total Intensity Unit Intensity
BEEYESR BN mE BREBN RE
Wasted ink Tonne 21 KG/RMB Million revenue 16
[ i 2 A DT/AREBERA
Developer/fixative Tonne 9 KG/RMB Million revenue 7
solution A DR/ AREBERA
B ERER
Hazardous wastes Wasted rags ahd Tonne 21 KG/RMB Milljon revenue 17
oS Y Ag\loves with ink A AR/ AREBERA
B SHMERERM - FE
Wasted empty barrel Tonne 7 KG/RMB Million revenue 5
JE% ZE TR A DT/AREBERA
Others (eg. Used Tonne 5 KG/RMB Million revenue 4
activated carbon) A A/ AREBERA
Hofh(REE MR %
Recyclable Tonne 217 KG/RMB Million revenue 169
Non-hazardous wastes ] @] & i A/ AREBERA
—REEY Non-recyclable Tonne 15 KG/RMB Miillion revenue 11
8] [B] 4 M4 DT/AREBBEBRA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In our operation process, packaging materials are mainly composed
of paper boxes, paper carton boxes, tags, tapes and fillers. These
materials are necessary to prevent the smart secure payment
products from any damage. Packing materials are strictly forbidden
to be discarded randomly, and are regularly recycled by professional
companies. During the year, the usage of fillers significantly reduced
due to the optimisation of packaging.

‘ ?j:%& ﬁﬂ:(nﬂ

B 15

BMECRETRANBEYHEZRRE
e HE B8 B EHRYDE B
RRETHELEINEREITBEBENN
E”%% BEYHBREEEER A8
BENRNRETTHOWER - KFER - @
BECBERN  ExDOERBERABR

o

=

Packaging type Unit Total Intensity Unit Intensity
BEMBER By Hmy BEEN RE
Paper box Unit 1,798,325 Unit/RMB Million revenue 1,403
w= 12l B/ AREABERA

Paper carton box Unit 197,077 Unit/RMB Million revenue 154
AR 1&l B/ AREABERA

Tag Piece 5,536,415 Piece/RMB Million revenue 4,319
3 i KAAREBEBERA

Tape Roll 42,983 Roll/RMB Million revenue 34
B4R 5 H/AREBEEBERA

Filler Piece 355,600 Piece/RMB Million revenue 277
EHEY i KAAREBETERA

Green Product BREEM

We are committed to the innovation and development of green ZA&EEHHHEGKECE RIS  TIRFEE
products, realising green operation of smart secure payment SfTEMMLGBIES - RAFER - HFIE

products. During the year, we continuously invested in eco-friendly
cards with better decomposable materials which can reduce
environmental impacts during the product life cycle. We also
integrate the concept of environmental protection into the product
design to convey its importance to our customers.

Concerns and Responds for Climate Change

The Group is also concerned with climate change related issues
and constantly evaluates the risk of climate change on our business
operations. These risks are mainly related to the impact of extreme
weather events (such as super typhoons, floods, etc) on the
continuity of our business. Through Business Continuity Management
Procedure, we developed business continuity plans for the events of
non-destructive and destructive natural disasters to ensure that our
business can continue to operate and provide uninterrupted service
to our customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE HEREBRBRE @

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

Employees are critical support to our on-going development. We
treat our people well to bring mutual advancement. The Group’s
operations also need to cooperate with the community. Thus, we
proactively contribute to the community and endeavour for mutual
prosperity.

Recruitment Policy

The Group issues Human Resource Management Procedure and
Staff Manual to stipulate in detail the recruitment requirements and
procedures. Under the principle of being open, fair and just and
merit-based selection, we treat every candidate equally regardless
of their race, ethnicity, colour, religion, gender, age, region, marital
status or disability. However, child labour is strictly prohibited.
Candidates need to pass rigorous written tests and interviews in
order to obtain the offer. Besides specific professional skills and
working capabilities, candidates should be honest, possess a correct
working attitude and a high professional dedication and comply with
laws, regulations and ethics. Similarly, procedures for termination
or cancellation of employment also follow the requirements and
procedures stated in the above documents. The Group treasures
every staff, pays attention to staff mind and takes action to retain
talents as early as possible.

The Group’s employment policies comply with all relevant labour
laws and regulations at each operation location. During the year,
the Group observed no violations of any applicable labour laws and
regulations including child labour and forced labour issues.

Employee Benefits

Achievements of the Group are attributable to the hard-working
of all employees. Therefore, we consider humanistic care being
important by creating an enjoyable working environment and
providing sound payment and harmonious working atmosphere.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remunerations are determined and adjusted based on factors
including economic conditions, personal experience, performance
assessment and operational results. To motivate employees at every
level to fully reach their potentials, in addition to basic salaries, we
also offer bonuses, allowances, option plans and other benefits.
Employees are entitled to paid leaves, including but not limited to
annual leave, overtime leave, marital leave and maternity leave, as
stated in applicable laws of their working places. Working hours
also complies with local laws and regulation, as well as the industry
norms. Forced labour is prevented within the Group, while legal
and reasonable subsidies will be provided to voluntary overtime and
special positions.

Statutory benefits are offered to employees under the requirements
of local laws and regulations. Such benefits include insurances
and paying entity’s section of accumulation funds on time. The
Group also arranges physical examinations for all staff every year.
The physical examinations of 2020 have been postponed due to
the epidemic. The group companies convey policies about settling
down in local household to employees and support them on
such issue. Furthermore, the Group distributes festival gifts and
organised various staff activities to enhance the sense of belonging
of employees.

Goldpac’s Parents-child Activities

& HBERFIEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiIR - HERERBEE @

Development and Training

The Group emphasises on employee performance and development,
and is committed to enhancing their knowledge and skills. We
encourage and motivate skills and knowledge improvement so as
to offer better products and services to our customers. Training
Management Procedures defines the types of trainings and
standardises the ways and processes of training participation.
Comprehensive internal and external trainings are provided. Internal
trainings include compulsory orientation, job skills training, fire safety
training, improvement training, information security training and etc,;
while external trainings include meetings, courses offered by various
institutions and organisations. Training allowances are provided
accordingly. Due to the impact of the epidemic, this year’s trainings,
such as safety awareness training, business secret training, sales
training, “quality month” activities and etc., were held in various
ways including online and offline. Trainees are evaluated at the end
of the training to ensure the effectiveness.

CMMI Training
CMMI 55 3

Technical Training

Al 55 3

According to Management Method of Performance Appraisal,
employees are assessed on a regular basis, that is, performance
appraisal, to review their work progress, quality and effectiveness, so
as to set further improvement plans and better goals in the future.
Performance appraisals are carried out every month, quarter and
year and its contents should be specific and quantified. The results
serve as a vital reference in deciding salary, promotion and training
opportunities, as well as a platform to strengthen communications
between department and employees. In addition, benefiting from
a complete promotion procedure, the Group’s management team
is able to improve its overall quality and competence. A broader
platform could be provided to qualified employees through
comprehensive assessments under the principles of being open, fair
and just. Meanwhile, the Group becomes energetic with positive
competitions which also lay a good foundation of greater progresses
in the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group is committed to investing continuously in occupational
health and safety. The Group has obtained OHSAS18001 (upgraded
to 1SO45001) Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Certificate since 2012, and has successfully renewed the certificate.
The Group issues Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual as a general policy, together with other
subordinated documents as specific procedures. Our occupational
health and safety related policy complies with all applicable
laws, regulations and standards, aiming to improve the Group’s
management on occupational health and safety, manage risks and
mitigate the operational impacts on employees and create a safe
and harmonious environment.

We encourage employees to engage in the management of
occupational health and safety and work together to establish a safe
workplace. The Group has appointed the management representative
to implement the specific management work of occupational health
and safety. Employee representatives are also selected to act as
a communication bridge with management to reflect employees’
opinions about matters related to occupational health and safety. In
addition, there are regular internal monitors by quality management
team to ensure the effectiveness and compliance of the health and
safety management system, operational controls and emergency
preparation control procedures. To promote occupational health and
safety education, the Group strictly implements employee safety
training.

There was no work-related fatality occurred in 2020. Facing the
epidemic, the Group responded quickly, and effectively protected
the health and safety of employees via making detailed prevention
and control plans, providing epidemic prevention guidelines to
employees, purchasing and distributing protective tools, and strictly
disinfecting operation and office sites.

RE HEREBRBRE @

BEREREZZE

REBBRONBERLABERERREZ 2
E2012F 8 AEEEBSWE KX EH
OHSAS18001 (3R B FH 41 A1S045001) B 2 62
BEL2EEBEARE Bl XNEEES
TCRENBERRELZ2EEFMIEAR
MIEBH ST WARERIE T 2R XHFIEARA
BIEERERF - HMABEXERBEET2HER
EERTHEANEAEREIRRZE  BeX
EEBERELEEEKFE  EHIW R
ZERBEHEINTE flE—@LE -
MEHIRIE -

BMBET2BREXREMNZE2EERET
tE ARZELEZNTESH - AKECD
ERERERRBERTABNBERR
HLerEETHE - EREINR  FRA
EEEABNBR RMRETIUBERR
Z2HBEENER - B BEFE/ND
ATEMRARABER  AERRLEE
BER BTEH BREFEZHEFN
BREMERBR [SEDBEEEL S
UE AKEBBATEILR2EI -

B2020F  AEBITERERA T KRS
e -TEHRE AEELERE  BFY
EHIFTHIE R BB THETHRIED S
Il B IRBEREGETR WES
REFETEREESEER  UEA MR
ETETHRELZR -

SHEUARLRRERAA —T=-TFFH 10/

PEEE

Corporate
Information

2020 inancial
Highlights

Major Events
20204F K E &

=

Chairman'’s
Statement
EE R

2 8 i i 2 5 97

Management Discussion
and Analysis
&

Directors and Senior
Management
EERDATER

Report of
Directors
EEgRE

Corporate Governance
p

CHERER

)
o
=

_‘m

RS
c g
2]
EQ
=
6o
£c
S ®
S
o
‘O
S)
A

B

B 75 4R 4

Financial
Statements



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiIR - HERERBEE @

Community Investment

The Group is committed to growing together with the community.
We understand the importance of community engagement and
encourage our employees to participate in charity and donation
activities to strengthen our relationship with the local community.
As the pilot project and an important part of T..O CITY planning,
Zhuhai Fintech Center is scheduled to be operational in 2021.
Zhuhai Fintech Center aims to build a highland and ecosystem for
fintech innovation in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, gathering fintech innovation enterprises, projects, funds
and talents, and to make positive contributions to the development
of the fintech industry in the Greater Bay Area. In addition, the
Group established partnerships with domestic universities to support
educational programs, offering training programs and venues; and
support research activities such as “A closer look at listed company”
to promote the employment of fresh graduates. During the epidemic
period, the Group actively cooperated with epidemic prevention and
control works of the local communities, undertook the epidemic
prevention responsibility, and performed well in epidemic prevention
and investigation.

By leveraging our experience and expertise, we offer supports in
a wide range of areas in infrastructure construction, technology
development, education, and etc., fostering the development of the
community and giving back to our society.

Xiangzhou Talent Week

EMEAT S B A RAEZTAE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERERBE@

ESG CONTENT INDEX ESG¥E & A B &3
KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks SEY
BRENER ERBAERXZESGHREEIIER -
A. Environmental ; i
A. RIE
Aspect A1 Emissions g@;
BEAT BB 52X
General disclosure Information on: Environmental =g
(@) the policies; and Management o
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that Emissions Reduction ééf‘é
have a significant impact on the issuer Waste Reduction and E%E
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges Recycling o
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and Appendix 1 5
non-hazardous waste. 2 ff
— MR EHEBERIMORERBEENR MAKERIHEES BER REERE 834
BEREVNEESFH: A BER 3l
@@ B=E:& (CE=9:9:3 X
(b) BFHBTAGERTENHBEERAONER - K8 5 @
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions Reduction %ﬁg
HERUY) & KR N AR R BE R BRR o A BER géﬁg
> SIE
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where Emissions Reduction §§@
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per 5 ™
facility) u
BERBASNEUHABE)R(MERERE(WAEE RBAHEK ;éﬁ
BB TERMEE) - S 2y
=
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Reduction and g
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Recycling é 4
facility). égiﬁ
FELEERRVAE(ASHE)RMEMTE (WU BEAE s Sie
SEEEN - SAEREFE) - g «
S
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Reduction and )
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Recycling " E;E
facility). £ 5
FELEEEEYRE (B E)R(NER) RE WM BERE Eo
BEEEM  FAREFEHE) - Zim
T
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results  Emissions Reduction
achieved. 5 i
HIUREHFRENEERAEERR - A BER SEE

SHEARLRERAT —E=-FFH 109



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RiIR - HERERBEE @

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

BEREVER ERBEXFMESGHREESIER BB

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes ~ Waste Reduction and
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. Recycling
HUAEREERESEEYN T L REELSENEKR BRBE
KPTSRR -

Aspect A2 Use of resources

BEA2 BEIREA

General disclosure

—RWE

KPI' A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI' A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.5

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BERERERBIEREIR KEEAMRME)OEE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
REMNES>MEER SEEER(NE - Rdoh) B
EUTEFERFAEIREE(WAGESEN  BER
M E) o

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BEKENTEWMUSEEBEN  BERETE) -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

R BERE AR R T8 M ER -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

R SREGE BKR R BERIEE - A REFTAKER
FTEIRFIIGARR -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
SRmABREMENEE (UBETE) R(WMER) 84
EBMEE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - HEEKER

& ()

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
HREAXER ERBEXFESGHREESIER 3
Aspect A3 The environment and natural resources

EmEmA3 BERARER

General disclosure

—REE

KPI' A3.1

B. Social
B. &
Aspect B1
fE mB1

General disclosure

—BRE

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BEETAHRERAAERENERTENERR -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.

MM EBEHHRERRAARAERNEAZEZRERRE
BEETENTE -

Employment and Labour Practices

BREREIER

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

AT GRE BEREA IHERH RE - FF

e Zat REBEUREMFEREN:

@ BHE:R

(b) BFHBETAEERTENHBEZELAMNNELR -

SHEARLRERAT —S=sFFHK 1]
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Appendix 1
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HE8RERBRE®@m

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BEREVER ERBEXFMESGHREESIER BB
Aspect B2 Health and safety

[ mB2 RERZZ

General disclosure

—REE

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.3

Aspect B3
fEmB3

General disclosure
— B E
Aspect B4
JEHEB4

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FARFEZ2TEREARERER2BELEEN:

(@ M=E:K&

(b) BFHBETAGERTENHBEELRONNEL -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
B T BB R BT A SR b o

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

B PIRANBERRERL2EE  URBERITRE
BFIA e

Development and training
BRREI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
EFHARAEEBITIEBRENMB R RENEEK -
EIESR o

Labour standards

IR

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

FEPIEET kb4 I :

@ Bx R

(b)y BEFHBETABEATZENHBEEZLRNNELR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE - HERE

ﬁﬂ:(nﬂ

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

BREVER ERBAERXEESGHRERSIER BB

Aspect B5 Supply chain management

[ HE B5 @ EE

General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the  Supply Chain
supply chain. Management

—RIKE ERMEEENIRE R G R R BR HEEER

Aspect B6 Product responsibility

f€ EI B6 EmEE

General disclosure

— BB

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

FAFMRHERNRENEREZSY B  REEN

BEEUARER T AN

() LBZ% 953

(b) TFTHETABERTZZ2NHEBEARRANEL -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.

EENEE o AR B R 2 A BR R R TR B 28 3 I A
B e

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
M ERGERREBNBEEFTHANED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HiEEREREREREKES -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.
HMHBEERRERLEBEE  UREEHNTRER
FE e

EHEEZZRAERAA

Product and Service

Quality

Information Security
and Privacy
Appendix 1
EmkREES
EEREREML
Bt 8% 1

Product and Service
Quality
EnkREEs

Product Innovation
E Bl

Product and Service
Quality
EnkRiEEs

Information Security
and Privacy
EEZ 2 RER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE #8REABRE@®

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BEREVER ERBEXFMESGHREESIER BB
Aspect B7 Anti-Corruption

f& E B7 R&ES

General disclosure

—REE

KPI B7.2

Aspect B8
[E mBS8

General disclosure

—REE

KPI B8.1

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

@ HBxE: &
(b) BTFYUBRTABEATEMNEBEERNRBHNER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
M HEENRBRETF URBABRTRERAE -

Community Investment

HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
FRALMR2ERBEREEMELERTEMERALER
EBEERTEN AR -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEREB(NHE BREFHEH HIFK BER X
It 87)-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

APPENDIX 1 LIST OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS WITH SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE GROUP

The following table presents the list including but not limited to
the laws and regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant
impacts on the Group.

GENERAL

Constitution of the PRC

General Principles of the Civil Law of PRC

The Criminal Law of the PRC

Contract Law of the PRC

Company Law of the PRC

PRC tax laws

The Basic Law of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region of the PRC

Companies Ordinance

Inland Revenue Ordinance

LISTING

Listing Rules
Securities and Futures Ordinance

OPERATION ISSUES

Information security and privacy

Guidelines for the Supervision of Information Technology
Outsourcing Risks in Banking and Financial Institutions

Guidelines for the Administration of Outsourcing Risks in Banking
and Financial Institutions

Cybersecurity Law of the PRC

Intellectual property laws

Card organisation

Rules and guidelines on the qualification certifications, quality control
certifications, security management for product manufacturing and
personalisation enterprises

PCI Card Production Physical Security Requirements

PCI Card Production Logical Security Requirements
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE HEREARABE @

Product and service quality

The Work Safety Law of the PRC

The Product Quality Law of the PRC

Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of Production License
for Industrial Products

Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes

Anti-corruption

Law of the PRC against Unfair Competition

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ISSUES

The Environment Protection Law of the PRC

The Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

The Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes

The Energy Conservation Law of the PRC

The Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Pollution From
Environmental Noise

National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

The Labour Law of the PRC

The Labour Contract Law of the PRC

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases

The Social Insurance Law of the PRC

Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour

Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours of
Workers and Staff

Labour Relations Ordinance

Employment Ordinance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B RS

_a

pwc e R i

Corporate
Information

Financial

To the Shareholders of Goldpac Group Limited FEREEEZZERERIAARE -
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REBFAMAE T 89F R E]) 2%
OPINION =8 K E&é
What we have audited EMEBEFTHNAR e
11

The consolidated financial statements of Goldpac Group Limited (the  F B F st H N E1298 £2598 & i
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages =ERAERA 7(r§i\\7J)&ﬁﬁﬁJ§“
129 to 259, which comprise: (BEENGEaMBEERE B

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 e 2020512 A31A W &7 & B % AR
December 2020; =

Management Discussion

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BEZRILFENGFEERLEME
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i

4 s
W B
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!
=58

c
9]
€
]
o
©
c
©

Directors and Senior

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o BEZBLEFENGEGRERER:
ended; and 54

Report of
Directors
BEFEeRs
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SRR T ERE )

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories
o Impairment assessment of trade receivables
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B & B ET 3RS |

AREETETEm@m

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories

FEEREFERE

Refer to notes 2.16, 4(a) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.
FELRIGAMBHREME2.16 ~ 4(@)F120 -

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group’s inventories amounted to RMB190,375,000
(2019: RMB184,676,000), net of provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories of RMB55,770,000
(2019: RMB56,680,000).

2020512 A318 - MR BHERREFEREEARY
55,770,0007T (20194F : A R #56,680,0007T) © & &
HEwFEREEMERAK190,3750007T (20194 : A
R #184,676,0007T) °

Our procedures in relation to the provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories included:

BPMURFEEREFTERBZEFEE:

—  We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal controls and assessment process of
the provision for slow moving and obsolete
inventories and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or
fraud.

— HMTRTEEEHFHNREFTENEENR
HERMFTEBIE UBEEEMATHTIETE
MMEMEAREREZNZEHNERLE T8
H BLENZXERERELINF HEKREHE
HwEE R R TR

—  We understood, evaluated and tested key controls
over the provision for slow moving and obsolete
inventories.

— HEMTHR FEFMARTEARENREFERN
FEEERN BT -

—  We understood the basis of provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories and evaluated the
appropriateness of the basis adopted.

— HMTRTHFHENREFTERBOER LT HE
THRERERN RN -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 B ET R S |

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREETEEW@W

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories
(Continued)
HHEEREFERE (A

Management identified slow moving and obsolete
inventories that were no longer suitable for use in
production or sales based on ageing analysis, and
estimated the provision for inventories based on ageing
of inventories, current market price and estimated
future market demand. The identification of slow
moving and obsolete inventories required the use of
significant judgement and key assumptions which take
into consideration of historical sales records, utilisation
records, ageing and expectations for future sales orders.
Such judgement was subject to uncertainties as a
result of future changes in market trends and customer
demands.
ERERBREODMAFNFHATHERAREERK
HENFHEREFE  UREBEFERK  EfmS
BRMBETARRDISFRMEFFEREME - BHIFHE R
MREFEFTEAEARHABHEARBR  TFEBESL
HERGERLE FERRARERKREETENTE
H - ARmBEBENEPTRORKE (L - 5 LA
MBRRFETEEM -
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Our procedures in relation to the provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories included: (Continued)

BT HEHMREFERBZEFEE: (B)

—  We tested the accuracy of the inventories ageing
report on a sample basis by tracing to the purchase
invoices and delivery documents.

— HEMEXRBRENTEXMHETHERS M
ARATFERRRSHOERM -

—  We tested key assumptions used in the provision
assessment, including expectations for future sales
orders by tracing to the related source documents,
such as the historical sales records and usage
records.

— BMBBAMEELHEREBRHENRBXMH
HEGIHTPTEANARRR(BEHARRHEE
RIEMTRE) EITAIH -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B & B ET 3RS |

FEREEITEEW@W

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories
(Continued)
HHEERREFERE (&)

We focused on this area because of the significance
of the inventories balance in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and significant judgements were
involved in estimating the provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

B BESEFEVMBEBRRTEFERESEEN I
BERHEREFERBENTRY KA E R B
TABE BB -

Our procedures in relation to the provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories included: (Continued)

BZHYTHEHMREFERBZEFEE: (B)

— On a sample basis, we examined the subsequent
requisition documents of raw materials to test the
subsequent utilisation of raw materials.

— BMHETEMENRHEERXHOARTRM
HeBRRERBR -

— On a sample basis, we examined the subsequent
selling invoices to check if any significant
differences between the estimated selling prices
and subsequent actual selling prices.

— BMHMETHREEERE  UEFEMRAANEESE
REEBENERHEBERCMREFEERE
8o

—  We assessed the reasonableness and the accuracy
of the estimated costs to completion, other costs
necessary to make the sale and the related taxes by
comparing with the historical costs to completion,
other costs necessary to make the sale and the
related taxes for the similar inventories.

— BMBERTKELRAE ETHSEMFNE
R ARARBUFTENHEBREETLR - &7
ETHFATERAAE  ETHERFTOEMERR
HEARENAE M ERMNE -

—  We obtained and tested the mathematical accuracy
of the calculation of the provision for slow moving
and obsolete inventories.

— BMERTHFHEEREGEEBNAE BRIET
Het EH &N -

Based on our work performed, we considered the
judgements and estimates made by management in
relation to their assessment of the provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories to be supportable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 B ET R S |

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREETEEW@W

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

P& W & 5XRi {8 5T £

Refer to notes 2.14(d), 2.17, 3.1(b), 4(b) and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FL2REEMBREM FE2.14d) ~ 217 ~ 3.1(b) * 4(b)FN
21 °

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross trade
receivables of RMB277,939,000 (2019: RMB337,513,000)
against which expected credit loss (“ECL") provision of
RMB6,893,000 (2019: RMB9,176,000) were made. ECL
provision for impairment losses on trade receivables was
made using simplified approach.

202012 A318  AEENEKRERLER/RARK
277,939,0007T (20194 : A K ¥337,513,0007T) * F& U
BERAREBLREE R AKY6,893,0007T (20194 : A
R #9,176,0007T) - B & RIL R 5 KA TR A (E
B o
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables included:

BPERREFRREFEZEFERE:

—  We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal control and assessment process of the
provision for impairment of trade receivables and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors,
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

— BMTRMTEEEHEKERORET G AE
EHIRFTEBRIE - WiBBZE AT HEE LN
HMEARBERNREEGIEHGE - 8 M
BENSGXEEERRIAMF  BERERD
[E A [ b A fT AT A o

—  We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls that the Group has implemented over
trade receivables portfolio grouping and ECL
determination.

— BMTH FAEANRIET ESEHERKENREA
EOHENMBEEHEMEEBENBREITS -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B & B ET 3RS |

FEREEITEEW@W

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Continued)
FE W & 7R E 5T 14 ()

The approach was assessed based on the provision
matrix through grouping of various debtors that have
similar credit risk characteristics, with consideration of
their corresponding estimated default rates and loss
rates, together with the forward-looking information.
STRAEARENRBEER BRKABRUEARR
FRENESEEBASE UEREREMBRENMTELNE
FBEE  ARAIEEERRTED -

Management used estimations and judgements to
estimate default rates and loss rates by making reference
to the credit rating given by external ranking agency and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.
EEEAB2EINBIIRBLRENERTENER
ZEREEROA R SR o &5 A0 A E R A E
BHEFBERE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables include: (Continued)

BPERREFREFEZRFRE: (B)

—  We evaluated the reasonableness of the judgement
that management made in grouping various
debtors by assessing credit risk characteristics.

— BMBBTEERRREE  FAETEEEHE
REBADERETHENSBNYL -

—  We evaluated the reliability of the key data input to
calculate estimated default rate, including related
credit rating and current status of each portfolio,
trade receivables lifetime recovery information and
other relevant data.

— BMFRTHEBHERORNBEREER AN
AR BEAENEHATRNEEEKRER
BEMERREE  BRERNFTEBRRKEES
VA B2 B 46 B B4R -

—  We understood and evaluated the reasonableness
of the factors used in making forward-
looking estimation, including changes of future
economics, GDP growth rate forecast and market
environment.

— BMTHREFETARETAEEGBFOEZN
BN EERXVREARLERLS - GDPIER
EIEAM TS RENE L o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 B ET R S |

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREETEEW@W

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Continued)
FE W & 7R E 5T 14 ()

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
the trade receivables and the assessment of the ECL
provision involved significant accounting estimations and
judgements.
HREKERREREeHENERERKETRE
BENARIERERABMMEE  BUHBEMTUESR
BT o
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables include: (Continued)

BZPERREFREFEZRFRE: (B)

— On a sample basis, we tested the accuracy of the
ageing analysis of trade receivables by tracing to
the relevant supporting documents, including the
sales invoice.

— BMBEEHPHEHEERZTEANZAM
OB T FEULE KBRS AT Y LERE L o

—  We obtained ECL determination documents of
each portfolio of trade receivables and examined
their mathematical accuracy.

— BMEERERSHENEREEEETE
X BERERAGERERIL -

— On a sample basis, we also tested the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables after 31 December
2020 by tracing to the related supporting
documents including the bank receipts.

—  HMHEERRE TRTRRE B AR E WK
FERER@2020F12A31BNERE R BRER
SHRIENR °

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the judgement and estimates adopted by management
in determining the expected credit losses of the trade
receivables were supported by the obtained evidence.
BREBERMAMATHRERF  RABR/REBHEAITIAXE
BB T EIE S TE B (S B & 18 i &) # B
MG EE ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

B % BB R E (@)

HtfER

BERARESFHYHMBEREAR - HLER
BRASRFERSANELS  BETEHE
AR B B R R FI e B s -

BAYGEMBERROBEALTREL M
8 HATAHZSHEMEEERETM
HANERER °

BoBMERaMBRENETT - RMAN
AERHERMES  EUHBREF  EE
HEE R0 BR M B REAIKMNER
ABRTRATEAOBATFEENERENRE
UFEFEEERHERRANBER -

ERBMAEATHOIE REMARSE
ERFEERBERRL  RMFTERS
ZEE-wEsE BMALETAERS -

EENEREEERAESUH
BRERARENEE

BERREFAERBEBE G ASRM
MABEBYEREERREFERBED B
BEEMTPENGEEVMBRE  LHERR
RERGMBRROBE T FEARRGE
ok 5 AR T 8 B Y B K 85 RR BR AL BT 75 A9 D 6
EHaE -

ERREGAMBERRE EEART
fh REBBEGEEOEN  LEEAE
RTHEEBECEAMOTEE AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

SRR T ERE )

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

B % BB R E (@)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B M % BE R E ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is YAO WenPing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AElBRm Rk HM

For the year ended 31 December 2020 A& E=20204

2 H W AR
RANBLEZEFE

2019 Lo
Notes RMB’000 S 5w
o i ARBFT ool
Revenue 'ON 5 1,281,903 1,415,665  ©-
Cost of sales 85 & BX AR 8 (898,066) (1,017,129) £5
Gross profit e 383,837 398,536 i
Other income E b U A 6 52,949 50,904 SEK
Other (losses)/gains, net b (EE), W FE 7 (33,821) 10,011 Nég
Research and development costs Tt 28 B AR 8 (109,840) (113,474) ~
Selling and distribution expenses HERDEER 8 (91,938) (98,798) 22y
Administrative expenses THRAX 8 (34,939) (39,556) £ ér
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment JEUW &R REEERED SEH
loss on trade receivables (BE) 2,154 (1,581) -
Impairment loss on amount due from an J& B & A &) k18 2 R (B 2 =
associate 518 25 (111) (17400  “:i.
Reversal of impairment loss on interest M Ef& A B8 & 2 FE e 2l
in an associate EERED 19 1,500 3,464 52 L
Finance costs B 75 B AR (549) (884) g @m
Profit before income tax MRETEH AR 169,242 206,882 § m
Income tax expense FEHER 11 (23,982) (30,459) - civi
S o
Profit for the year £ B 7 145,260 176423 §34
Other comprehensive expense FEEMEERAEZ s
for the year i
Item that may be subsequently AIREIE B S E B Siwm
reclassified to profit or loss: ZHE - g g’u{
— exchange differences arising on — REBINEBESE -
translation of foreign operations B [E 5 = %8 (3,206) (3,017) 2
2 4
Total comprehensive income FEXEBVARE é é‘
for the year 142,054 173,406 v
5
&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
GEeBEaRkEMEZEW A XK@

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2019
Notes RMB’000
K i ARET T
Profit/(loss) for the year EEFEEFE (&) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ =N 145,665 177,125
Non-controlling interests FE2 B o (405) (702)
145,260 176,423
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEE2ERA(EE)
attributable to: ER-C
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ SN 142,459 174,108
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (405) (702)
142,054 173,406
Earnings per share B & T 12
— Basic (RMB cents) — EX(AR%E D) 17.6 21.4
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#BBEAR%ED) 17.6 21.4

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBERRR

At 31 December 2020 72020412 531H

2019 -
Notes RMB’000 Sz
ik ARBTT  s2d
ASSETS BE 5L
Non-current assets FRBEE =
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 14 365,212 325,724
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 5 41,920 43,211 2%
Investment property "EME 6 54,582 60,313 SEK
Goodwill Bk 17 1,375 1,375 Ngo
Intangible assets BREAE 18 2,096 4,386 =8
Interests in associates REE A 2w 19 4,964 3,464 R
Deferred tax assets EREHRAEE 31 9,400 8,192 Eew
Pledged bank deposits B 38 4R 1717 2K 26 76,984 156,000 .
Fixed bank deposits RITEHFE R 26 — 109,779
Total non-current assets IEMBEERTE 556,533 712,444 E
Current assets mEEE 5
Inventories F& 20 190,375 184,676 i
Trade receivables FE iy & 3K 21 271,046 328,337 -
Contract assets EHEE 23 13,512 12,712 5 m
Other receivables and prepayments EL{th, & W R0 T8 5 5K 24 21,392 45,702 i
Amount due from an associate FE U B & A B SR IE 25 — — 5
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFARR 2
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ZemBEE(AR 5
BEEFTARRE]) 22 256,733 180,084
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 26 166,971 — S
Fixed bank deposits RITEHE K 26 724,123 804,277 2 g
Cash and cash equivalents HekBReFEYD 26 376,578 366,996 =
Total current assets MBEERR 2,020,730 1,922,784 5 4
Total assets EE#R 2,577,263 2,635,228 %éti
EQUITY BEARGEE -
Share capital L@ 33 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves kil 803,747 810,210 5 C
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AR A% A A EIG % SET
Company 1,996,109 2,002,572 ek
Non-controlling interests JEE A% = 1,427 1,832 -
w cdl
Total equity B 1,997,536 2,004,404 E %jﬁ
ic 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
rE B S AR R R (@)

At 31 December 2020 20204125318

2019
Notes RMB'000
K1 it ARETTT
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 11,360 9,463
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIBEE 37 21,759 23,825
Total non-current liabilities EREBAEERE 33,119 33,288
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables ERNEFEENER 27 365,428 399,346
Contract liabilities EHaE 28 50,864 42,468
Other payables H h & 1 5% 29 96,940 111,972
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 5,150 8,108
Government grants B T 8 B 30 1,858 1,858
Income tax payable RS 26,368 33,784
Total current liabilities B BEEAE 546,608 597,536
Total liabilities EE8E 579,727 630,824
Total equity and liabilities REHEEEANHE 2,577,263 2,635,228

The consolidated financial statements on pages 129 to 259 were = F& B MR2021F3H248 % Z I iBF
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 1298 ZE259B 4R & M KR A &1 » I A

March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: NTEEEREEE:
LU RUN TING HOU PING
EEE &®¥
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EFFEHEHTER HNITEFFEEHNTE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be 4R & BF %5k 5 5% /& B2 1% B B 5 — OF B3

Ao

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. g o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREARLRR ggu
Shares S ‘Ej
held under
Shares  shares  Share Exchange Non- T2
Share  award  award  options translation  Other Statutory Retained controlling 5
capital  reserves  scheme reserves reserves reserves reserves eamings Subtotal interests  Total S
kit o1
Rt %E:id ERRE EX i ER AR FER - g*;”
Rka %ERE HERH it i i i HE it Bk it S g;
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 g%
ARBTL ARETT ARET ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT

ote ) (Note 7} 5w
W) (Wi £ é i

At 1 January 2019 R201951A1H 1,192,362 4871 (9968 56,727 500 42631 116484 569,242 1,977,549 2,534 1,980,083 =
2 uR
Profitoss) for the year FEHR/(BR) - - - - - - - msoms (0 176423 52X
Other comprehensive expense ~ FEEMZERR g jE ;
for the year = = = - 3m = = - 3m - 3m) & 5

Total comprehensive EE2E(FE)/ N
(loss)income for the year WAGE - = = - B3 = — 17115 174,108 (702) 173,406 . B
o
Recognition of equitysettled  MEREZMRATH o B
share-based payments i) S
(Note 34) - 1935 - - - - - - 1935 - 1935 5 -
Purchase of shares under shares 7 % Bzt 3 "
award scheme (Wote 74(¢) EERD W Z40) = - 359 _ _ _ _ — s — BsW 5 g
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - (5672) - - - % - = = g g8
Transfes 3 - - - - - - W8 () - - - = o

Dividends recognised as FRREWHB) .
dstibuton fote 19 S (711 (110 110 I B
Shares vested under the shares IR {7 5B &l g "
award scheme k5B - (68060 5479 = = = = 98 (389) = (389) - 5
:

- 87 1953 (56,727) - — 14437 (103877) (149,085) — (149,08 S
At 31 December 2019 10195 12A31R 1,192,362 - (8,019) - 2183 42631 130921 642490 2,002,572 1832 2,004,404 ‘:"rf
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
RERRZEHR@E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREARGRR
Shares
held under
Shares  shares  Share Exchange Non-
Share  award  award  options translation  Other Statutory Retained controlling
capital  reserves  scheme  reserves reserves reserves reserves earnings Sub-total interests  Total
Rt
Rt %M@ BE®E  EX 00 Bt %R 3R K2R

ke RERE BERH fife fife fife fife % &t E# &t
RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Note ) (Wote i)
(//%E/) 1//%?/7)

At 1 January 2020 10051418 1,192,362 - (801 — 218 4631 130921 642490 2,002,572 1,832 2,004,404
Profit/loss) for the year EEHB/(BR) = = = = = = — 145665 145665  (405) 145,260
Other comprehensive expense B Ef2ERY

for the year = = = - (3,.200) = = - (3,.200) - (3,200)

Total comprehensive FE2E

(loss)income for the year (B8)/hA88 = = = - (3200 = — 145665 142459 (405) 142,04
Purchase of shares under shares B E R {7 £ B33

award scheme (Wore 4¢) — BERR(WE40) = - (5500 = = = = - (5500 - (550
Transfers L. I - - - - - S I U - - -
Dividends recognised as ARREM D)

distrioution (Note 73) \ = = = = = = - (143421) (143421) - (143421)
Capitalsaton of retaned HEARADENE

eamings in a subsidiary Exf - - - - — 65809 - (65809) - - -

= = (5,501) - — 65809 41,734 (250,94) (148,922) — (148922

At 31 December 2020 R2020512A318 1,192,362 = (13,516) - (1,03) 108,440 172,655 537,191 1,996,109 1,421 1,997,536

Notes: Mt at -

(i) Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves (i) Hih# B s THERADEFNEE S KRAT
and retained earnings into capital of subsidiaries, contribution from a fEBATHNEBERZERL  —ZRENEE R
shareholder and share of other reserves of associates. JEEEE Nal EMiEENERERM -

There was capitalisation of statutory reserves into capital of a subsidiary of the R2011EF  EZERBERERNEBERRAHE
Company, Goldpac Limited, in 2011. RAEHEBRAANER -

There was capitalisation of retained earnings into capital of a subsidiary of the 20204 - KA EFBEEWEAR L BAR RN
Company, Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company, in 2020. BRAARKEMEHBESRBFEEREERRAAN

(i) Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), (ii) BEREARAMNE(FEDNEBER &
certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required TRABERZZART 2B AT BIREETE
to make appropriation to the statutory reserves at 10% of their profit after MR PBRBREZFIENI0%TIRETER
tax based on their statutory financial statements. The statutory reserves may o R FEEHEEEESE BB &%
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated FAIBR B ZENE LR R ERSEEM
losses or to increase the capital of those subsidiaries. HEK o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be il 45 & 4 2% 5 B 2 fiE 8244 0T B 5 — 6F B

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

2019

Notes RMBO0O - -
ki ARBTFT 534
Cash flows from KRETHEEZ T
operating activities ReRE =
Cash generated from operations CEEYERE 32(a) 232,111 273,727 C
Income tax paid B AER (34,672) (23,126) 0w
i
Net cash generated from KETBHEEZ Rsé
operating activities REFE 197,439 250,601 =8
= 41
Cash flows from REFBHELEZ §§‘k
investing activities BERE £2
Redemption of financial assets at BEEIZ AR EEGFABIZZ
FVTPL TREE 182,723 410,157 S
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits & BUSE 17 /& Hi 17 X 904,271 1,070,730 g
Withdrawals of pledged bank BB HERRITER 2
deposits 165,006 15,678
Increase in amount due from JRE Bt i X B SR IR A AN :
an associate (1,951) (1,740) -
Consideration received from W B BE B A B AR R 5 m
disposal of interest in I M
an associate 1,500 3,464 2E=
Placement of fixed bank deposits 77 3R 17 & #3177 &K (915,938) (1,198,992) é%‘
Purchase of financial assets at BERARBEAABREZ £
FVTPL TREE (256,000) (350,000)
Placement of pledged bank EHREEFRITER 5 il
deposits (31,308) (12,061) %ﬁr
Purchase of property, BENE BERLE g5y
plant and equipment (80,336) (94,254)
Interest received B U il 2 7,697 30,450 -
Net cash used in REZDFARE ;f&:x
investing activities F (24,336) (126,568) g
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

%Aiﬁtﬁ/ﬂb%%(nﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2019
RMB'000
AREET T
Cash flows from financing activities BMEFTHEL2RERE
Draw down of bank borrowings REVER T 1B X 19,966 —
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERTEX (19,966) —
Purchase of shares under BERNBEBFEFERD
shares award scheme (5,501) (3,526)
Repayment of principal portion of BEEHEARE
leases liabilities (9,056) (8,716)
Repayment of interest portion of BEMEABEZNESD
leases liabilities (549) (884)
Dividends paid & B S At (143,421) (147,368)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZBHFFAR S EE (158,527) (160,494)
Net increase/(decrease) in BekBEEYWEM (L)
cash and cash equivalents VFRE 14,576 (36,461)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRERBEEFEY
the beginning of the year 366,996 401,042
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes REHH T E (4,994) 2,415
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRBEESEEY
at the end of the year 376,578 366,996
Analysis of the balances of REeRBRSEEYEHR DN
cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash SRITFE R MR & 226,481 220,996
Fixed bank deposits which matured 3 A R 2| BF 6 R 17 5 B 17 K
within three months 150,097 146,000
376,578 366,996

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  Eilt4x &

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B|RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are to engage in embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment and provision of data
processing services, digital equipment, system platform,
Artificial Intelligence (A.l.) self-service kiosks and other total
solutions for customers in a wide business range including
financial, government, healthcare, transportation and retails by
leveraging innovative financial technology (“Fintech”).

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of the registered office is Room 1301, 13th Floor, Bank
of East Asia, Harbour View Center, No. 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Its parent and ultimate holding company is Goldpac
International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL") (a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong). Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Lu Run Ting, who is also the Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“Companies Ordinance”). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and requirements of
the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies.

—REH

ARBR—KREZERERRARF - K
REIREMBAR (REIAEE])H
IZXBEAEREPREMAERL
EXNEENRARNTHFNLEX
NER FEERGaFRHMR(E
BN RER - BF - #f X
B TEFRZEREPIRERER
BRE - BFLRE - ZRFE 8
EEEDREREBERBRTR -

ARRR—REGBEIMOLRBRER
RNE ARRBREEB BB ER BN
BERAR(BRXADERLETRS °
A EE I AT B ETS T
B56%% + RIIRIT A EFL3/E1301
ARRZH AR R REER AT A
BEBRE(EE)ERAR ([£PEE
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A ARAIREKEH T AEEBREL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2

138

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time for accounting periods beginning on 1 January
2020:

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions — amendments
to HKFRS 16

. Definition of a Business — amendments to

HKFRS 3

o Definition of Material — amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

o Hedge Accounting — amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

o Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting — Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial position and performance for the
current and prior years and on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

2 FESHHEXRw@m

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 New standards and interpretations
that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2021

and have not been early adopted by

the Group

2.3 CEMEE AR A2021F
1B1H = 2% 4 M #
A K#ERE KEBED
EIREREM

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
FEHE

IR ZBREXR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2
FEELERE — F_RE

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

HEZESz2EHO SRR

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

mME- -BELRE —BREREZ
A 89 BT 15 3%

Onerous contracts — Costs of
Fulfilling a Contract

BEAHN — BITEABKAR

Annual improvements to HKFRS
2018 to 2020

&8 B % ¥ 5 £ 812018-202038 £
FE#E

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Z2EHSER

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
EF G ERE395 BB T KR
HERA AT - BB B R ELER
F79 - BAVBWMELIFEIR KX
BERMBHREEAEI65 2EE]
Amendments to AG 5 (revised)
2SI FE5% 2185

Amendments to HKAS 16
BB ERFEI6H BT
Amendments to HKAS 37
BB EREITR ZER]
Amendments to HKFRSs

BRI REER ZER]

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BV REEREIR 2EF]

EHEEZERAERAA

1 January 2021
20211418

1 January 2022
2022%F1A1H

1 January 2022
2022%F1A1H
1 January 2022
2022%F1H1H
1 January 2022

2022%F1H1H

1 January 2022
2022%F1H1H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 FESHHEXRwm@m

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 New standards and interpretations
that have been issued but are not

2.3 B EMEN KRN2021F
1B1H= 2% £ MW

140

yet effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2021

AKEE  AEET
RPN

and have not been early adopted by

the Group (continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
FEHB

BRI ZBREN

Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

BRAHHERERERBGTL
EHEFND A

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

HEaES B ARE IR D

Insurance Contracts

REEE X

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

KREEHBERGREE QR ZH
WEELEITE

These standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4rE B 7% R B R (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying

amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance

with the policy described in Note 2.13.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(©)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of Goldpac
Group Limited.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(©)

Changes in ownership interests
(Continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

2.5 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting

is used to

account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred:;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Group;
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBR@ e
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 i
oEd

2.5 Business combination (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
. consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’'s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Business combination (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
Company’s Chairman that make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a net basis within “other (losses)/gains,

"

net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (None of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.8 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

All property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 to 50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
Plant and machinery 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.13).

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods
of construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant
and equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready
for its intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.
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2.10Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBR@ e
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 i
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or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not SEARBESIMERE B oéﬂw
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially FBHAEBEGH  HEVEER ST
measured at cost, including related transaction costs MBERATE  BREBRNHR 8
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, SRAR(ER) BEKAE -

they are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Hig  HEEAABERATER £t
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is RETBEREBEIER - HEER £S5k
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their HEAERFHARERED o

cost, over their estimated useful lives.

2.11 Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
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which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.

AGELNHHE - BERET
B2 WRIRERNBEEE S
BiEITENHBERR - BT
BHH -

SHEUAERLRERAT —E=-FFHK 5]

T

<A

Corporate Governance
Report

Environmental
Social and Governance
& \

Financial
Statements

40
&
b
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2

152

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Intangible assets

(a)

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are
shown at historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Trademarks are with finite
useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over periods of 5 to 9 years (2019: 5 to 9
years).

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the

intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will
probable future economic benefits;

generate

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEXRw@m o5
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) gél
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2.12 Intangible assets (continued) 2B EE @)

(b) Research and development costs
(Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-

(b) i 3& B 2= (@)
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Financial
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i
generated intangible asset is the sum of the IERSEREZLETR gaK
expenditure incurred from the date when the BEBRED L lmRIE -
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria ErHENEERAEBRAR =8
listed above. Where no internally-generated Moo M AEBE KR ERE L
intangible asset can be recognised, development EAREHER  AEER 5.
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the REEEHFTARR - 5 Rl

period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the research and development costs are
recognised in profit or loss and there was no
internally-generated intangible asset recognised.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
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be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment B ETEERRERSE - & §§
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate HEERBEHHRIBRE Ly
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An BB NERMEEEEEKD % «

impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.141nvestments and other financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value; and
o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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(Continued)
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a HRTI OB RERANE S5k
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of B ABZHNESREE - 3=
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or REBUAEAREENLE
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable AEERBERNESZES L4
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction BMEENRSERETY EEw
costs of financial assets carried at fair value WBHER - MARBEGA &
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or EnNeREEEENR
loss. SRAEARIBHAZEH © 5 .
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.141nvestments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

o Fair value through profit or loss: Assets with
contractual cash flows do not represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within “other (losses)/
gains, net” in the period in which it arises.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note
3.1(b) for further details.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBR@ Y 5a
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2%%
2.15 Offsetting financial instruments 215 BT A .

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net EAEEBEEAHNITENA s
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of KEEEReE  TEEER o
financial position where the Group currently has a legally FRAEZESRKNEREE i
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and MEEBERN SHREEHES Siw
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the BAIEREHE YEKRAMB 8
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group MARMEELFE - XEET
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet RN T I EEEEE T8 5w
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related BT EELBERT (Fl s %é\r
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as ERAEAKIE) HEBEEGE - o
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract. <
2u®R
2.16 Inventories 21617 & 5 £
g <=
€ T [ar
Raw materials, work in progress and R R ¥ m& K m %“%i
finished goods -
o [&r
Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are RA R AR RO M AR AR S
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. RABRFEMEZREEA 2E=
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an fr-NABEEEMH HE e
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead BIRBEAEH 2 #FEETE EQL
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis MEER BRERREFTLSE
of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to BE N D HE o pX AR TR BR N AE T 5 il
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted AR AL #EEFERSEIEE - é@‘r
average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are TERE 2K ARG IR F & 258
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net THERE 2R FEELE
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the AEGE T RAEERE g
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 5T 58 BB 2N K T8 &1 8 & BT 35 BX n
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make ZANE Sgf
the sale. § =
5 «
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection or trade receivables is expected
in one year or less, they are classified as current assets.
Otherwise, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 21 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFTHERm
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) éil
SEH
2.19Share capital and shares held for 29RARBEESRTE ..
employee share scheme BEENRG 5Es
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 33). TdRE D HE ARG @
33) o 3%
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new BEERBRETHRSEED 5
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, MK A EE SR RAER T
net of tax, from the proceeds. B A (FOBRFRIE) © 5 e

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a
share buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the

which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 60 to 180 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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AR BERO T EE

REFMELABE BNEREK
HihENREER TARAEHE
ER60=180 RN T AT - f&
NEREEMEMNKHZMSA
BESREHREBI2MEANUA -
HWwhHkARBEE EBHE
RREMEMNZTUAARBES
MRTHER  EEMNAEERREX
IR AT E o

SHEUAELRERAT —ES-TFFHK (59

Environmental,
Social and Governance

Financial
Statements

consideration paid, including any directly attributable B ABERNREEBEEMNE e
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted ERLEEXRANFRAEH)) ER
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company EREFRMEEBNRART %‘%f‘
as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or BEAZERTNR BEER g -
reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently MHHENEIT - WZEL -
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly BREBENET  AEKZ %EE
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related E AR AE (HIBR (E f7] B 42 FE A5 38 o gl
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to ERXRGRARIEEAEHTZE) o S8
the owners of the Company. BFAABBRARREAAZ £3u
s o = -
A
Shares held by the Group Employee Share Trust are SHEESROEEFANKRND o 5%
disclosed as shares held under shares award scheme and W ERRIE R RE Bl Siu
deducted from equity. B - WA AE S HOBR o )
2.20Trade and other payables 200 BNERREMEMNR &
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services ZESEDNETFEARAAN £ < u
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year SEBEAEMERB ARSI g‘ h
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (Net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor
to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity
swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which
is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the
equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBR@ Y 5a
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) E?l
SEY
2.22 Borrowing costs 2.22 fEE R A = 2
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly Wi  ERIEEREREE 25
attributable to the acquisition, construction or BEEELN—REEEEEK -
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during PN A 7 A e o N N1
the period of time that is required to complete and MERGIHERBEATKE Sk
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying K GEREEDNETERR 3=
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period BREREITHIEAERTE

of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Rt ENEE - E su
E A
3
Investment income earned on the temporary investment METER ABEFEGERE Sat

of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on EE B 32 I i R R R B BRER A 3R <
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs BWA [EEEEREEAR 5 =
eligible for capitalisation. LW EE K AR B ° 83
Eim
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in HMBEEXNAEELE AL %%”:
which they are incurred. 8H © 5 ®
2.23 Current and deferred income tax 2.23 BN HA K 3E 7E P 15 B 18 c. =
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the FHMEHERARER2 RIS g%‘
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based @ E ARSI E G E R AR 5w
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction JE R A B A B B (AR 1R 57 o
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities BRERUEZERAMNAHIE o
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax EENEEMEGHEERAE gg‘r
losses. B EEITIRETRE) - é‘%ﬂg
2w
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better prediction
of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.

Pension obligations and other social
welfare benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to
various defined contribution plans organised by
the relevant governmental authorities. The Group'’s
liability in respect of these plans is limited to the
contributions payable in each period. The Group's
contributions to these plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entiting them to the contributions. Assets of
the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separated from those of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FESTHER®

2.25 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

2.25 R X1+
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value of the equity instruments at the grant date. EESTIERTANAREEB N éﬂw
HE o 350
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to BIBE R AR SRR
employees via Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, Share 2 BREST ARG RENE Egu
Option Scheme and Shares Award Scheme. Information FRBTRHENBRDSERD oyl
relating to these schemes is set out in Note 34. HER o  HZEHEEEN o
= BTEMT sE347 5 - <
ERS
The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments REEIET 5 55 B 15 141 bARE 22
determined at the grant date without taking into HEENROZNTRTELHA® g(i;
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is NAEE ERANEEE &K %E‘:
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, BEAERIANMGE KB 5 ®
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments BERARE A - mAT -
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase EEEZ(BRHERFEE B S m
in equity (shares award reserve/share options reserve). At % 4 i 1) AR FE I A0 o P IR A5
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its FEHR NEBRBYMER 5
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected BAJE™ 5 BB M EET g5
to vest based on assessment of all relevant nonmarket HERERBEEREZLAHR s
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the ZAEE  BRA M REET AT
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss EENTE WE EEHRAF Eg*f
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised R BRI R EE gel
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the shares A1 2 fhET 8- IR AR 15 5% B =
award reserve/share options reserve. % BREREERERAE - .
2w
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (continued)

Under the shares award scheme, BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited (the “Trustee”) administers and holds the
Company's shares before they are vested and transferred
to the Participants. The Trustee purchases the Company’s
shares being awarded from the open market with funds
provided by the Company. When share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share capital. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Tax laws or regulations may oblige an entity to withhold
an amount for an employee’s tax obligation associated
with a share-based payment and transfer that amount,
normally in cash, to the tax authority on the employee’s
behalf. To fulfil this obligation, the terms of the share-
based payment arrangement may permit or require the
Group to withhold the number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation from the total number of equity instruments
that otherwise would have been issued to the employee
upon exercise (or vesting) of the share-based payment
(i.e. the share-based payment arrangement has a “net
settlement feature”).

The Group accounts for the withholding of shares
to fund the payment to the tax authority in respect
of the employee’s tax obligation associated with the
share-based payment as repurchase of vested equity
instruments, therefore, the payment made shall be
accounted for as a deduction from equity for the shares
withheld, except to the extent that the payment exceeds
the fair value at the net settlement date of the equity
instruments withheld.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FESTHER®

2.26 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has
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a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of AEFEEEERNRENGEEHE ~ éﬂ#
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources B kel Siw
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount R EZRRE RERBMNR 8
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised IFEEEEE T AR o KK
for future operating losses. KEEETSERERE - é g
tiw
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the B ZIBEUER - Al@BE o
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement BEREBENNEEE SR <
is determined by considering the class of obligations as FEERMEAAIEEMN o Bl 5 =
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood A —EBEEE 8 E R — 22
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in & 18 B A8 BE BY B JR % B AT B c&n
the same class of obligations may be small. MRIE - DAERER - é?‘:
Provisions are measured at the present value of BEDRRBREBEEHREHR -
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required HEEHEBEXH 2 &E S m
to settle the present obligation at the end of the HMETB2REGTE - AREE A5
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine MEMFTREEZHAANE - H 5 e
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current RELE AT EMEGEEENT Séw
market assessments of the time value of money and the Bk BERTRR - BEE 5
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision Ry i1 38 25 T 35 00 B9 B 4 1 2R
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest MEEBA - ng‘
expense. i

SHEUELRRERAT —T-TFEFH 16/

Environmental,
Social and Governance
=

EEE .

Financial
Statements

)

40
&
b
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4rE B 7% R B R (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2

168

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods and services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good and
service.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FESTHER®

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and services that

institutions, government agencies, retail

2.27 W A R )

BHEERASEHEERE
EFNEMIRFB RN

mEEEREE -

&
O

c
=
©
=
o
k)
=

Financial

Hig

1R E

A
i

the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet T8 B R B B AR R R R 4 Y - éﬂ;
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance AN - RIZE B MG REER Sk
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the FoSEH HEETRERME - 3=
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only i FE 42 5% 18 Al 38 72N & B B 1S 3

the passage of time is required before payment of that B B9 A R RE R - BITE SR BN A Egu
consideration is due. EXNANEFELBE TR Jopis
F'Eﬁ ° ORZN
A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to EHNEEREASEEEBRE g -
transfer goods and services to a customer for which W B (5k pE W 1)) 3k B &0 & 0 3k S
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of RBEBERP - s <m
consideration is due) from the customer. %ELL

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the HE—&HEENENEEMN _
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net EHBELFEARMZS] - S m
basis. S o
> S
(@) Performance obligation for contracts (@) EEFEHNZENE e
with customers £ =
5 ol
(i) Sale of embedded software and (i) BHEAXEMHAZ tfa
secure payment products 2EZVEmMZH gai

=

The Group sells embedded software and NE&EE & #; AR §j}‘
secure payment products to financial HHMZ 2 HE g%L

businesses, healthcare businesses, public
transportation operators and others.
Revenue on sales of embedded software and
secure payment products is recognised at the

HE#E  TEL
X BERRED
X DARXBEZ
BE - AN EN

point of time when control of the goods has MEE2ZNEMRZ
transferred to the customers, being when the HEWAREWIE

goods have been shipped to the designed
location and accepted by customers.

HEEBRERFR
R EEWEE
EREEWHATS
B A BT o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Performance obligation for contracts

with customers (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Data processing services

The data processing services, including
encode cardholder information and/
or develop and load custom software
applications to embedded software and
secure payment products, which are
considered to be a distinct service as it is
regularly supplied by the Group to customers
on a stand-alone basis. The transaction price
of data processing service per each activities
makes reference to the quotation that the
Group offered to the customers and revenue
is recognised over time as the performance
obligation is satisfied through creating
or enhancing an asset that the customer
controls.

Sales of digital equipment

The Group also provides self-service kiosks
and on-site card issuance system solution
to its customers. Revenue on sales of self-
service kiosks and on-site card issuance
system is recognised at the point of time
when control of the goods has transferred
to the customers, being when the goods
have been shipped to the designed location
and installation of the digital equipment is
completed with customers’ acceptance.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FESTHER®

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations (i.e. embedded software
and secure payment products for smart secure
payment and data processing solution) the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

2.27 W A R )

(b) Contracts with multiple performance (b) EZEEANRKZE
obligations (including allocation of HNEERZE®EDN om
transaction price) pall i) g%%
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The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good EBERANEBMKED géufi

or service underlying each performance obligation A [& 55 7 fn 2 AR 75 00 8 32 2
is determined at contract inception. It represents HEBBN G K F] LR =

the price at which the Group would sell a promised E o ZBRETAEER 5

good or service separately to a customer. HEGEME MRS E R L §§A

EBREPHER - gé‘\L

If a stand-alone selling price is not directly MRBIIHEBR TR EE”‘Q

observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Contracts with multiple performance

obligations (including allocation of
transaction price) (Continued)

The normal credit period is 30—150 days upon
delivery. Retentions held by customers are normally
payable between 6 months to 1 year by the
customers from the date of issuance of invoice.
Such retentions include retentions for embedded
software and secure payment products required
by customers to insure performance of Integrated
Circuit (“IC") chips during the warranty period.
The card issuance system solutions also have
retentions ranging from 5% to 10%, which are
payable after the expiration of the warranty
period. These warranties associated with the goods
cannot be purchased separately and they serve
as an assurance that the goods sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group
accounts for warranties in accordance with HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.

The contracts for embedded software and secure
payment products, digital equipment and data
processing services are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFTHERm .55
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) E?l
SEY
2.28 Earnings per share 2.8 KR &R = 2o
(i) Basic earnings per share (i) BEREXZER TE5
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BREARNNFEFE - ?"F
R N
£g
. the profit attributable to owners of the . FERNAREEE -
Company. #AE o IS 5 8
1
. by the weighted average number of ordinary . REGHEFEE 2RI E
shares outstanding during the financial year, 2 &9 o #E T 15 E 5
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary A% P & I AR 1R A 2 0
shares issued during the year and excluding FEBBRTTAR 5§A
treasury shares. (TEEERFKRN) e
AU EBERETH S
o g *
(ii) Diluted earnings per share (i) BREBEER S om
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used GRS B AR g ?
in the determination of basic earnings per share EGRERBNN S 55”{3
to take into account: I E & -
w A
e the after-income tax effect of interest and e HBEEEEAK £ 27
other financing costs associated with dilutive 18 8 1Y P 15 B0 12 A g5%
potential ordinary shares; and S8 EMmE
B A K g
€ u
. the weighted average number of additional . REERAAERE éé‘
ordinary shares that would have been BEETBERE K Ly
outstanding assuming the conversion of all TR RN E B AR g ¢
dilutive potential ordinary shares. INHEFI5 8L o -
2.29 Dividend income 2.29 R B W A 5 B
28m
Dividends are received from financial assets measured BOABEAAEBGENESRE 92"
at FVTPL. Dividends are recognised as other income EEERE EASECHY e
in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is WH AR B 2T e REF R - IR B 8
established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre- HRAHMKEMTAELE - )
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents B A% B = W BRI A B H 2 T§§§
a recovery of part of the cost of an investment. W 5E—R/EMABA K g3%
FEREBABRREMBOREK =
AR Y E o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBRFER@ .
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) ggl
oEd

2.30 Leases (Continued) 230 A E @)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the Group entities use that rate as a starting point
to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take
effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an
index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed
and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs; and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less without a purchase option.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (continued)

2.31

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 15). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.

2.32 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets. Note 30 provides further information
on how the Group accounts for government grants.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBR@®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.33 Interest income 233 F B A
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective TEEERN B W AR ERF X
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial AR EERMBREAE -
asset except for financial assets that subsequently BESEEFARNBECERE
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial ER - HREERAREZS
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net BEE - HFERARERA
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction EXRAeHEERBEBERE
of the loss allowance). BREHBENFETE -
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost NEHEK AT ENSREET
calculated using the effective interest method is RAERREEFEHF S WA
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income. See REREAER A DEMUA o
Note 6 below. B2 R T X6 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risk: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by
the directors of the Company. The Directors provide principles
for an overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(@) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC
with most of the transactions originally
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollars (“USD")
and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities,
which are denominated in these currencies.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has not entered into any derivative
instruments to hedge its foreign exchange
exposures (2019: Nil).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

3 BEREREm
B 7 & b2 A & (@)

(a) ™5 E )

3.1

(i) SMEE B ()

The Group's exposure to foreign currency AEERHmERR
risk at the end of the end of the reporting T B 1 FINEE [ Bz (LA
period, expressed in RMB, was as follows: ARBERT)OT :

2019

usD HKD

ET B

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRT

Trade receivables e & & 998 19,718 4,943 16,554
Other receivables H 4 & W 3K 1,620 2,320 8,197 279

Fixed bank deposits and cash £ 17 & &1 77 20 Al

and cash equivalents RekBHEEEYM 409,160 129,341 579,212 87,256

Trade payables BT & & (2,300) (95) (26,119) (3,885)

Other payables H & 13K (2,626) (3,540) — (1,671)
Net monetary assets FEREE 406,852 147,744 566,233 98,533
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% fid A R ¥ 5 48 78 S
against the relevant foreign currencies, with WHE,BZE% -
all other variable held constant, the post- mEMTEE S 4%
tax profit would have been (lowen/higher as BAE  BRE‘EF

follows:

BB ME (R d)

(Lower)/higher on post-tax

profit Ve bl
— Strengthened 5% — F{E5%
— Weakened 5% — B 1E5%

B E e O L) 1
man T

2019
usb HKD
e B
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
(15,257) (5.540)  (21,234) (3,695)
15,257 5,540 21,234 3,695

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020



FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from fixed rate pledged bank deposits and
fixed bank deposits (see Note 26 for details),
which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on interest bearing financial assets, mainly
interest bearing bank balances. The Group
cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted by
the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s RMB denominated bank balances.
The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for interest bearing bank
balances at the end of the reporting period
and assumed that the amount of assets
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole
year. 50 basis points were used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk (Continued)

If interest rates on bank balances had been
50 basis points higher (lower) and all other
variables were held constant, the potential
effect on profit for the year is as follows:

B 7% B B B X om)
B 7 & b2 A & (@)

™ 5 B B2 (@)

3.1

FEFE
@, OR )

o L FHSOfEE B,
o T FE50E B

Increase/(decrease) in
profit for the year
e 50 basis points higher
e 50 basis points lower

(a)

(i)

18 7 % 71 B2 (4)

IR TIE RFIE L7+
(T %) 5018 2 % -
P ¥
T8 YR
BENTEMT

2019
RMB’000
AR T T

849 828
(849) (828)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest risk as at the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020

EEERS AR
FRONER R £
BTgERBEARNZ
[ B 2 B - B B
REMTTEAR
RIUE -



FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position of
the Group. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit approvals.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under Expected Credit Loss (“ECL")
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade
receivables and contract assets based on credit
rating. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Mainland China
and Hong Kong.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 54%
(2019: 50%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2020 which was due from customers
engaged in the banking industry.

3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e R EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

MR REEEm®

3.1

EHEEZERAERAA

B 7 & b2 A & (@)
(b) EERM

ARZHTARERBREHR
PEEEERNEREE
BITHEME  HAKEE
PRI R E E Rk
RAOBBZEFEERAE
B4R & B IS AR R WA R
MBREEE - AEELE
PEHEBREERBEMIE
Ao H A B EERRA
B ERRT M -

BREFREHNEE

RTENEEEEER
B AKBEEEEERIK
SEHENE - FREM
SRR b ARE (R ERELT R
ERBEEAREL - 4
oh - REBERMNEFEY
BHREEAFIRE - 1R
EEHEEEREAL
ENGERFE - BREKE
RMEKE EETTRIER
il o ER LiifEE - AR
RAEERRAKENER
R B KR TS B o

AEEZEHEDHETD
EERREIZETNFTE
R FMEE °

AEBGFEEFREER
B - BAEZE20205F128
3TAEWE R REF54%
(20194F : 50%) /& JfE YT 5R
TERFPHIE -

—E-2EEH 1583

e

Corporate
Information

Financial

Hig

2020
Major Events
e =

20204

=

K]
c C
]
==
S Ope
© ©
23y
S&

Management Discussion

i

4 s
R e

!
=58

Directors and Senior
Vianagement

===

Report of
Directors

=R o

4

Corporate Governance
Report
T EER

Environmental
Social and Governance

Financial
Statements

40
&
b
=
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and bank balances

The Group also have concentration of credit risk
on pledged bank deposits and fixed bank deposits
which are deposited with banks with high credit
rating. Other than the above, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit
risk. The credit risks on pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank
deposits and bank balances has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and has
assessed the expected credit loss rate under 12
month expected credit loss (“ECL") method based
on the Group’s assessment in the risk of default
of the respective counterparties.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and bank balances
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has assessed
that the expected loss rates for other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and
bank balances were insignificant. Thus, no loss
allowance for other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
was recognised.

Amount due from an associate

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the expected credit
loss of amount due from an associate based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Company believe
that there is a significant increase in credit risk of
this amount since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on lifetime ECL. For
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group assessed the ECL for amount due from an
associate, RMB111,000 (2019: RMB1,740,000) loss
allowance was recognised.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Category
b

Description

R

3 M¥ERRE

S 18 (@

3.1 Bt E ke A& m)
(b) =& =K@

AEE AR &R AR5
B EATER

Trade receivables
and contract assets

ERERRENEE

Other financial assets

HtemEE

Performing

IE®

Watch list

2Dad

Doubtful

a] &

Loss

B

Write-off

%

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts

HOTENERBREREEAHSR

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle after due date
BEHALZRBREREAROHEER

There has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external resources
ABEENFINBERNESETEER
b2 B R R 1 IR B E AN
There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BEBRAEECERARE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

FEBRAGBALRREN K EE
BRGERREZRD

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
REEBEEERR
— AERARE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
REEBEEERR

— AERARE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
REEBEEERR

— AERARE
Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
REEBEEERR
— EERREAE

Amount is written off

T ERLH

12-month ECL

REAEREERR

12-month ECL

REAEREERR

12-month ECL

REAEREERR

Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
ﬂ%ﬁ%1ggﬁ
EEARE

Amount is written off

T ERLH



FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
estimate default rates and loss rates by making
reference to the credit rating given by external
ranking agency over the expected lives of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information, including but not limited to changes
of future economics, GDP growth rate forecast and
market environment, that available without undue
cost or effort.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed based on the provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar
credit risk characteristics, with consideration of
their corresponding estimated default rates and
loss rates, together with the forward-looking
information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)y 3  Bf 3% & P& B 32 ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 B EkEEZEm@
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) 15 E & k&)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, contract assets, which
are subject to ECL assessment:

Internal
Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL

RBER  NEARMEEER

TERFINAEEERE
E - ANBEEEREHE
EERBRFENEERR

Gross carrying amount

W# IR FAEGRACEER RHEBEHLE
2019
RMB'000
ARETT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHERATTECENEE
Trade receivables 21 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 189,094 210,228
— contracts with customers — not credit-impaired
ERER — EXPEH E® BAREREEGNRS AN
EEBE — RERRE
Watch list  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 67,199 92,208
— not credit-impaired
B BARREEEGNRG AN
FEBE — RERAE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 20,175 33,505
— not credit-impaired
[ BARBREEGNRS AN
FEBE — RERRE
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,471 1,572
BB RgEREEEE —EERAE
Other receivables 24 Performing  12-month ECL 19,586 35,092
E i K E¥ REAERAEEES
Amount due from an associate 25 Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 13,311 13,200
EREE ARIRIE B BEEBEERE —EERAE
Pledged bank deposits, fixed bank 26 Performing  12-month ECL 1,344,656 1,437,052
deposits and bank balances and
cash
BEMBIHER  RITEHEFHM 2% % REABHEERE
BOGEHERE
Other items
HitER
Contract assets 23 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 13,512 12,712
i — not credit-impaired
ANEE ER BERERBESNATES

EEER — RERRE

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)y 3  Bf #%5 &l Pt B I8 ()

Corporate
Information
rEEH

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B E ke A& @m)
T 2
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 15 E = k&) éfif
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, EAEAEEBEZERRE .
the Group applies internal credit rating for its IBH— 4y NEEKH Ogﬂﬁ
customers in relations to its operation. The BEEHEBENRPETK %gtg
following table provides information about the BERTR - TRRBERK 3

exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which
is assessed based on provision matrix within

ERELRFEYEERE
(RERBE)RATER

lifetime ECL (Not credit-impaired). A Debtor with BERETGHHEER
credit-impaired with gross carrying amount of % o F2020F12 8318 -
RMB1,471,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HEmMEBEAREASARK

=

Ih “E

Chairman'’s
Statement
Eyrp:

RMB1,572,000) was assessed individually. 1,471,0007C (20194 : A %ﬁ
R¥1572,000T) B 20
FIREMERALETTE 5iE
BT o ;.;%J
g Hoo
Gross carrying amount BEE 1B (8 428 58

At 31 December 2020

REBRE

47

Directors and Senior
Management

20205128318 "
ol
s @ ﬂ
5 Y
Internal credit rating R AR §§“ﬁ
Performing E# 1.54% 189,094 1.54% 13,512
Watch list )3 2.20% 67,199 - -
Doubtful A&t 5.13% 20,175 — — s
276,468 13,512 2w
g «
g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B 35 & b B 2 ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 Bt E ke A& m)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE @
Gross carrying amount (Continued) FRIE B8 4 57 (&
Average Trade Average Contract
At 31 December 2019 loss rate receivables loss rate assets
R2019%12 8310 FHEER FUHEHR FHEEX BNEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AR®ET T
Internal credit rating w15 AR
Performing EE 1.85% 210,228 1.85% 12,712
Watch list BT 2.77% 92,208 — —
Doubtful AJ &¢ 3.42% 33,505 — —
335,941 12,712
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, ERIRZHEF BRI
the trade receivables within performing, watch list AN BEARTERE
and doubtful at the end of the reporting period BEFRBERERER
which have been past due over 90 days are not KRR EZR BRI EH
considered as in default with the consideration that REEPBIBIOE - BRIE
most of the customers are banking institutes and B BEMAISE AR T A
the expected subsequent and historical repayment FEWE I REL o

from trade debtors.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the amount due from an associate was within
the category of loss. There is evidence indicating
that the debtor is credit-impaired. Impairment loss
on amount due from an associate amounted to
RMB111,000 (2019: RMB1,740,000) is provided.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the contract assets was within the category
of performing. Since the assessed probability
of default of contract assets is minimal, no
impairment loss (2019: nil) is provided.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group performed impairment assessment and
did not provide allowance for credit losses for
financial assets other than trade receivables,
contract assets and amount due from an associate
as the calculated provision is insignificant after
considering the probability of default, loss rate and
adjustment with forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3

B E R EEm

3.1 B REREZEm

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) 15 E & k&)
Gross carrying amount (Continued) FRE BB 48 &5 ()
The following table shows the movement in TRETRBCET BRI
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade EREBRANKFEHE
receivables under the simplified approach. BEEENEY -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(Non-credit ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
KREBEH KREREH
FEBR FEBR
(REARE) (BEARNE) At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2019 RW2019F181H 7,595 — 7,595
Changes due to financial instruments  H1A1BRERAZ BT A

recognised as at 1 January: Slem B :

— Impairment losses reversed — HEBBED (4,451) - (4,451)
New financial assets originated MEERAE 6,032 = 6,032
Transfer B (1,572) 1,572 —
As at 31 December 2019 R2019512A31A 7,604 1,572 9,176
Changes due to financial instruments ~ A1A1BRAZ 2RI A

recognised as at 1 January: SlREE

— Impairment losses reversed — REBBRE (6,543) (101) (6,644)
New financial assets originated MESRMEE 4,361 — 4,361
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%12A31H 5,422 1,471 6,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents.
Our Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated
through the availability of financing through
its own cash resources to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of our directors, our
Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

3

MR REEEm®

3.1

B 7 & b A & (@)

(c)

B B

ZENRDERBRERE
RERRRBNIR S MR
SEHEEY - AKERRIB
HEgHeBRETRE
ABITE M % &GE -
E—FREERE MR
R ARBEZER/AE
ETAEAEARD MR

& o
ZN

TRANAREEIFITES
BMEENHSBRANHR -
FZRTIERAEBAEL
XM REEHNERE
BERRMBRERS AR
Ht ETE SR B EDH
BRmpENNERR - %
REENENAERSE

o

=3
N

At 31 December 2020 120205128318

Trade and bill payables ~ EREHLERER 309,775 55,653 = - 365,428 365,428

Other payables i 4,894 = = 4,894 4,894
314,669 55,653 - - 370,322 370,322

Lease liabilities HERRE 1471 3,236 5,409 7,210 17,326 16,510

EHREEEEZRERDA

—s-gEgH 193

Corporate
Information
TEER

Financial
Highlights
MBHE

2020
Major Events
2020F KFE &

K&

*E

Chairman'’s
Statement

REDS X

B [@ &
E 2

Management Discussion
and Analysis
E

REEE

Directors and Senior
Management

5=5ki:

ES

Report of
Directors

EEER

p= g

EERARS

Corporate Governance
Report

PN
= NE A

& o

Environmental,
Social and Governance
- 4

)

R

Financial
Statements

il
=9
e
b
&=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A I AR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3 BEREREm

3.1 B E kR EZEm@

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) 7% Eb ik = B ()
Repayable
on demand Total
or less than 3 months 1 year 2 years  undiscounted Carrying
3 months to 1 year to 2 years to 5 years cash flows amount
AR
OB =fiR -k e ABR
“ARER E-F EME EIF ReR4E RHEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TT  AR®TR ARETR  ARETT ARETRT AR%ETR
At 31 December 2019 120195123318
Trade and bil payables BN EHRENZE 316,153 83193 = = 399,346 399,346
Other payables Hip MR 5,544 = = = 5,544 5,544
301,697 83,193 = = 404,890 404,890
Lease liabilties HEAE 3022 5,326 6,748 3,880 18976 1757
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation

(@) Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technigue(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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MR REEEm®

3.2 X REEME

(a)
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B S RIZ A AEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

)
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3
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B 7 3R 3= MY 5E (@)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

REE2020E128318 1L 2 FE

B E R EEm

3.2 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.2 AREBEEMF W@

(@) Fair value of the Group’s financial () BEAAREBEKEMS
assets that are measured at fair value ENEAEETREE
on a recurring basis (Continued) VR R EE @
Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurement FIIERTELH R
The following table presents the reconciliation of TREZJeMEERSES
Level 3 Measurement of the financial assets: ER SRl

Relationship
Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable inputs
Financial asset Fair value hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
HEEER EAFABE TABEBAYE
tREE ARER MEEER FEHAYE BAZE HAREEZBE
Structured deposits As at 31 December 2020:  Level 3 Net asset value as Estimated return ranged  The higher the
RMB256,733,000 (as stated on the from 1.15% to estimated return,
at 31 December 2019: guotation report 5.25% (as at 31 the higher the
RMB180,084,000) issued by financial December 2019 fair value and vice
institutions ranged from 2.20% versa.
to 2.50%)
ERILER 720205128318 : F3IER SREBLAN BihREER15% BiKESR AR
AR %256,733,0007C RE RS A %5.25% (120195 BEHR R
(R20195 128318 : MEEFE 12A31R : & EMH A o
AR #180,084,0007T) 2.20%%2.50%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ll‘/i\

Y 75 ¥R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  Bf 75 B b B 2 ()

3.2 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.2 AREBEMF @

(@) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value

(a)

5D S BAE A R P B
ENAREESRMAR

on a recurring basis (Continued) WA R EE @
Structured
deposits
EBERER
RMB'000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 7R2019F181H 232,649
Net gain on financial assets SREEF KRR 7,592
Purchase of financial assets BEIHEE 350,000
Redemption of financial assets ERLmEE (410,157)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 180,084
Net gain on financial assets ERMEEFR=E 3,372
Purchase of financial assets BEcsmEE 256,000
Redemption of financial assets ER & E (182,723)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 256,733
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 R AEEE A E3E

during both periods.

The total gains for the year included a realised
gain of RMB2,639,000 and an unrealised gain of
RMB733,000 relating to financial assets that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period (2019: a realised gain of RMB7,508,000 and
an unrealised gain RMB84,000). Such fair value
gains are included in “other (losses)/gains, net”.

MG AEIEREL -

EARBEFENESHE
ERHREEHAREEH K
A R #2,639,0007T & &k
T8 W 5 A R#733,000
JC(2019%F : B B IR W &=
A R #7508,0007T & *
' I8 W A R #84,000
) ZANBEEHE
& KU = R ATE b (8
B) I F5El -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses the market value as stated on the
quotation report issued by financial institutions.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets are disclosed above.

Fair value of financial instruments at
amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values at the end of each reporting
period.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

Provision for slow moving and
obsoleted inventories

Management identified slow moving and obsolete
inventories that were no longer suitable for use in
production or sales based on ageing analysis, and
estimated the provision for inventories based on ageing
of inventories, current market price and estimated future
market demand.

The identification of slow moving and obsolete
inventories required the use of significant judgement
and key assumptions which take into consideration of
historical sales records, utilisation records, ageing and
expectations for future sales orders. Such judgement was
subject to uncertainties as a result of future changes in
market trends and customer demands.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are
assessed based on the provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar credit risk
characteristics, with consideration of their corresponding
estimated default rates and loss rates, together with the
forward-looking information. The Group uses estimations
and judgements to estimate default rates and loss rates
by making reference to the credit rating given by external
ranking agency and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note
3.1(b).

4 BARGEEEIRHE

(a)

(b)
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FEEREFERSE

B I B AR IR AR e 0 AT R Bl O 8
SN BEANEESLHENR
EFE IRBFEREK B
Al S ERMEG KK EF
KGR -

HABHELEREFERTER
ERAHERBERER  XFZE
BELHEHERERLE FE
RREC AR B R R IHEFT B TR
H-mrmEBEMELTR
R AR R E L - 35 L) T A0 R &R
FENEENE -

ERMEEZRE

CHEEBEBRBREENER
B EBABAEERAUEAR
BRBHNSEEBASME XL
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@) Description of segments and principal

activities

Segment information has been identified on the basis
of internal management reports which are reviewed by
the Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, in order to allocate resources to the
operating and reportable segments and to assess their
performance.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Embedded software and secure payment products —

BRAXRHENZ 2N EM —

Platform and service —

F e KR —

Each operating and reportable segment derives its
revenue from the sales of products and provision of
data processing services. They are managed separately
because each product requires different production and
marketing strategies.

Segment results represent the gross profits earned by
each segment.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Manufacture and sale of embedded software
and secure payment products for smart secure

payment
HEMHES L 2 XN R R AT
ME & A E an

Provision of data processing, digital
equipment, system platforms and other total
solutions for customers in a wide business
range including financial, government,
healthcare, transportation and retails by
Ieveraging innovative Fintech
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARK 7 ZE R @) o 5n
(Continued) 2 %i

SE4

(a) Description of segments and principal () PP EE X ESEE = n
activities (Continued) () gf

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

AT RAEBEIZ A HE DR

results by reportable segment: WAREBZDN: o2t
Rse
Revenue Results =S
['ON S
2019 2019 EEu
RMB'000 RMB'000 EEN
ARBTFT ARBFT S & H
Sales to external parties of M EF ZHE s .
— embedded software and — AR EMHA 3 . &
secure payment products 25 TAE R 747,781 980,012 181,930 234,044 &=
— platform and service — FaRkR® 534,122 435,653 201,907 164,492 cSm
1,281,903 1,415,665 383,837 398,536 § for
Other income H h e A 52,949 50,904 S [
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib (B18) s - F8 (33,821) 10,011 g g™
Research and development costs  fff 8 Ak ZX (109,840) (113,474) 2 giL
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEER (91,938) (98,798) 5 @ e
Administrative expenses THRHAX (34,939) (39,556) § 2 ﬁl
Reversal of/(allowance for) B ERREEBE 5
impairment loss on trade Bm ()
receivables 2,154 (1,581) 5 o4
Impairment loss on amount due  JEUWE:E R R KB 2 £ S
from an associate HEEE (111) (1,740) D%%WW‘
Reversal of impairment loss on REERNR 2R 2 b
interests in an associate BB &R 1,500 3,464 .
Finance costs B 75 B AR (549) (884) :
5=
Profit before income tax B P 45 250 A1 A 169,242 206,882 & %;
§ =
The management of the Group makes decisions AEEBEREEREBES S BEFR 5 h

EHRE - BB BEEHE
BERABAFETRELE
BHRR - At YEEHRD
MEELABBEH -

according to the gross profit of each segment. No
information of segment assets and liabilities is available
for the assessment of performance of different business
activities. Therefore, no information about segment
assets and liabilities is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z=2020F12A318 1L 25

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(Continued)

(b) Revenue

The segment information for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 by business segment are as
follows:

Types of goods or services EYHBREEE

E

W AR5 EBE F m

(b) WA

#H £2020512 8318 K&20194
RANBIEZEFEZSEBED S
ZHWERMAT

Embedded software and AR B

secure payment products ZEENEM 747,781 — 747,781
Data processing 2R IE = 225,640 225,640
Digital Equipment HFRE — 308,482 308,482
Total BEF 747,781 534,122 1,281,903

Revenue from sale of embedded software and secure
payment products and sale of digital equipment are
recognised at a point in time, and revenue from data
processing services are recognised over time.

202 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZDIBER @

(Continued)

Corporate
Information
& % & B

(b) Revenue (Continued) (b) WA )

Financial
Highlights
MBHE

2020
Major Events
2020F K FE 2

=

Chairman'’s
Statement
A

Geographical markets it & T 5 s 58
Overseas and the special BN E B R 52m
administrative regions THRE(E®]) S @

of Hong Kong AR P4 BT [ -
("Hong Kong") and (B:10D) 5 m
Macao (“Macao”) 70,124 20,232 90,356 3=
Mainland China o B A 4 677,657 513,890 1,191,547 ziy
o SE
S &
Total A 747,781 534,122 1,281,903 g =
s
For the year ended 31 December 2019 5 ol
B E2019F2ANAEZFE £ 85
Embedded SEm
software and -

secure o
payment Platform 5
products and service Total 2o "
BAR B S
Mz 2 g

XNEm Fa kR &t §

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT g
= S
Types of goods or services E¥HRHEEE éé:ﬁ
Embedded software AR B s
and secure payment 72X E B Eam
products 980,012 — 980,012 g%
Data processing IR R IE = 259,078 259,078

Digital equipment HF 7 H — 176,575 176,575 = 24
gEE
g2
Total a&h 980,012 435,653 1,415,665 ERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WA K % ZBE # @
(Continued)
(b) Revenue (Continued) (b) Y A )
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A31B L2 FE
Embedded
software and
secure
payment Platform
products and service Total
AR B
Mz 2
XNEm FakR% &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AR T T ARETTT
Geographical markets & %
Overseas and Hong Kong g N B S AR P
and Macao 82,688 16,980 99,668
Mainland China HR B A 897,324 418,673 1,315,997
Total A&t 980,012 435,653 1,415,665
() Other information (0 HiEH
Information about the Group’s non-current assets except AEEREF TA RIELERIE

for financial instruments and deferred tax assets by
location of assets is presented as below:

BENINZFTEIERSEER
BEMEMWESERMOT

2019
RMB’000

ARETTT

Hong Kong B 150,666 163,322
China el Np:i] 319,483 275,151
470,149 438,473
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W AR % HBE R @
(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) (0 HEaER @
Information about major customer EBXEEFMNEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no HZE2020F 12 A318ILE 2 FE -
customer with revenue in aggregate (2019: one customer R#ARRENE 2 ZNE R
with revenue of RMB147,348,000 in aggregate) from MEERRE S EILEEF D
the segments of both embedded software and secure WA 45 (019F : —ZRBFEH
payment products and platform and service which WA BB A R¥147,348,000)
accounted for more than 10% of the Group's total EAREBE BB ATII0%NA L -
revenue.
6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hfilg A
2019
RMB'000
ARBTT
Government grants I8 78 Ab 8,112 5,504
Interest income from bank deposits R 177F #X &l B U A 28,260 30,450
Value-added tax refund EEDRN 14,846 13,538
Rental income from investment BREMENHSKA
property 1,532 1,172
Others Hity 199 240
52,949 50,904
7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Hfte(E#E) hm FHE
2019
RMB’'000
ARBTFT
Net exchange (losses)/gains N (B518), W= FE (37,083) 3,783
Investment income from financial EARBEFABRZZ
assets at FVTPL ERMEERERA 2,639 7,508
Unrealised gain from financial assets EAAEEAEBZRZ
at FVTPL (Note 3.2) CRMEEZAER KRS
(#1723.2) 733 84
Loss on disposal of property, plant B E¥ ¥ - BE L& EEE
and equipment (110) (1,364)
(33,821) 10,011
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

2019
Note RMB’000
Mt 7 ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEK K 20 755,199 799,887
Provision for inventories FE#E 5,585 2,843
Employee benefits expenses BTRHFBER 9 197,957 233,757
Depreciation of property, plant %% - BE&ZETE
and equipment 35,168 39,637
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEERE
assets 9,286 9,322
Depreciation of investment REMETE
property 2,153 2,194
Amortisation of intangible assets £ JiZ & = ¥k 2,290 2,290
Reversal of warranty provision 1R % % % # @l (1,713) —
Legal and professional fees ERENMEXEER 2,495 2,970
Auditor’s remuneration % R B &
— audit services — ZE RS 1,216 1,635
— non-audit services — EZERH 391 356
Business entertainment expenses 2 7% 1 #F & A 5,086 5,115
Freight and duties BEEREATN 12,077 12,337
Professional service fees BEREE 17,574 9,928
Testing fees %208 & 10,583 12,115
Travelling and transportation ERE
expenses 14,929 17,758
Other expenses Hi & 64,507 116,813
Total cost of sales, research SHER A - B AR
and development costs, selling  $5& & 5 55 X A &
and distribution expenses and ~ fTEFI X A &t
administrative expenses 1,134,783 1,268,957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9

2 6%
2019 Sf«
RMB'000
AR T T z
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) BE=WE (HE10) 15,949 15,998

Retirement benefits scheme RN FIET Bl (A7 72 £
contributions (Note) 6,743 8,027 S L
Share-based payments B 1D A5 = 1,009 h 58
Staff costs & B B AR 175,265 208,723 -
i
Total employee benefit expenses BIFBEREGR 197,957 233,757 E5%
S &

Note: The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in Hong Hat: ARRIRBEBNAKEILMEBRE B
Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees ® o  BERBESER BFFEHMNE 3 =
are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s salaries, up to a THEBE W ARS% @ A5 A% %1,500T g a®
maximum of HKD1,500 per employee per month. The assets of MPF are BER BEESNEEEAEESH - g;,‘g
held separately from those of the Group companies in an independently AZAABLEE - éii
administered fund. g %ELf
£

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are AEERFTFBEAMMHBEARNEGIEES =
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated 2MATEBFEENBRERRKE .
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a MEtE - ZEWBRAAERETIEHE B
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to B —E L Bl R R KA R AT Bl 3R - A& fn
fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to 5 RNE G R M — B ERIRIEZ I

P

the retirement benefits scheme are to make the required contributions FHEIMREREER -
under the scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

EX BHFEYTEEAM
REFHNETHE

2019
RMB'000
AR T T
Directors’ fees e 573 584
Other emoluments to executive EMTHITESNES
directors
— basic salaries and allowances — BN EFER 10,070 9,179
— bonus — D4 5,212 5,210
— retirement benefits scheme — RIKE M F B
contributions 94 99
— equity-settled share-based — RS ENRMD A
payments — 926
15,949 15,998

Unless indicated otherwise, the bonus of the directors was
discretionary and determined with reference to the Group's
performance, individual performances and comparable market
statistics.

Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (the “Chief
Executive”) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
below include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R B AT )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

10 EE - BEIHTEHEHAN
EEFME TS @

R¥EE R Z £ 5 R K A=) & B A
BEZEENEFERTEAFE Z M
EWMT

HE20200F 128318 1L 2EE

(A)Executive directors NETES
Mr. Lu Run Ting ERELE 3,631 = 2,326 = = 5,957
Mr. Lu Runyi e 1,265 = 565 16 = 1,846
Mr. Hou Ping & FiE 2,587 - 1,860 16 - 4,463
Mr. Lu Xiaozhong (Note) BNBEEW ) m = = 10 = 281
Mr. Wu Sigiang REBREL 622 = 300 20 — 942
Mr. Ling Wai Lim (Note) BERREEW 7) 776 = 161 16 — 953
Ms. Li Yijin (Note) ZokTT (W) 918 — — 16 — 934
(B) Independent non-executive B)BLFHTES
directors
Ms. Ye Lu ® xxt = 172 = = = 1
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BXREHE = 229 = = = 229
Mr. Yang Geng (Note) B BREWH) = 172 — — — 172
10,070 573 5,212 9% = 15,949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A I AR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

210

10

EX BHFEYTEEAM

EEFyFMEIM €@

For the year ended 31 December 2019: HZ2019F12A31HIE Z2FE :
Retirement
Basic salaries benefits  Equity-settled
and Directors' scheme  share-based
allowances fees Bonus  contributions payments Total
X5 EREN  NERAE
B2A e AT SEfR NRHA At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETR ARETR AR%Tx
(A)Executive directors N#TES
Mr. Lu Run Ting ERELAE 3,703 = 2372 16 — 6,091
Mr. Lu Runyi EEREE 1,099 = 576 16 225 1916
Mr. Hou Ping & TiE 2,436 = 1,898 16 336 4,686
Mr. Lu Xiaozhong (Note) BNBEEWF) 761 = 64 20 140 985
Mr. Wu Sigiang REBBEE 617 = 300 20 225 1162
Mr. Ling Wai Lim (Note) BRELEWZ) 563 = = 1 = 574
(B) Independent non-executive B)BYEHTES
directors
Ms. Ye Lu E gut = 175 = = = 175
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BXREE = 234 = = — 234
Mr. Yang Geng (Note) B BREWZ) = 106 — — — 106
Mr. Liu John Jianhua (Note) BREREWH) = 69 = = = 69
9,179 584 5210 99 926 15,998
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Note:

= Mr. Lu Xiaozhong was retired as executive director with effect from 18
May 2020.

= Ms. Li Yijin was appointed as executive director with effect from 18
May 2020.

= Mr. Yang Geng was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 22 May 2019.

— Mr. Liu John Jianhua was retired as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 22 May 2019.

— Mr. Ling Wai Lim was re-designated from non-executive Director to
executive Director with effect from 15 March 2019.

10 EE - BEIHTEHEHAN
BEETHMEIMLSw

FRBHTEEZMEREEEARLRF
RAKEEHZREGE -

PRBIFATESTZRESEER
BEERARPMEZZIRBE -

Wit -

= E/NREAB202065 18 A RTHIT
BE o

— FHHELTR2020F5818E B EHER
MITE=S -

= BELEAER2019F5 A28 R EZ T BB
NIERITES -

= B EEE S £ H2019F5A22A R EE
NIERITES -

= B Bk BE % £ 520196 3A15H R A IE #
TEEATARITES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

212

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31
December 2020 included four (2019: three) directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
remuneration of the remaining one (2019: two) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor Chief Executive of
the Company during the year were as follows:

10 EE  BEHTEHRAMN

EeFMETM S @

HE2020F12 8318 It 2 FE Al &
=B A B EmA (20194  =7)
EE HMeHBHEHRNLER - BES
REERITEN  RNEEHRTH—AL
(2019F : MAL) = FH A LA S
R

2019
RMB'000
AR T T
Employees 8T
— basic salaries and allowances — BEARFH B FER 1,694 2,299
— bonus — DAL — 624
— retirement benefits scheme — RINE M 58I 4 5K

contributions 15 63

— equity-settled share-based — RS ENRMD A
payments — 449
1,709 3,435

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose fell within the following
bands is as follows:

RESAIIESFHMALHARE
TREBEM

Number of employees

BETAH

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 A K #1,500,0017T &

A K #2,000,0007T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director or the Chief Executive
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

10 DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Directors’ retirement and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
and termination benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by any third
parties for making available directors’ services during the year
(2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour
of the directors of the Company, or controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
each of the year or at any time during the year.

EHREEEEZRERDA

10 EE  BEHTEHRAMN

EEyFMEIM €@

ESRRRRLEREH

RER - B8 EF S YIS KR

] 2R R &2 4% 1F 12 1% 43 7 (20194F -
) e

AESEERBOE=TR
HHRKE

RER  BERESEEREMET
ME=ZFREXENE=ZFEMNRE
(2019 : &) »

BRUESE XZFESEE
FHEZEZABRBRZEESEN
REERERAZRANER -
EERREMZZNER

RERBHFRANTMER - B8N
ARREFHXRSFESEHAEA
BRELZFEENHEERAY S
AMEFR EERREMBRZLH -

BEERRS ZHEHEHF
M E AR &

RE KBS NI - AR
B ERARBEBAMASARE
EREPEBRNMBEELE AR
MEARS  REREH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4rE B 7% R B R (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

1

214

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax
expense, and shows what amounts are recognised directly in
equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable
and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates
made in relation to the Group’s tax position.

1

FTEHRE R

KIGEMEDIMTARENREHE
A YIRTEENESERNEHE
DA Ko 4. 75 SR A0S AT R 0 IR B a0l %2
EREL  ERETEARENHR
BN ERE R E KA -

2019
RMB'000
ARETTT

Current income tax BN HA P 15 %4 18
Mainland China corporate income tax B8 93 1 3£ AT 15 &1 13,452 18,713
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEM 4,392 4,114
Mainland China withholding tax R B ) b TE 30 P 45 B 9,412 9,290
27,256 32,117
Deferred income tax EE T I8 (3,274) (1,658)
Income tax expense Fris#iE A 23,982 30,459

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HKD2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, starting from the year ended 31
December 2019, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
8.25% on the first HKD2,000,000 of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above
HKD2,000,000 for Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1

#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Mainland China corporate income tax is calculated at
the applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are subject
to Mainland China corporate income tax at 25%, except
that Goldpac Limited which is approved for 3 years as an
enterprise satisfied as a High-New Technology Enterprise and
is entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% in 2017, 2018
and 2019. Goldpac Limited has obtained the renewal in 2020
and continued to be entitled to the preferential tax rate of
15% in 2020, 2021 and 2022.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No. 1, only
the profits earned prior to 1 January 2008, when distributed
to foreign investors, can be grandfathered with the exemption
from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant to Articles 3 and
27 of the Corporate Income Tax Law and Article 91 of its
Implementation Rules, dividend distributed out of the profit
generated thereafter, shall be subject to corporate income
tax at 10% or reduced tax rate if tax treaty or arrangement
applies. Under the relevant tax arrangement, withholding
tax rate on dividend distribution to the qualifying Hong
Kong resident companies is 5%. Deferred tax liability on
the undistributed profits earned by Goldpac Limited since 1
January 2008 have been accrued at the tax rate of 5%.

11 FEHERA@®

TEAMEXRAERREREAL
BRZEZERIERBOBERTE -

AR E] HY R B A BT B R B $225% Y
FREMNPRANMDEMER - E
S HEBRAT B RE A= R
1% WA 20174 ~ 20184 5 2019
FEFHNEXI5%MEBERE - £F
EARATDR2020FEBEL - I
AIFA20204F ~ 2021 2022 =F A
BEZZI5%NEERFE -

BEVERIRBRREER T B
(2008) FE 15 Bt & B &1 + 1 A1 3% SN &%
BEEHDIRE - 28 R2008F 14
18 2 BT BREAY S B A e gk FE 0 B o
R BB EMBEIEEIGR K27
R EEmMBFEIERT - AHE
EAMMNED KRS - BiZ10%3k
(WB U e s L HEE ) BRE AL =
BMEERBR - REMABER KL
- PETFTEEREBERAFTKE
MIEMIE R AE5% - £ FBEFR QA
20084171 H 8 B EUAY & 2 B 4 71
EEFHIE S EDIES% M B KRR -

SHEUELRRERAA —T-TFFEH /5

TEE

Corporate
Information

cial

Fi
Hig

2020
A=A

Major Events

20204

(e

Chairman
Statement

scussion

Management

i

4
=

EERE

Management

Directors and Senior

===

Report of
Directors
£

4

Corporate Governance
Report
A o 3R
1 >R B /A

9}
=

©
9]
=
c
o
i

Social and C

Financial
Statements

40
&
b
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to profit before

tax as follows:

BRAnH

11 FIEHEH@
FEMESHE R SRR AR M A/ S

2019
RMB’000
ARET T
Profit before tax B B A s A 169,242 206,882
Tax at PRC tax rate of 25% 1R25% R B K5 E B IR
(2019: 25%) (20194 : 25%) 42,311 51,721
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ AT #1754 59 7 B9 3 75 5 28
for tax purpose 5,252 4,560
Tax effect of income not taxable BEMH WA G L
for tax purpose (6,496) (6,452)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & f& 321 75 &5 18 K9 5FR BB 791 (28)
Tax effect of tax concession MEEENNGETE (25,459) (25,724)
Tax effect of different tax rate of EEM B REE @K E
subsidiaries operating in il =NCIE RN RS
other tax jurisdiction ORITR A (173) (1,405)
Withholding EIT on undistributed AR 9 BE s A &9 B FE
profits in the PRC EMEH 7,346 6,720
Others H 410 1,067
Income tax expense for the year FERNAERER 23,982 30,459
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SRER v S

N S Ek

The basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the FENRARGHEANGRERER Sfa
Company is calculated by dividing: BB T FEETE :
. the profit attributable to owners of the Company . KA B A FEMLTE E 5

e by the weighted average number of ordinary shares e BRUXGHFEZEEITHMN £

outstanding during the financial year 9 3 i AR AR B o &

- 2020 09

< 40

Profit for the period attributable to ~ ZRR & # B A FE G HI A F)E EEw

owners of the Company (RMB'000) (A R¥ F7) 145,665 177,125 S 2

Weighted average number of SAESREARRBNAEKBO

ordinary shares for the purpose of  fi#E 15 3% i A% A% 8t (FA%)
basic earnings per share (thousand)  (f#7at)

Management Discussion

(Note) 825,907 826,047
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) EAZREF (ARE D) 17.6 21.4
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the Wit §+§ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ§t%$&}§%§ﬂj}u%1ﬁ] § [
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have %3@%}&%{% ! ﬁ%?ﬂﬁ%$@ﬁﬂﬁ{ﬁ§§ 2 ?%TL
been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company Bt 8EE THE L ERRARANARA “% gk
by an independent trustee under the shares award scheme of the RAEWRL - o f“
Company. §§ ™
5 .
For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, diluted E Z=2019F12 A318 k2020412 A31 -
earnings per share were same as the basic earnings per share Hit25E  SRESRMNEGRE -t
. . . . . = 5 Sz N S Y
as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding REMER ARFEFELEALER &L
during the year. BERENDHEITERAR - -
ééj&;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

13

218

DIVIDENDS 13
2019
RMB’000
ARBTFT
2020 Interim — HK3.0 cents 2020 [ # A
(2019 Interim — HK4.0 cents) — B EE KRB 3010
per ordinary share (20195 F [ # 5]
— FRE @R B K400 21,920 30,065
2019 Final — HK10.0 cents 20195 F E R 5
(2018 Final — HK10.0 cents) — FIR MR B 10.01L
per ordinary share (20185 FF [ R Hj
— BREBRRBE
10.0) 75,938 73,150
2019 Special — HK6.0 cents 2019 FEFRIR B
(2018 Special — HK6.0 cents) — BRE®ERB%6.00L
per ordinary share (2018F FE 5 AI AR B
— BREERKRBE6.00) 45,563 43,890
143,421 147,105

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents (2019: HK10.0 cents) and a special dividend of
HK4.0 cents (2019: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2020 have been proposed
by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The dividend declared after 31 December
2020 has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December

2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T EL RS )

REZE2020E 128318 I 2 &EE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YXE - BERRXE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Plant and  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
BH - RE
BF ST RE BERKEE ERIE h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTL
Cost B

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1818 231,913 60,365 5,246 295,918 31,427 624,369
Additions NE — 8,654 — 7,518 78,082 94,254
Disposals RE - (1,898) — (3,060) — (4,958)
Transfers B = = = 25,072 (25,072) =

Transfer to investment ERERENE
property (Note 16) (Hiit1e) (66,507) = = = = (66,507)
Exchange realignment XA E 153 16 21 = = 190
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31A 165,559 67,137 5,267 325,448 84,437 647,848
Additions AE = 7,811 = 317 69,354 80,336
Disposals RE = (52) = (2,819) — 2,871)
Transfers g1 — 132 — 2,335 (2,467) —
Exchange realignment EHAZ (6,517) (59) (59) — — (6,635)
At 31 December 2020 120204128318 159,042 74,969 5,208 328,135 151,324 718,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

14 PROPERTY,

220

(Continued)

REE2020E128318 1L 2 FE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 V¥ BEERRE®D

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Plant and  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
BA £E
BF PEL RE  HBERME ERIR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2019 7201951818 39,488 44,385 2,828 203,149 — 289,850
Provided for the year FREE 6,438 9,768 584 22,847 — 39,637
Eliminated on disposals RERYH = (1,898) = (1,696) = (3,594)
Transfer to investment BBRERENE
property (Note 16) (B i16) (3,969) = = = = (3,969)
Exchange realignment X R 17 16 13 = = 200
At 31 December 2019 2019512 4318 42,128 52,271 3,425 224,300 = 322,124
Provided for the year FREE 5,961 9,619 536 19,052 — 35,168
Eliminated on disposals RERYH — (52) = (2,708) — (2,760)
Exchange realignment iR (976) (78) (12) = — (1,066)
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A31H 47113 61,760 3,949 240,644 = 353,466
Carrying values EHEE
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 111,929 13,209 1,259 87,491 151,324 365,212
At 31 December 2019 "2019%12 4318 123,431 14,866 1,842 101,148 84,437 325,724
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15 LEASES

e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

This note provides information for leases where the Group is

a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial

position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows

15 HE

AMt RN EEERAEEA
A A e

(i) HEMBRRRPER
Ry & 58

R B B ISR 3R o EE 7E B AR

c
8o
© =
S ©
o
ot
e
O

Financial

2020

©EEH

»nld
< fi
=K
oK
54
8.8
TN
o
EN

'cx

the following amounts relating to leases: R FMT -
\%' ;E_, Ha
£ 5
Leasehold Leased % g‘:
Right-of-use assets lands properties Equipment Total o
ERAREE HE L HEWHE B3] i 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 g
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR é
£
At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H 26,206 6,449 2,416 35,071 )
Additions NE — 17,462 — 17,462 s
Depreciation nE (403) (7,538) (1,381) (9,322) .
At 31 December 2019 #2019412 4318 25,803 16,373 1,035 43,211 ziy
o B IE
e
At 1 January 2020 M2020F1H1H 25,803 16,373 1,035 43,211 £ “E{
Additions NE — 7,995 — 7,995
Depreciation wE (564) (7,687) (1,035) (9,286) 5ok
s S
Siu
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A31H 25,239 16,681 = 41,920 =m
2019 -
RMB'000 g g?ﬁ
v 7 8 &%
AREF T @ ﬁj;
g ¢
Lease liabilities HEEE S
Current 35 Hf 5,150 8,108 .
Non-current JE 38 1 11,360 9,463 =%
16,510 17,571 Zom
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

15 LEASES (continued) 15 #HEw
(i) Amounts recognised in the (i) FEBEZRPERNE
consolidated statement of profit or loss 58
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the FelERXPHEHEERENS
following amounts relating to leases: BT
2019
Note RMB'000
B &t ARBTF T
Depreciation charge of FERAEEENEER
right-of-use assets
Leasehold lands HE T 564 403
Leased properties HEME 7,687 7,538
Equipment B 1,035 1,381
8 9,286 9,322
Expense relating to A EREN
short-term leases (included B (FFASHE K A
in cost of goods sold and AT )
administrative expenses) 236 1,251
The total cash outflow for leases during the year R E 22020124318 I 2 F
ended 31 December 2020 was RMB9,605,000 (2019: E-HERSAHBBERAR
RMB9,600,000) excluding short-term leases. #9,605,0007T (20194 : AR¥E
9,600,0007T) » HA T E1E%E H
HE -
(iii) The Group's leasing activities and how (i) AEENWHEHEFTBUR
these are accounted for mAETETEE
The Group leases various leasehold lands, properties and AEBAEKEHEREHEE
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered T MXERME - HBELH
into for fixed term of 50 years for leasehold lands AR EE HR R505F - ME
and 2 years to 4 years for properties and equipment, REERER B2FEZRA4F o

respectively.

222 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

15 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for (Continued)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Variable lease payments

A lease of equipment is either with only fixed lease

payments or contain variable lease that is based on the

volume of printing and minimum annual lease payment

that is fixed over the lease term. The amount of fixed and
variable lease payment paid/payable to relevant lessor

15 HEw

(i) AEENWHEEZTEHUR
Al #E 1T & 5 R B (|

HEGRFEBILHEN 23
BT AR AR SR R A o BR
MAREHEEENERE
g oh - TS B A R
e HEEETSIERMERE
& °

TREEN R

wECHEREFEEHER
R B EERER S8 28
EREREHRAEE N &IEF
HER BEAFE B
F& {4 = 18 B8 tH A A &9 Bl SE F0 A]

(iv)

for the years ended: SHEFRNSER:
2019
RMB'000
ARBTF T
Fixed payments & 7 15 53K 1,080 1,440
Variable payments CIE=ANEA 507 632
Total payments BITREF 1,587 2,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16 REY=
2019
Note RMB’000
0Nz AR T T
Non-current assets — at cost FREBEE — BHHAA
Opening balance as at 1 January 1818 8 %] 4 & 66,601 =
Transfer from property, plant and EZEM% - BE &
equipment B4 14 — 66,507
Exchange realignment E & 58 & (4,025) 94
Closing balance as at 12A31B KR &
31 December 62,576 66,601
Depreciation e
Opening balance as at 1 January 1818 H 9] 4 & 6,288 —
Provided for the year FAEAE 2,153 2,194
Transfer from property, ERamE -
plant and equipment % 5 R 5% 14 — 3,969
Exchange realignment ME 8 B (447) 125
Closing balance as at 12A31BHR&E &
31 December 7,994 6,288
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 128318 54,582 60,313
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for
investment properties

16 BEMEw

(i) ?xﬁ%%&’(ﬂ” 7t A 72
o Y & §

Rental income from operating leases #% & & I A

Direct operating expenses EEHERANY
from property that NEEKLLEER
generated rental income

Direct operating expenses TEEHERANY
from property that did not NEELLEEHR

generate rental income

2019

RMB’000

ARBTT

1,532 1172
(2,191) (2,236)

(ii) Leasing arrangement

In 2020, the Group leases out certain portion of its
office building under operating lease with rentals payable
monthly. The lease has a lease period of 3 years.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31
December 2020 was RMB55,274,000 (2019: RMB61,244,000).
The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation
carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, independent valuer not
connected with the Group.

The valuation has been arrived by reference to direct
comparison method as available in the market and where
appropriate, on the basis of referencing to the sales
transactions of similar commercial properties in Hong Kong.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and
best use of the property is their current use.

EHEEZERAERAA

(i) HEZH

R2020F - NEE AT AESH
ﬁ%ﬂéﬁ’]ﬁ“%frﬂﬁﬁtﬁfﬂﬁl
DWAE - HEHAIF -

NEE K E Y R2020F12 4318
B A R{EE A A RKS5274,0005T
(20194F : A R #61,244,0007T) ° A
BB = R & B 7N & [ 4 BE B A9 08
ﬁéﬂﬂ%%ﬂﬁ&%ﬁ?ﬁfﬁ&ﬁ?ﬂﬁ
RARIEITHHSE -

EEDEAERLBOALEME L
AEMEER YEBEBRT2EER
BREREVENHERS °

EFEMENAABER  HZY
ENEaMKEEREEE AR E
A e

—E-EEH )5

Corporate
Information

Financial

2020

Directors and Senior Management Discussion Chairman'’s

Report of

Corporate Governance

Environmental,
Social and Governance

Financial
Statements

TEEEH

A

Highlights
B 7% 15 2

Major Events
20206 KF i

Statement
FRERE

SE Y

and Analysis

&

+ 8

i

SWE

Management
= 4

=D

Directors
: S

T

7 £t S

& T
=)

£

=

}

',’X

40
s
b
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

& B S 8 AR Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 16

Details of the Group's investment property and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Office unit located in Hong Kong RBEBNBAET 54,582

BEWEmw

BEARERR  AKREREVEN
HBRAREBEEBREMDT

2019
Fair value
Carrying at level 3
amount Hierarchy
FIER
REEE AREE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

55,274 60,313 61,244

The above investment property is depreciated for 30 years on

FREBREYEZERERI0FHR

a straight-line basis. AYTE o
17 GOODWILL 17 B8
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost and carrying value AR EREE A
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 2020 7201941818 - 2019412 A31E
}2020412 A318 1,375

The management of the Group determined that there is no
impairment in the cash-generating unit (“CGU") of embedded
software and secure payment products containing the goodwill
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 BFREE

Trademarks
[k
RMB'000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 7"2019F1H1H
Cost BN 18,318
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETE MR A (11,642)
Net book amount BREFE 6,676
Year ended 31 December 2019 B E2019F12B831HIE 2 & E
Opening net book amount B BR M F A 6,676
Amortisation charge B (2,290)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 4,386
At 31 December 2019 7"2019512A31H
Cost 4N 18,318
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt EANRE (13,932)
Net book amount R FE 4,386
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020512A831A L 2 E
Opening net book amount B A BRE B 4,386
Amortisation charge BIHR (2,290)
Closing net book amount HRERMFE 2,096
At 31 December 2020 742020512 A31H
Cost BN 18,318
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETE#E TR E (16,222)
Net book amount BRMEFE 2,096

The trademarks are with finite useful lives and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over periods of 5 to 9 years (2019: 5

to 9 years).

EHEEZERAERAA

FIZABERERFR - BESEIOF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 RBERQTRIZER
2019
RMB’000
ARET T
Unlisted investments in associates, RERIELETMZEZERNA
at cost DN 32,120 32,120
Share of post-acquisition BB ERE KGR
results and reserves (4,929) (4,929)
Impairment loss on interests REERAI 2R 2
in an associate B & E (22,227) (23,727)
4,964 3,464
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting RARERRTEF L AR 254
period are as follows: SR :
Country of Proportion of issued ordinary share
incorporation and and capital indirectly
Name of entity operation held by the Group Principal activity
HASEFEELEN
EEEE RINEEER BREBERREAZELL TEXK
Kaixin Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands 45% 45%  Investment holding
AEERERAT EREMRES ERAR
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc. Philippines 45% 45%  Data processing
("Goldpac ACS") FEE HERE
Sichuan Zhongruan Technology Ltd. (“SCZR")  Mainland China 19.68% 19.68%  Smart city platform
m)legREERA(ERE]) HE A (Note) (Note) BERMLE
(Hi) (Hit)
Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over SCZR because Hat: REBEREHENT)IFHENEATZE A
it is able to appoint two out of the seven directors of that company BREBEN)IFE 2 ARER A5 B
under the article of association of that company. BRELBEZEPHME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19 REBERAT 2R @ o5
S g
o e e 55
Aggregate information of associates that EIRIFEKREEARNWER St
are not individually material B8 e
S Gu=
2019 <%=
RMB'000 -
ARBTFT < 4
23K
Rs¥
The Group's share of losses of AEBEMLEE AR ZEBE g
associates — —
%gi\ﬂ
IS
Aggregate carrying amount of REEREERRERZ sk
the Group’s interests in FREEES N
these associates 4,964 3,464 §
P
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss of ARBOELRRBEERE DR ZE 2‘5%
associates because the Group’s share of losses of the associates 18 ’7321-‘%25'1%(%5@@%%/& %jg[u
in previous years has exceeded its investment costs. The aﬁ%%ﬁ@%ﬁaiﬁ;@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ;ﬂz$ ° R 5"
amounts of the unrecognised share of losses of the associates, MREMEE AR ZBESERE s
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: BMEFABOWT 5 m
2019 el
RMB'000 g oI
AREFL 7
Unrecognised share of losses of REREREGEE QA 5ol
the associates for the year ZEE (1,224) (1,550) ‘égm}z
ﬁﬁﬂ
Accumulated unrecognised share of R &7 i R FE (L B & 1 A B
losses of the associates 2 E 18 (3,931) (2,707) 5 .
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the interest M2020F12A31H ' tEA—HE—& ié&ﬁ
in SCZR had been tested for impairment in accordance with E R ERNREEEDR 5 o
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset. BEBeEREICH[EERE]E S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

—
IV

19

230

& B 7% 3 3R B & (|

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that
are not individually material (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group took
into consideration the estimation of recoverable amount of the
associate and determined that an amount of RMB27,191,000
was recognised in profit or loss as an impairment loss on
interest in an associate based on the value in use of SCZR.

In September 2019, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with remaining four shareholders of SCZR
and an independent third party (collectively, the “Buyers”) to
dispose of the 19.68% interest in SCZR held by the Group for
a total consideration of RMB32,920,000. According to the sale
and purchase agreement, the transaction would be completed
(i.e. the 19.68% interest in SCZR held by the Group will need
to be transferred to the Buyers) when the entire consideration
is settled by the Buyers.

As of 31 December 2020, management expects that the
transaction will not be completed within twelve months.
Accordingly, the interest in SCZR to be sold does not meet the
definition of assets held for sale under HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, non-refundable
sale proceeds of RMB1,500,000 (2019: RMB3,464,000)
were received by the Group from the Buyers. Accordingly,
management of the Group considers the recoverable amount
of the investment in SCZR has increased. Therefore, a reversal
of impairment loss on the interest in SCZR of an equivalent
amount was recorded in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Upon consultation
with the Group’s external legal counselor, management of the
Group considers that the Group does not have any obligation
of returning the proceeds of RMB4,964,000 received from
Buyers for the repurchase of shares in SCZR.

In February 2021, two external professional firms were
appointed by the court to act as the liquidation administrators
of SCZR pursuant to the court order ((2020))110104%% 455 J&

EE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20

21

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

INVENTORIES 20 £ E
2019
RMB'000
ARETTT
Raw materials R 127,110 140,237
Work in progress F i 5,974 4,089
Finished goods X & 113,061 97,030
246,145 241,356
Less: provision W B AR (55,770) (56,680)
190,375 184,676

Financial Corporate
Information

2020

Chairman'’s

% & H

Highlights
RS

Major Events
2020F K FE 2

B S

Statement
j: ??

The cost of inventories and consumables were recognised as
expense and included in cost of sales during the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to RMB755,199,000 (2019:
RMB799,887,000) (Note 8).

REE2020F12A31BILZ2FE - &
ERFEMRAERAEER @ Het A
E R AN A& A R #755,199,0007T (2019
&£ A R#799,887,0007T) (ff 5£8) °

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 ERE R
2019
RMB'000
AR T T
Trade receivables JE & X 277,939 337,513
Less: Loss allowance (Note) B E IR B (A i) (6,893) (9,176)
271,046 328,337

Note: Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk can be found in note 3.1(b).

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. The assessment resulted in a decrease of
the loss allowance on 31 December 2020 by RMB2,283,000 for trade
receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the
allowance.

Brat: BERBKENRRE AEBEEENER
REmER - F2RHE3 D) -

AEBRAEBVH RS LA FORE
EEFT=EHEEEE  BYMERK
EFCETR B TEAEBEE © 2020612
A3AERERBERERLROAR
#2,283,0007T - BEBHINEFER
Bt 5£3.1(b) °

SHEUARLRERAT —ES-FFH 23]

Management Discussion

Report of Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance

Environmental,
Social and Governance
- )

=
o
S
@
=
[y

BESE

and Analysis
5 1: ’:‘ B

&

SRERRE

Management
=

ES

Directors

EEER

Report

PEESION

24 1

'i\

B

Statements




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their

fair values.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers from
date of issuance. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
receivables net of provision for impairment loss presented

based on the invoice date:

21

FE U & K

EWE R REEEZROIALEE -

HEFHNNREREERRE - &
E-RARFAEBBREE308E150H
ABRBEFPXNMN - mEMEZEAHZ5
B FE WS B (H0 Bk R B B 1B R BR
BN

2019
RMB'000
ARET T

Ageing AR B2
0-90 days 0-90H 186,187 206,329
91-180 days 91-180H 32,776 51,447
181-365 days 181-365H 21,756 38,209
Over 1 year 8 38 — F 30,327 32,352
271,046 328,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g b S EL T LE )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(i)

(ii)

Classification of financial assets at
FVTPL

The Group classifies the structured deposits at FVTPL:

22 BAREBEEFABEZZE
s E

(i)

Current assets mENE E
— Structured deposits — BEBEER

BARBEFAERZ
TRHEEDE

AEBEHUTHEBETRS B
BIEA BB AR

2019
RMB'000
AR®T T

256,733 180,084

Risk exposure and fair value
measurements

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is
provided in Note 3.1. For information about the methods
and assumptions used in determining fair value refer to
note 3.2.

(ii)

RO R AR EE

=

BERAKE RN ERERD
S8 H2RME3 - ARERE
EARBEMNTERBREREFR
BEE F2RME32-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

23 CONTRACT ASSETS

23 EHEE

2019
RMB'000
ARETT

Embedded software and A 2B A
secure payment products Z2XNEM 4,045 5,258
Digital equipment HFLRE 9,467 7,459
13,512 12,712

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
receive remaining payments from customers and not billed
because rights are conditioned on the satisfaction of quality
over the products delivered at the reporting date. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional. The condition is fulfilled upon the
completion of retention period which is normally between 6
months to 1 year.

24 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

BHEETEREREHEL
EnfEREHR AEEY
AARBREBOER R -
ERRENESEGRNERE A0
BEREAERKEN ABFHE
R S6ME A 214 -

24 E il JE WA T8 A 5K

PREPAYMENTS

2019
Note RMB’000
K & AR T T
Rental and utility deposits HekKEHRS 2,940 2,230
Tender deposits RERED 7,267 6,914
Deposits paid to suppliers TR EENET e 6,752 7,727

Prepayments to the Trustee of  f&{n 2Bt Bl 5 5F
shares award scheme AR = 1,752
Other prepayments and deposits H b 78 i 2 K2 5] & 4,433 27,079
21,392 45,702

234 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e R EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

25 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided borrowings with a total of RMB1,951,000 (2019:
RMB1,740,000) to Goldpac ACS for maintaining its daily
operation and Goldpac ACS returned a batch of equipment
amounting to Philippine Peso 13,541,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,840,000) to the Group as a partial
settlement for the amount due to the Group.

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the directors of the
Company believe that there is significant increase in credit risk
of the amount due from an associate since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on lifetime ECL.
Accordingly, an expected credit loss of RMB111,000 (2019:
RMB1,740,000) was recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment loss on amount due from an associate.

Details of impairment assessment of amount due from an
associate are set out in Note 3.1(b).

25 FE Uk B

EHEEZERAERAA

f\'j

H E2020F12A31HIEEE K&
[ Goldpac ACS#E f#ff & s L 5T A
K #1,951,0007C (20195 : A B ¥
1,740,00070) A R H BB 482 - DA
K Goldpac ACS:RE T —HL BT A IF
2F 313,541,000 HAE RO ARE
1,840,0007T) IR ERAEE - 1EA
BT OB AEBAENKIE -

ERRAEER 2L BERREXRE

72020412 A318A12019E12 A31H -
AEBESERABVIBERIRE
Uk B & N B FRIE R 5 B R R 8 =
m BMAEEERKEEHEES
BrriRRERSE Bittr HHEE
B8 A R #111,0007T (2019F : A B
#51,740,0007T) PA 48 25 A fE 7R & B IR
ﬂM/\ /T%\IE/WTEEE?‘E(’

& Y B 2 N B SR BB T A B EE 1B
TP 5E3.1(b) R FR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

26

236

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED 26
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

EEARITER - RITE
HERNBRERREEE
¥l

2019

RMB’000

ARETT

Cash at banks and cash in hand SRITFER MR & 226,481 220,996
Short-term bank deposits with =& A sk LA A ) HA &9

an original maturity of S RER N
three months or less 150,097 146,000
Cash and cash equivalent RekREEEY 376,578 366,996

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills payables
and carry fixed interest rate ranging from 0.03% to 4.13%
(2019: 3.85% to 4.13%) per annum. As at 31 December 2020,
RMB243,955,000 (2019: RMB156,000,000) represents bank
deposits pledged to banks for the Group’s bank facilities.

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the floating
rate of 0% to 0.03% (2019: 0% to 1.75%) per annum.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020

RehASEBYVERAEEME
BB h=EARE=EALRE
HHEHER -

EERBRTERASENEEREER
$0.03% £4.13% (20194F : 3.85% &=
4.13%) /) & 7F F F K 5 8 o 72020
F12A318 + A R %243,955,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26

27

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQU'VALENTS (Continued)

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group are denominated in
RMB and carry interest at the fixed rate of 0.30% to 2.90%
(2019: 1.10% to 4.13%) per annum. No fixed bank deposits
will be matured over one year as at 31 December 2020. Fixed
bank deposits of RMB109,779,000 would be matured over
one year and therefore classified as non-current assets as at
31 December 2019.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are set out
in Note 3.1(b).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

26

27

BIEHFRITER  R/ITE
HERNRAESRRASEE
Y ()

AEBHEEHRTEHERAAR
BEHE 0 $20.30%£2.90% (20194 ¢
1.10% £4.13%) K [E & FF X5 8 -
M2020%F 128310 » BIRTTEHER
GE—F EEE - R2019F12 A31
B AR#109,779,0007T ) F AR 1T
FEREeE—F R AitEo 8
BIERBEE -

BEEIFRITIFR - RITEBFRMNR

S RESEEMHRETGH AR
A F£3.1(b) ©

BERERRENRRE

2019

RMB'000

ARETT

Trade payables FE ST E K 257,995 282,336
Bills payables — secured EHRHENER 107,433 117,010
365,428 399,346

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 60
to 180 days of recognition. The bills payables are secured by
pledged bank deposits.

EHEEZERAERAA

ENEREER UESEERR
60H E180B A FIA L - BN ZIE
B IR 1T RE AT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
short-term nature. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
and bills payables based on invoice date and bill issuance date
respectively at the end of the year.

REE2020E128318 1L 2 FE

27

ENAERKRENMNEE @

RRHREE - BYERXRENRIE
MEEEERESEEAREENR
F o UTREFERENERMERM
EEREZAHARERAABBNK
o -

2019
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Ageing A %
0-90 days 0-90H 309,775 346,814
91-180 days 91-180H 47,390 40,931
181-365 days 181-365H 5,849 4,529
Over 1 year i —F 2,414 7,072
365,428 399,346
28 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2019
RMB'000
ARETT
Embedded software and A A
secure payment products 22 XNEM 50,864 42,468
The Group receives 10% to 100% of the contract value EEEXPHRITEGNE  AEBERKDRE
as deposit from customers when they sign the contracts FAHNEBENI0%EI00%EAEF
with customers. Contract liabilities represent the receipts in RER - AHNABATFR,BKRI &
advance from customers which is recognised as revenue at EVEGIERE - KREEBBRERP
a point in time when the control of the goods is transferred BFRIFER UL A - B E2020F12A31H
to the customers. During the year ended 31 December 2020, IEZFE - BREFYENBERH
revenue recognised in the current year relating to contract U A A R #537,974,6557T (20194 :
liabilities at the beginning of the year is RMB37,974,655 (2019: A R#27,176,0007L) °
RMB27,176,000).
738  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

29

30

OTHER PAYABLES

29 HEARK

2019
RMB'000
AR T T
Payroll and welfare payables JERTTE K AEH 46,056 59,807
Delivery and postage payables ERNEEREE 4,111 4,442
Other tax payables H b JEA B 18 34,609 34,412
Warranty provision EREeBE 3,062 4,775
Other payables and accrued expenses b & < 3% K J& 51 B 2 9,102 8,536
96,940 111,972

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 30 AT AL
2019
RMB'000
ARBTFT
At 1 January M1A1R 1,858 3,000
Received during the year F NPT 8,112 1,858

Released to profit or loss FRFAER

during the year (8,112) (3,000)
At 31 December W12 A31H 1,858 1,858
Goldpac Limited received government grants from the relevant & FEB R AR AT E A9 B A i B

local authorities in Mainland China as an incentive in relation
to technical know-how on the development of smart cards and
solutions services. Such government grants were recognised
in the profit or loss as “other income” when the research
completed and the related verification procedures have been
completed and approved by the local authorities in Mainland
China.

Rl EERE B RRBRT R
i 3 R A 22 B o U MBI i RE

e sTR - AR

ERFEELES

TEAM BRI ERSERIE

b WA JFT AR &

EHEEZERAERAA

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 IEEBIE
Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary RERERBBEABETHERG
differences under the liability method using the tax rates ERFRARSHANEBHKEL £
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting period date. EEMEREGTE -
The following amounts, determined after appropriate NTeHEECREREBRNEETS
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of financial R RAPHRIAT :
positions:
2019
RMB'000
ARBF T
Net deferred income tax assets recognised ERANECHELEEFR 9,400 8,192
Net deferred income tax liabilities recognised B RKIELCH BEEFHE (21,759) (23,825)
(12,359) (15,633)
The movements in the deferred income tax assets and liabilities NTRELEHBEEERBENE
are as follows:
Temporary

differences

arising from
loss allowance
and inventory

The PRC's
withholding tax
on undistributed

provision earnings Total
MEBRER
BREEBELEWN RAEFBH
ERHER RERRENS At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARETT ARETFTT
At 1 January 2019 201961418 (9,104) 26,395 17,291
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss during YRR 8 25 A

the year (Note 17) Mg/ L) (K aE11) 912 (2,570) (1,658)
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H (8,192) 23,825 15,633

Credited to profit or loss FERRBEREMA 211
during the year (Note 11) (1,208) (2,066) (3,274)
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H (9,400) 21,759 12,359

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income amounting to
RMB2,799,000 (2019: RMB1,980,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to the unused tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

240  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32 HEREEHR

(@) Cash generated from operations

() REEBFBERE

Cash flows from
operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Gain on fair value changes of
financial assets at FVTPL

Investment income from
financial assets at FVTPL

Interest income

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Depreciation of investment
property

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

(Reversal of)/provision for
impairment loss on trade
receivables

Reversal of impairment loss on
interest in an associate

Impairment loss on amount
due from an associate

(Reversal of)/provision for
inventories

Equity-settled share-based
payments

Interest expense on lease
liabilities

2019
RMB’000
AR® T T
REFTHEEZ
HERE
B BT 15 B4 A & F 169,242 206,882
HNIIE=S R
BEARBEFAER
JEMEEANEBE
FEylam (733) (84)
BAREEFABREZ
SREERERA (2,639) (7,508)
A B WA (28,260) (30,450)
Y HEK
HETE 35,168 39,637
FREEENE
9,286 9,322
WEWMERE
2,153 2,194
EmE E
2,290 2,290
EEWME BEK
HEEBE 110 1,364
e & SRR A E B
(Bm), # &
(2,283) 1,581
REEERNR 2= 2
RE B O (1,500) (3,464)
JE W Bt & N B 2 RLE
&5 18 111 1,740
FE(BER), B
(910) 2,843
LARE = 45 B IR 0 S 1+
— 1,935
HEBEGEHNBRAX
549 884

SHEUAELRERAT —EB=-sFFH 4]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR B R R MY AT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Cash generated from operations
(Continued)

32 HEREE R @)
(a) RETHFT

BHRE @

2019
RMB'000
ARETTT
Operating profit before EBECEEHAM

working capital change in: KR 182,584 229,166
— Inventories — FE (2,949) 24,433
— Contract assets — BB E (800) 852
— Trade receivables — EWER 59,574 83,922

— Other receivables and — E fth B W R R TR 3R
prepayments 24,310 (19,158)
— Contract liabilities — AHaE 8,396 15,292
— Trade and bills payables — ENER M EMNEE (33,918) (38,375)
— Other payables — HibEMK (5,086) (21,263)
— Government grants — R AT 8 B — (1,142)
Cash generated from operations A& & EB TSR & 232,111 273,727

33 SHARE CAPITAL 33 R
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
EEREE ]
‘000 HKD'000
T BET T
Issued and fully paid: EETEAMRE:
At 1 January 2019, R2019F1 7818 ¢
31 December 2019 and 2020 2019412 318 K& 202012 A31H 833,561 1,499,498
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Shown in the consolidated financial statements 3R & & B 16 iR =

as of 31 December 2019 and 2020 — R2019F12 A318 &2020%F12 A318 1,192,362

242
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34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of
recognising the contribution of certain employees and
directors made or may have made to the growth of
the Group and/or the listing of the Group on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, and had been expired on
3 December 2019.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no options have been
granted and remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November
2013, upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

3 URODAEBRNINARS

(@)

EHEEZERAERAA

BEXRNFABRENBRE

ki
=

=1/

==

BEAAHEESRBRERE
([BRDB%EAERESS
) M2013F11A15H # & &2
RERAEEARAZHRE BEES
EAREEETEIRESEL
B EAAREERHASEER
/SRR ERXETHE
- IF @ 2019412 A3H 3|
%o

M202012 A31H K% 2019412 A
3 EERAREBEERER
BFE TEE RN R ARITHEE

B & B B HE 0 R FE 2013411

H19B B A A B B1.00 (B
1T AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

REE2020E128318 1L 2 FE

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

244

34 IR AEME

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s

(&)

(@)

EP/N
—|'J£§

TREEARQ T%%&E\IF)’T

B &

HY <

A\

R

Al 8 IR A

share options held by directors and employees under the A E R AR % SR RE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and movements in such TEERERA Eiz 12020&
holding for both years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019F R2A3NBEILEZ2FE 2 &
2019: I
Number of share options
BREHE
At Exercise Lapse At 31 Exercise Lapse At
Exercise price 1 January during during  December during during 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2019 the year the year 2019 the year  the year 2020
R2019% R20195 R2020F
RiHAH SEA RS SROEE 1R ERE FAXM 12A31A ERTE FAKR 12A31H
Directors
iz
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2014 to HKD2.71 400,000 = (400,000) = = = =
3 December 2014 3 December 2019
2013F11A198 E2013F11A198 22014512838 82014512 848 £2019% 12438 ok YAV
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2015 to HKD2.71 1,840,000 —  (1,840,000) = = = =
3 December 2015 3 December 2019
20135114198 E2013F11A19RE2015 12838 82015612 A48 E2019612A38 BB
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2016 to HKD2.71 1,840,000 — (1,840,000 - = = =
3 December 2016 3 December 2019
20135114198 E2013E1MA19RZ2016E12A38  B2016F12 4B E2019%12A3A E¥LIT
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2017 to HKD2.71 1,840,000 — (1,840,000 = = = =
3 December 2017 3 December 2019
20135114198 E213FNMA19BE017512A38 820175128482 201951283A BELIT
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2018 to HKD2.71 1,840,000 — (1,840,000) - - - -
3 December 2018 3 December 2019
2013F114198 B2013E1MA19RZ2018% 12838  B2018%12 4B E2019%12A3H BELNT
7,760,000 —  (7,760,000) - = = =
Employees
BI
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2014 to HKD2.71 2,637,000 — (2,637,000 = = = =
3 December 2014 3 December 2019
20135118198 E2013F11A19H 22014512838 82014512 848 £2019% 12438 E%LIT
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2015 to HKD2.71 3,904,000 — (3,904,000 = = = =
3 December 2015 3 December 2019
20135114198 E2013F11A19RE2015 12838 82015612 A48 E2019612A38 BB
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2016 to HKD2.71 4,423,000 — (4,423,000 - = = =
3 December 2016 3 December 2019
20135114198 E2013E1MA19R 2016512838 B2016%F12 4B E2019%12A3A E¥LIIT
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2017 to HKD2.71 4,507,000 —  (4,507,000) = = = =
3 December 2017 3 December 2019
20135118198 E13ENAI9BE017512A38 820175128482 201951273A BELIT
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 to From 4 December 2018 to HKD2.71 4,507,000 —  (4,507,000) - - - -
3 December 2018 3 December 2019
2013F114198 E2013E1MA19RZ2018%12A38  B2018%12 4B E2019%12A3H BELNT
19,978,000 — (19,978,000) - = = =
Total 27,738,000 — (27,738,000 - c = =
At
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B %5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The share options shall vest in 5 tranches subject to
specific period of services of certain of employees,
executives and officers for the Group and/or the listing
of shares on the Stock Exchange.

No share-based payment expense was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Share option scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme,
approved by the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15
November 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”), are
substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme except that:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue at the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange;

(i)  the maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of offer to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of offer to grant; and

(iii)  the exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company at their discretion and will not
be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (b)
the average closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

3 LROAERNZARES

(&)

(@)

(b)

EHEEZERAERAA

BXRXAHBENERE
k¢ )

BEETEIL EEERBE
BASER HAEEEHH
FERGHE BRE/SS R
HERE -

# £2020%F12H31H &20194F
1RANBIEZFE - BUARG A
EM AL -

BRESE

201311158 & B & I R
SRk R OPT A O B9 BE AR R T 2l
((BRESEDEEKrES
RAFREEMMNERETERXR
AR - AN EFKER N

)y BEBRERHSZABRHOET
SHBBARDNB BT
mZ AR AR ER10%

(i) AEEA—{E1218 A B E 2
BHREZE  BT&AE
R2EENRSEBETE
BBERTRMMI% &

(i) TEEBEHARAE
EREEE ATEER
UNT&Em%E : @QEBRE
BMXAEBEHNRARS AR
B (b)EBRAERRL
BHMATAEEXENE
BRKBREFHE: OF
REIROEE e
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34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

246

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

(c)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no options were
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to Share
Option Scheme.

Shares award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Shares Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015
(the "Adoption Date”) with a duration of 15 years
commencing from 11 December 2015. The objectives of
the Share Award Scheme are to (i) align the interests
of any employee, adviser, consultant, agent, contractor,
client or supplier of any member of the Group whom the
directors in its sole discretion considers may contribute
or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”);
(i) recognise and motivate the contribution of the
Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of
the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the
long-term growth and further strategic expansion of the
Group.

The Company has engaged the Trustee to administer and
hold the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market with funds provided by the Company by way of
contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3 URGABERBNINARS
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (g)

(c) Shares award scheme (continued)

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares
under the Share Award Scheme to the Participants.
The share awarded shall be vested in three years on
each anniversary of the first vesting date, which is
26 November 2017, in equal portions. The estimated
fair value of the share award granted at the grant
date were approximately HKD27,564,000 (equivalent
to RMB24,239,000) based on the market price of the
relevant shares at the grant date.

As at 31 December 2020, all these shares were either
vested or forfeited; for which a total of 8,146,000 shares
of the Company were held by the Trustee at the year
end date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Trustee acquired 3,766,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (2019: 2,224,000) for a total consideration of
RMB5,501,000 (2019: RMB3,526,000), and no shares
were granted to employees under the Share Award
Scheme during the year. The Group did not recognise
any expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 in
relation to the share awards granted by the Company
(2019: recognised total expenses of RMB1,935,000).
At 31 December 2020, 8,146,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (2019: 4,380,000 shares) are held by the
Trustee.

() B&EBFE @

MR2017F58 © & & 1%
10,374,000 % A% 1 22 B 51 &1 3%
ERMOETESEE - 2E
f% 7 & % & @ 5 8 B (812017
F11H268) B D3F F B -

FENHERAR - RKT
HOMEBERGEE  RBK
PRBEFEHRNRARBENBE
27,564,000t (T & 9 A R ¥
24,239,0007T) °

W2020512 8310 © AT B # B
BOEEBRE LM FFEA
REFEKR#F B A RS,146,000%
TR o

#H Z=2020%128308 I+ 7 fF
B SEAUNBRBARE
5,501,0007C (20194 : A R
#3,526,0007T) 8 A &N A A
3,766,000% I @ A% (20194 :
2,224,0000%) - A HA R R K &
FEIBRGRBEZBRG -
#H Z=2020%128308 I+ 2z fF
E o AEESHERE L ER
A% 15 #9 B % (20194 : 1 2
R %1,935,0007C 2 5 ) B
2020128310 ST AEHE
N A 78,146,000% (20194 :
4,380,000 %) & 3@ i% ©
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34 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Shares award scheme (continued)

3 UROAERNZIARES

(%)

() B EBE @

(i) Movements in the number of unvested AEEBRBROYEE
awarded shares L)

Number of

shares

BHhEHE

At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H 3,350,000

Vested B 5B (2,937,000)

Forfeited B (413,000)

At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H —

Vested BB —

Forfeited R =

At 31 December 2020 2020412 A31H —
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The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows

from financing activities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T EL RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

35 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

ny

35 MEEREEE 2EE
*®

TRHAAJNAAEEARE RS E
EMABEED BRERASKIRS
2y AMETHELNABRE
AEEGRRERERTHRIER
AHERDBARERZINRSR
EARRRETABNEE -

A &

Dividend Lease
payable liabilities Total
TR E HEaE &5t
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR FTT ARBTT AREBTT
As at 1 January 2019 20191 A1H — 8,825 8,825
Financing cash flow mMEEEIE R (147,368) (9,600) (156,968)
Dividend declared ERYi ) 147,105 = 147,105
Foreign exchange gain SN B I E 263 — 263
New leases entered MBI CHE — 17,462 17,462
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE — 884 884
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H — 17,571 17,571
As at 1 January 2020 720201418 — 17,571 17,571
Financing cash flow BMEEHHR SN (143,421) (9,605) (153,026)
Dividend declared Tk S 143,421 — 143,421
New leases entered MBI CHEE = 7,995 7,995
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE — 549 549
At 31 December 2020 M2020F12 A31H — 16,510 16,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

& B S 8 AR Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

36 OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to
investment property owned by the Group with lease terms up
to 2020, without an extension option. The lessee does not
have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the
lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

36 K&EHE
AEBEAHEA
AEB AL ANKEEHES R AE
BHEEMNEEWE  HEAZE2020

F BT - AR AEHERRE
ERBEZME -

HESERKASZRMT :

2019
RMB'000
AR T T
Within one year —F R 1,488 1,488
In the second year EF 248 1,488
In the third year E=F = 248
1,736 3,224
37 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37 EAEE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the RERDEIANERERABEDN
reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: EAEARBELMT :
2019
RMB'000
AR T T
Capital expenditure contracted for B RAWEME BEKXE
but not provided in REETA B RTIA
the consolidated financial PN = A
statements in respect of BEARAZ
acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 68,083 24,800
250 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38
CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

EMITESHE

PEER

Corporate
Information
A

AEEFEUTERIA:

Financial

2019 5!
RMB’000
ARETFT 2
Financial assets tREE §§
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKAFECERMEE
Trade receivables FiE U 5 3K 271,046 328,337 o
Other receivables Ho A & Y 3R 19,586 35,092 3
Pledged bank deposits BRI ER 243,955 156,000 S o
Fixed bank deposits HRITE HF XK 724,123 914,056 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEED 376,578 366,996 %mj
1,635,288 1,800,481 5=
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABRREZ & gy
CRMEE 256,733 180,084 5 ®
1,892,021 1,980,565 .
ziE
Financial liabilities tHMEE : =
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Z#ER A EZ SR BE EE”‘Q
Trade and bill payables R ERREMNER 365,428 399,346 -
Other payables H b BT 4,894 5,544 e ol
Lease liability HEaE 16,510 17,571 = §‘r
DC%LE:HH‘
‘H
386,832 422,461

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is
the carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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39

40

252

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in this consolidated financial statements,
during the period, the Group has the following significant
transactions with related parties:

Name of related Relationship with Nature of
and connected party the Group transactions
HUREELEH BASEENBR REME

39

TR Z

B 7 & B 15 3R R P AT IR 5RO B BR Bk
TR SREERS - RAHEA - &
SERBRIBATEARS:

2019
RMB'000
ARBTT

Shanghai Gemalto IC Card
Technology Co., Ltd
LEeRABERRMERAR

Company controlled by
a substantial shareholder

TERREGOAF

Purchase of materials =

FRAT# % BB

2,279

None of the related party transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 constituted a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules.

The details of compensation of key management personnel
and remuneration of the directors of the Company are set out
in Note 10.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly
by the Company, and the proportion of ownership interests
held equals the voting rights held by the Company. None of
the principal subsidiaries of the Company issued any debt
securities as at the date of this Annual Report. The country
of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of
business.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Name of subsidiary

KELA

40 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
A Ag
EEE%E%

Principal activities

EX 33

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e R EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

40 Bt 27 o

Particulars of
issued share capital
and debt securities
BROIRAR
BREEESFE

Ownership interest held
by the Company

AARARANFEERS

2019

Goldpac Investment Limited (Note /)
CRERBERDA (N )

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited (Note j) )
EARRBAERRAN L)

Goldpac Innovation Limited (Note /)

SecureTech Holdings Limited

Goldpac Fintech Private Limited

Goldpac Fintech Philippines Limited Inc.

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited
EARERMRERARAA

Goldpac Limited (Note /)
SREERAR (W)

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BF AREEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
Bk RREMLH

The British Virgin
[slands, limited
liability company

ZEABRES
ARERERA

The British Virgin
Islands, limited
liabilit company

LEER
ﬁ@“1 7

Singapore, limited
liability company
b

AREEAH

The Philippines, limited
_liability company
FRE

AREEAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
& AREALA

Mainland China,
limited liability
company*

HEAY
BREE DA

Property holding
ES L]

(Note /i) and investment
holding
(/f/fﬁf//)&?“ RAR

Investment holding
BRAT

Investment holding

R A

(Note i)
(i)

(Note i)
(W)

(Note i)
(B iti)

(Note ji) and investment
holding
(i) R B R AT

Ordinary share
— HKD1
Takn
— BBt

Ordinary shares

— HKD500,000
LaRn

— 7 1%500,0007C

Ordinary shares
— USD100
LaRN
— £ L1007

Ordinary shares
— USD1,000
Takh
— X 701,0007T

Ordinary shares

— SGD100
Takh

— # MK E007

Ordinary shares
— PHP11,000,000
LaRn
— FRELER
11,000,000

Ordinary share HKD1
£aRH

— A%
Registered capital

~ — USD43,000,000
aft &

— 271.43,000,0007T

EHEEZERAERAA

100%

100%

100%

60%

60%

60%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

60%

60%

60%

100%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Place of

incorporation and

kind of Ieﬂgal entity
£

Principal activities

40 [ F @)

Particulars of
issued share capital
and debt securities

Ownership interest held
by the Company

B BERTRAR
HEAR EEEEER TEEH BEREERFFEE AAARENFERER
Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited ~ Mainland China, (Note i) Registered capital 100% 100%
RAmEAEEE RBRAA limited iability (&) _— RMB1,000,000
company’ HHEX
MR — AR%1,000,0007T
BREEDR!
Goldpac Technology Service Limited Mainland China, (Note iif) Registered capital 100% 100%
(Henggqin) limited liability (B itii) — RMB20,000,000
S HERERE(BE)ERAR company’ FHEL
e A - — AR%20,000,00070
BREEDR!
Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company ~ Mainland China, Investment holding Registered capital 100% =
(Note ) ) limited liability ERAT — USD10,000,000
HANE AR BN RAERRAA company* A -
it A - — %7110,000,0007C
BREELA*
UMV International Holding Limited (Woze /) Hong Kong, limited ~ Investment holding Ordinary share 100% —
SR EBRERERER AR Z) liability company ~ ERAF — HKD1,000
B £ERY
BREFRT — BH1,0007
UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) Mainland China, (Note i) Registered capital 100% =
R ERME AR ARAR limited liability (Hi) — RMB10,000,000
company* ERUE-V
E A - — AR%10,000,0007C
BREELDA
@ Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law * RIFFBUEEIMAIEBEE X%
8 Registered under PRC law “ RERBRET M
Notes: K aE -
(i) Directly held by the Company. (i) HAQRIEERHA -
(i) Sales of embedded software and secure payment products for smart (ii) HEBRL 2 X EE A B AR EA

secure payment and provision of data processing, system platforms,
other total solutions and digital equipment for customers in a

wide business range including financial,

government, healthcare,

transportation and retails by leveraging innovative Fintech.

(iii) Provision of logistical auxiliary service.

254
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

41

Due to the implementation of the share award schemes of
the Group mentioned in Note 34(c), the Group has also set
up a structured entity (the “Group Employee Share Trust”)
in 2015, and its particulars are as follows:

Structured entity
HBUEER

Principal activities

FRER

40 B8 27 @

R T % MY 5E34(c) BT it B i A9 A &
B AR D BB R & - ANEE IR R20155F
Ry T—HEBEERE(EEBEER
BEFED HFBHOT:

Group Employee Share Trust
transferred to the Participants
SEEERMNER
TEl2EE

As the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the Group Employee Share Trust and can
derive benefits from the contributions of the eligible persons
who are awarded with the shares by the schemes, the directors
of the Company consider that it is appropriate to consolidate
the Group Employee Share Trust.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 8 February 2021, UMV
Technology Limited (Zhuhai) (“UMV Zhuhai”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a series of Variable
Interest Entity (“VIE") agreements (Note) with Zhirong Financial
Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (“Zhirong”).

41

EHEEZERAERAA

Administering and holding the Company’s shares before they are vested and

BERELBEARA RN EEEIRBEARGHS AL  BEROHKER

HERASEAREESEERRND
SRMNMEREERR  YAAEE
BRATEREFERASEIRM
BB REBRMN)REHZaE - A
RRIESRABEHEEEBRRMNGE
ERMRETDERE -

EERBEXRAHEER

W& E 1% 0 2021288H - R &
En—XR2ENBAR SR EmE
FEE) AR AE (2R EHERE
REHE (BR8) BRAR ([E ) %:T
T— R A 2R ER(VIED % &
(i#) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 M & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

41 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 411 EEEERAHREE
DATE (continued) (#&)
Zhirong is a limited liability company established and subsisting ERmERBPEARKLME(HE]D
under the laws of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). It ERRWTFENERETAR o B
was wholly owned by the PRC equity owner and is principally BT REPERERBEAME  £E
engaged in the business of computer software and hardware, METER A ANEE G - BRIl
research and development in network technology and the P RBRHIMEZER ((ENER] - o
restricted business (the “Subject Business”). As advised FREEEEMTEZRE R TP - 12
by the PRC legal advisers and set out below, information WEBPOERESR - BUE I8
service platform for online data processing and transactions R 508 R A & & AR % 275 ([ BR
processing services as well as information service businesses FMEEBDNEERE TR - BRIEG
(the “Restricted Business”) of the Subject Business fall BEEEER((EBESEEB]REH
within the scope of “Value-added Telecommunication (“VAT") HE - MRS REPERBAEE
Services” and Zhirong has obtained the VAT Licence under MGEPIESIZESEEZBRS A
the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC to operate the BLALE F RS -
above services.
Pursuant to VIE agreements, Zhirong shall engage UMV Zhuhai BREZEHE  SREBRZESH
on an exclusive basis to provide technological consultation and RERMBARRS  RIEMEF S
services. Unless prior written consent has been obtained from B EEERBANELZEARE
UMV Zhuhai or its designated nominee(s), Zhirong shall not GRHIER AN SHETEMAIEHESR
carry on any transaction or conduct any act that may materially EE% AB B ENZES
adversely affect the assets, business, personnel, obligations, EEERTHZENRSITR - &
rights or operation. UMV Zhuhai shall provide a non-interest MEmEmnREREARRAR
bearing loan in the sum of RMB10,000,000 to the PRC equity #1,0008 TR EE B - M8 R
owner of Zhirong, and the PRC equity owner shall accept such RRAPBEREESAS SRR
loan in accordance with the Loan Agreement. REH & o
According to the contractual arrangement, UMV Zhuhai can BEHBELZHE - @R JLURRNED
elect or appoint persons to serve as directors (or executive EEMABEETERNES (KMT
directors) and supervisors of Zhirong in accordance with the ER)REF YEESENEHH
procedures prescribed by laws, regulations and Zhirong’s EEMABEEERNESR(WH
articles of association, and shall procure the election and EEg) LLKE BRUKENS
appointment of such persons designated by UMV Zhuhai as the REBENEMKE  eRMCHER
chairman (if there is a board of directors), general manager, BB IS TN 48 & EERAS T A BUE I W
chief financial officer and other members of the senior EEXNEMBEEE -
management of Zhirong. UMV Zhuhai already has obtained
effective control over the finance and operation of Zhirong
with no other purchase consideration is required to be paid
by UMV Zhuhai.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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42
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H1E 2F &

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE (Continued)

Through the VIE Agreements, UMV Zhuhai can control the
finance and operation of Zhirong effectively and will enjoy
the entire economic interests and benefits generated by the
Zhirong. Upon entering into the VIE Agreements, the financial
results of the Zhirong will be consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of UMV Zhuhai and the Zhirong will
become an indirect subsidiary of the Company.

Note: The VIE agreements include The Exclusive Technological Consultation

and Services Agreement, The Exclusive Business Co-operation
Agreement, The Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, The Equity Pledge
Agreement, The Spousal Consent Letter and The Loan Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, no material events occurred
subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation as the directors of the
Company consider that the new presentation is more relevant
and appropriate to the consolidated financial statements.

41

42

EHEEZERAERAA

EEREBXRAHRER

(&)

BEBVIERZE - &R AT BRES B
ROMBREE UFZHEERMES
MEBREERD - I VIEBHRK
EROMBEESHALEENE
B B®wE - BB RRRF K
FEMEAR -

# VIETSZ BIE B KT R R %
BREBEIEGE BRBEEHS -
BEBERER EBRERERB

B Eai I FESN 0 202012 A31HE
NERBEMZABEENEMHELE -

LB

RELEBRBEEREFOE - AN
BAFEZYH  ARAAFEE
RAEFHOINET AN EFREHBRER
EHBAERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 M £2020F12A318 1t 2 F[E

43 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

258

43 BF#& AR R &/

2019
RMB'000
ARETTT

Non-current assets E(RBEE
Intangible assets B A E 2,096 4,386
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - B E & & & 202 395
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRIZEE 435,696 367,262
437,994 372,043

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U B B A &) 7 18 612,877 424,310
Other receivables H {th & R — 9,598
Fixed bank deposits HRITE HfF R 537,891 715,208
Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEEY 158,529 2,898
1,309,297 1,152,014
Current liabilities REBaE

Other payables H h & 15 5K 2,817 3,615
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE ! 293,709 144,439
296,526 148,054
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,012,711 1,003,960
Net assets EEZFHE 1,450,765 1,376,003

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital & 7% 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves i 258,403 183,641
Total equity ERBE 1,450,765 1,376,003

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March
2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

LU RUN TING
ERE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFRTERNTEE
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12A31H 1L 2 FE

43 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

43 B % AR R &R

Movement in the Company’s reserves KRR ZRERE K
Shares held
Shares under shares Share
award award options Other Retained
reserve scheme reserve reserve profits Total
&1 5 B
Rip%EE sHEMEA fE R Hity RAE
f# & 7 f# L ekl CH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETT ARETn ARBTn ARBTR
At 1 January 2019 20191818 4,871 (9,968) 56,727 37,681 53,159 142,470
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNREZE
income for the year U ONE: — — = = 190,256 190,256
Recognition of equity-settled share- BA#E % 4 E R 1)
based payments (Note 34) IS (H £34) 1,935 — — — — 1,935
Purchase of shares under shares B E 8k {7 5 Bzt 2l
award scheme ARG = (3,526) = = = (3,526)
Lapse of share options Fis AR HE 2% 3K - - (56,727) = 56,727 =
Dividends recognised as distribution 7 & & & (4 :#13)
(Note 13) — — — — (147,105) (147,105)
Shares vested under the shares B 1817 E Bt 2
award scheme of the Company Bh&EB (6,806) 5,479 — — 938 (389)
At 31 December 2019 R201912 A31H — (8,015) — 37,681 153,975 183,641
At 1 January 2020 R2020%1 7318 — (8,015) — 37,681 153,975 183,641
Profit and total comprehensive FERMEZE
income for the year DONE = = = = 223,684 223,684
Purchase of shares under shares & B ik 7 &2 Byt 2
award scheme A KR = (5,501) = = — (5,501)
Dividends recognised as distribution % J& & & (#7£13)
(Note 13) = = = = (143,421) (143,421)
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A318 — (13,516) — 37,681 234,238 258,403
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B B =
Year ended 31 December
REBZ1283M1BLZ2EFE
2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT AREBTIT ARETIT
Results E
Revenue A 1,393,713 1,400,842 1,411,127 1,415,665 1,281,903
Profits before taxation B &¢ il 7 & 244,566 198,764 207,802 206,882 169,242
Income tax expense Fi8fi&mH (39,666) (34,287) (33,154) (30,459) (23,982)
Profit for the year FEFHE 204,900 164,477 174,648 176,423 145,260
Attributable to FEAL
— Owners of the o NG
Company wma A 204,900 164,477 175,187 177,125 145,665
— Non-controlling — R
interests ¥E 7 = = (539) (702) (405)
204,900 164,477 174,648 176,423 145,260
At 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT ARETIT ARETIT
Assets and liabilities BEFM A&
Total assets B E 2,599,582 2,706,875 2,628,452 2,635,228 2,577,263
Total liabilities waE (726,253)  (776,992)  (648,369)  (630,824)  (579,727)
Net assets FEE 1,873,329 1,929,883 1,980,083 2,004,404 1,997,536
Attributable to FEAL
— Owners of the o NG
Company WA A 1,873,329 1,929,883 1,977,549 2,002,572 1,996,109
— Non-controlling — R
interests FE 2 — — 2,534 1,832 1,427
1,873,329 1,929,883 1,980,083 2,004,404 1,997,536
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